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NRIEF

Corporate Information
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Tricor Secretaries Limited
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Managements

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

TONG KAI LAP (Chairman and Chief Strategic Officer)

Aged 51, graduated from The Chinese University of Hong Kong
in 1982 with a Bachelor’s Degree in Business Administration.
Since graduation, he worked in various international banks in the
commercial, corporate and investment banking areas. Mr. Tong is
a licensed representative for Type 6 (advising on corporate finance)
regulated activity under the Securities and Future Ordinance, an
associate director of Oriental Patron Asia Limited and the past
president of the Rotary Club of Tsim Sha Tsui. Mr. Tong is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors and a founding
member of Hong Kong Professionals and Senior Executives
Association. Mr. Tong joined the Group in August 2002.

ZHENG HAO JIANG (Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Aged 43, graduated in the Law Department (Economic Law
Speciality) of Beijing University in 1990 with a Bachelor degree in
Law. Mr. Zheng has nearly 15 years experience in Beijing in the areas
of equity portfolio management, capital market analysis management
and financial advisory. Mr. Zheng is a Standing Director of China
Automobile Dealers Association and a Director of China High-Tech
Industrialization Association. He is a founding member of Hong
Kong Professionals and Senior Executives Association and a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Zheng joined
the Group in October 2006.

ZHAO XIAO DONG (Deputy Chairman and Chief Operating Officer)

Aged 43, graduated in the Information Technology Department of
Beijing University of Chemical Technology in 1990 with a Bachelor
degree in Engineering. He has over 13 years experience in the areas
of wholesale and retail management of luxury goods in Beijing. Mr.
Zhao joined the Group in September 2008.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Managements

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
ZHANG SI JIAN

Aged 45, is a Managing Director of Sequoia Capital China focusing
on growth capital investments. Prior to joining Sequoia Capital
China in 2007, he worked with Baring Private Equity Asia in Hong
Kong and Shanghai, and Doughty Hanson in London. Prior to
joining private equity, he worked for Deutsche Bank in its Investment
Banking division where he advised international companies in their
IPO, block trade, debt and convertible bond offerings. He has a
Bachelor’s Degree of Science from Shanghai Jiao Tong University
and a Master Degree of Science from University of Minnesota and a
Master Degree of Business Administration from The Wharton School
of The University of Pennsylvania.

GUO YU

Aged 37, is currently a Managing Director of the Private Equity
Division of Morgan Stanley Asia Limited, primarily focusing on
private equity investment activities in China. He is also a non-
executive director of both Belle International Holdings Ltd and China
Dongxiang (Group) Co., Ltd., shares of both companies are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
Prior to joining Morgan Stanley Asia Limited, he worked in
Citigroup’s Investment Banking Division in Asia for about five years.
Mr. Gao also worked in Donaldson, Lufkin & Jenrette’s Debt Capital
Markets Group in New York. Mr. Gao graduated from Stanford
University with a Master’s degree in engineering-economic systems
and operations research as well as from Tsinghua University in
Beijing (3t 75 # A £ ) with dual Bachelor’'s degrees in engineering
and economics.

Ql JIAN WEI

Aged 56, has over 14-year experience in the jewelry business in
China including trading management, development of distribution
channels and production operations. He graduated from machineries
profession of Beijing Open University in 1982. Mr. Qi has not held
any directorship in any listed company in the last 3 years. He is
the elder brother of Mr. Qi Jian Hong, the sole beneficial owner of
Sparkle Roll Holdings Limited.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Managements

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

CHOY SZE CHUNG, JOJO

Aged 52, is the Vice Chairman of National Resources Securities
Limited. Mr. Choy has extensive experience in the securities
industry and business management. Mr. Choy obtained Master of
Business Administration Degree from University of Wales, Newport
and Master of Business Law Degree from Monash University. Mr.
Choy is an independent non-executive director of Chengdu Putian
Telecommunications Cable Company Limited and Zhaojin Mining
Industry Company Limited, shares of both companies are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Choy is also the
Chairman of the Institute of Securities Dealers Limited, committee
member of Society of Registered Financial Planner Limited, fellow
member of Institute of Financial Accountants, fellow member of
the Institute of Compliance Officer, member of Shantou Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Committee, honorary president of
Shantou Overseas Friendship and committee member of Rotary Club
Kowloon West.

LAM KWOK CHEONG

Aged 57, holds Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of Hong
Kong and has been a practising solicitor in Hong Kong for over 30
years’ experience. Mr. Lam is an independent non-executive director
of Wing Lee Holdings Limited, Same Time Holdings Limited and 21
Holdings Limited, shares of these companies are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lam is a Justice of the Peace
with Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) and a solicitor of the High Court of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. Mr. Lam is currently
a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors, Ex-Officio
Member of Heung Yee Kuk New Territories, member of Panel of
Adjudicators of Obscene Articles Tribunal, member of Buildings
Ordinance Appeal Tribunal Panel and a Civil Celebrant of Marriages.

BYFHTES
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Managements

LEE THOMAS KANG BOR

Aged 57, is a non-executive director of Man Sang Holdings Limited,
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, and an
independent non-executive director and chairman of the audit and
remuneration committee of CIG Yangtze Ports PLC whose shares
are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Lee is a member of the Society of Trust and Estate Practitioners,
the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and the Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators, a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Taxation Institute of
Hong Kong. Mr. Lee graduated from the University of London with
a bachelor’s and master’s degrees in laws and was called to the
Bar of the Lincoln’s Inn of United Kingdom. He served as President
of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong from 1999 to 2002, and is
currently Deputy President of the Asia-Oceania Tax Consultants’
Association and Vice President of Hong Kong Professionals and
Senior Executives Association.

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS UPDATE

Since the date of the 2010 Interim Report (dated 24 November
2010) of the Company, Mr. Lee Kang Bor Thomas was an executive
director and has been re-designated, since 1 April 2011, as a non-
executive director of Man Sang International Limited, whose shares
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Save for the information disclosed above, there is no other
information required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51(B)(1) of
the Listing Rules.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Ql JIAN HONG

Aged 44, is the President of the car distributorship division and
watch distributorship division of the Group. Mr. Qi has over 15 years
experience in the areas of wholesale and retail management of
luxury goods in China. Mr. Qi joined the Group in June 2008. He is
directors of Beijing Shou Ying Tong Shang Trading and Commercial
Limited (formerly known as Beijing Bin Li Group Limited). Mr. Qi is
a Standing Director of China Automobile Dealers Association. He
is also the sole beneficial owner of Sparkle Roll Holdings Limited, a
substantial shareholder of the Company.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Managements

LEUNG KWOK NING

Aged 49, is the Deputy General Manager of the car distributorship
division of the Group. Mr. Leung has over 27 years of experience in
managing the automobile aftersales service businesses and sales
management particularly for Bentley since 2003. Mr. Leung joined
the Group in June 2008 and he is responsible for managing the sales
of Bentley and aftersales service.

HO SIU WAH

Aged 41, is the Deputy General Manager of the car distributorship
division of the Group. Mr. Ho has over 10 years of experience in
management sales of automobiles. Mr. Ho joined the Group in June
2008 and he is responsible for managing the sales of Lamborghini
and Rolls-Royce.

MOK HENRY WING KAI
(Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary)

Aged 50, Mr. Mok holds a degree of Master of Business
Administration jointly granted by The University of Manchester and
The University of Wales (Bangor) and a degree of Master of Science
(Manufacturing Systems Engineering) granted by The University
of Warwick of United Kingdom. Mr. Mok is a fellow member of
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators and The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries. He is also a member of Hong Kong Securities
Institute, Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and Hong Kong Institute of
Directors. He joined the Group in August 2010.
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FEWmE
Chairman’s Statement

Our business transformation, commenced in June 2008, has been
accomplished in this financial year with the disposals of Animation
and Comics completed in April and November respectively. The
Group is now fully geared to capture the rising golden opportunities
of the Mainland China’s luxury market. The general economic
environment of Mainland China for the next few years will continue to
demonstrate strong growing momentum. Given the prominent stance
of Mainland China in the global stage , the Group’s top-tier luxury
goods distributorship business has continued benefiting and leapt a
big step forward compared with the previous financial year.

Our board of directors has estimated strong growth in profit after tax
during this financial year, so the Board decided to issue a positive
profit alert on 11 May 2011. According to the assessment, the board
of directors would like to inform shareholders and potential investors
of the Group that we might record a significant increase in profit for
the year ended 31 March 2011 as compared with the profit recorded
in the last financial year that ended on 31 March 2010. The strong
profit growth was particularly driven by the outstanding performance
from the automobile distributorships business, accounting for over
90% of our total revenue. But at the same time, our gross margin
and net margin fell significantly due to the substantial change in
revenue mix.

AEBERNAMBFEZAR -_FTN\EFX
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FEWmE
Chairman’s Statement

China’s Luxury Goods Market

Over the year, we have received ongoing updates and research
reports from different reputable authorities, investment banks and
global research houses stating that China’s Luxury Market has
been growing rapidly and is staying strong. The World Luxury
Association issued a recent report named “Official Report 2010-
2011” stating that total consumption of the PRC Luxury Market
jumped to USD10.7 billion in 2010 compared with USD9.4 billion in
2009, making China the luxury market with the fastest consumption
growth. The report also predicted China will supersede the US to
become the world’s top luxury market with the highest consumption
as early as 2012. According to the 15 June 2011 press conference
hosted by The Ministry of Commerce, China planned to lower import
tax on middle and high-end consumption goods to encourage
domestic consumption on luxury goods, since taxes on PRC luxury
goods are now the highest in the world and most Mainlanders
tend to consume luxury products overseas where they are far more
second-rated price. While these measures should be good for these
market segments in general, we adopt a wait-and-see approach
on the positive impact on our luxury goods business. Another
supportive research also highlighted the booming Luxury Market of
the PRC with an aggressive forecast of sales volume. According to
a new report by CLSA titled “Dipped in Gold”, it also forecast that
overall consumption in China will rise by 11% annually over the next
5 years and sales of luxury goods will grow more than twice as
quickly. It is expected that luxury customers from Greater China will
account for approximately 44% of the global luxury sales by 2020.

According to the Hurun Wealth Report 2017, with the burgeoning
wealthy elite and their transforming consumption pattern fuel the
prosperity of luxury industry, luxury consumption will remain the main
driver of consumer market growth in China in the next 5 years.

TREESCETS
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Chairman’s Statement

In another perspective, according to the latest Hurun Wealth Report
2017, China has 960,000 individuals with a personal wealth of 10
million Yuan (up 9.7% or 85,000 individuals from 2009) in 2010. As
for the super-rich, China has recorded 60,000 super-rich with 100
million Yuan in wealth each, up 9.1% in 2010. Beijing leads the way
with super-rich 10,000 individuals, followed by Guangdong with
9,000 and Shanghai with 7,800. The average age of the super-rich is
43 years. These super-rich tend to own three properties, five luxury
watches and four cars. There has also been a surge of interest in
drinking fine wines and collecting arts.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Automobile Distributorships

During the Year, the revenue of the top-tier automobile for the
distributorship of Bentley, Lamborghini and Rolls-Royce recorded
more than tripled to HK$3,017 million, compared with HK$893
million in the previous financial year. All ultra-luxury cars under
the Group have performed strongly during this financial year,
especially Rolls-Royce which has outperformed with 295 units sold,
representing a 10-fold increase in this financial year compared with
only 27 units sold during the previous financial year. Rolls-Royce
Beijing was ranked No. 1 worldwide in 2010 (ranked 3rd in 2008)
among all the dealers worldwide, according to the 2011 Rolls-Royce
World Dealer Conference in London in March 2011. The worldwide
sales figures of Rolls-Royce cars sold in the calendar year 2010 were
2,711 of which 223 cars were sold by the Group.

Similarly, Bentley Beijing’s performance was also brilliant during this
financial year with a total of 291 units sold, representing an increase
of 63% compared with only 178 units sold during the previous
financial year. Also encouraging is that Bentley Beijing was ranked
number one in Bentley motor car sales in the world in 2010, and
was awarded the 2010 Bentley China Best Distributor and Best
After-Sales Servicing Team Award in China during a Bentley China
distributorship conference held in March 2011. The worldwide sales
figure of Bentley cars sold in the calendar year 2010 was 5,126,
of which 253 cars were sold through Sparkle Roll's Beijing Bentley
dealer, putting Bentley Beijing at the top of the worldwide retalil
distributor list.
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FEWmE
Chairman’s Statement

In June 2011, the Group was granted the distributorships of Bentley
in Tianjin and Lamborghini in Dalian by the State Administration of
Industry and Commerce (KR LE{THEE4E), which allowed
the Group to sell imported Bentley and Lamborghini automobiles
and provide after-sales service in the two cities respectively. That is
expected to further increase the unit sales of the brands in future.
The showrooms of Bentley in Tianjin and Lamborghini in Dalian have
been completed and are operating.

In terms of Lamborghini, it has recorded an increase of more than
two fold in sales of car units with 72 this financial year, compared
with 33 units during the previous financial year.

Encouragingly, income from provision of after-sales services
continued to grow during this financial year. Total revenue recorded
a 32% increase during this financial year compared with the previous
financial year.

In December 2010, the Beijing Municipal Government announced
a tightening policy of limiting the issuance of new car licenses from
800,000 to 240,000 with effect from January 2011. As the Group
has all along rightly predicted, this policy does not affect our ultra-
luxury car business, and it is forecast that China is likely to surpass
the US as the number one market of ultra-luxury brands in the next
few years.
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Watch Distributorships

During the year, the performance of our super deluxe branded
watch division performed exceptionally well, particularly with Richard
Mille, contributing to nearly half of this sector’s total income with
total sales of 120 watches. Its two boutiques located in Shanghai
Lippo Plaza and Beijing Sparkle Roll Luxury World (Hua Mao) were
launched in April and January 2011 respectively. Another super
brand, DeWitt, also outperformed thanks to the start of wholesale
activities, and this doubled sales during this financial year compared
with the last with a total of 150 watches sold. Its boutiques located
in Shanghai Lippo Plaza and Beijing Sparkle Roll Luxury World
(Hua Mao) were launched in June and January 2011 respectively.
Del.aCour BiTourbillon, which we acquired in the beginning of 2010,
also recorded sales of 5 pieces during the current financial year. We
can see that high-end complication watches are becoming more
popular and being widely accepted among Mainlanders. Lastly,
Parmigiani also recorded satisfactory sales during the year, which
doubled from the last financial year to reach HK$26 million. lts
boutiques located in Shanghai Lippo Plaza and Beijing Sparkle Roll
Luxury World (Hua Mao) were launched in May and January 2011
respectively. Since then, Parmigiani has become more visible and
popular in the Mainland China market with momentum picking up.

Jewellery Distributorships

Since acquiring the top-tier branded Jewellery business at the end
of 2009, Boucheron has performed well due to the expansion of
points of sales and intensive marketing promotion programs. Sales
during this financial year more than tripled from the previous financial
year, with a total of 194 pieces of Jewellery sold compared with 60
pieces. The Beijing boutique located in Beijing Sparkle Roll Luxury
World (Hua Mao) was launched in January 2011.
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Another renowned brand under our Group, Federico Buccellati,
started operating right after joining our brand alliance in the
beginning of 2009, and its Beijing boutique was up and running in
January 2011 at Beijing Sparkle Roll Luxury World (Hua Mao). During
this financial year, the brand recorded sales of 3 high-end Jewellery
pieces.

In April 2011, the Group acquired another top-tier branded Jewellery
on the line, Royal Asscher, to become the exclusive distributor of
the brand in the PRC. Royal Asscher is one of the most renowned
and prestigious brands in the diamond industry, famous for its
patented Royal Asscher Cut. It was, for the second time, awarded
the privilege of a “Royal” title for another 25 years in 2011.

Fine Wines Distributorships

To meet the needs of demanding wine lovers in the Mainland, the
group strives to strength our fine wine business. During this financial
year, the Group partnered with two more renowned Bordeaux
negocians or wine merchants, Ulysse Cazabonne & Compagnie
Medocaine des Grands Crus (“CMGC”), to be the approved
distributors of different branded wines sourced from the best soils of
Bordeaux in the PRC in January 2011.

Ulysse Cazabonne is one of the classified growths owned by
CHANEL Inc. while CMGC is a well-established renowned distributor
of exclusive and carefully-selected “petits chateaux” among the 57
Bordeaux appellations and other regions for their quality. We strongly
believe that the cooperation will help establish a stronger foundation
for our group’s future business success in fine wines so as to bring
favorable returns to our shareholders.

Also existing is that the cozy wine cellar located at the basement
of our Beijing Sparkle Roll Luxury World (Hua Mao) was launched
in January 2011 in Beijing. Upon the opening of this retail
establishment, sales recorded during this financial year jumped by
54% to HK$62 million.
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Apart from distributing top branded wines from Bordeaux, the Group
started an innovative program of creating a private label wine — “Ex-
Chateaux” (32t E /&€ ) - working in collaboration with our partner
negocians from Bordeaux. Our private labels were selling well and

we have great faith in its future in the Mainland China market.

Additionally, our investment on wine futures or En Primeur 2009
during this financial year was disposed of, generating a gain of
approximately HK$23 million as reflected as fair value gain on
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Comics and Animations Development

During this financial year, the Group’s comics publications and
animations development business recorded sales of HK$36 million.

The disposal of animations and comics publications were completed
on 27 April 2010 and 18 November 2010 respectively and sold for a
net cash consideration of HK$57 million.

RECENT DEVELOPMENT AND PROSPECT

Given the promising prospects of the luxury market in Mainland
China, the Group will work towards fortifying our presence and
continue expanding our luxury goods business in the PRC. In line
with our corporate strategy of steering the Group to consumer
discretionary sector, our first step of expansion will involve an
intended capital expenditure commitment of approximately RMB70
million in the coming 12 to 15 months in renovation expenses in
two projects in Beijing and Tianjin . The project expenses will be
supported by the Company’s internal resources and, to a lesser

extent, bank borrowing.

For the project in Beijing, the Group is contemplating to construct
a shopping mall complex occupying approximately 6,700 square
meters that houses a “Century Beijing Showroom”, a wine cellar,
a luxury world for watches and jewellery, a bonded warehouse for
exhibitions purposes and office spaces. The shopping mall complex
will echo our flagship mall development model in the PRC which
allows for cross-selling platform, and serve as a symbolic landmark
of our leadership role in our luxury brand distributorship business in

automobile, watch, jewellery and wine.
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The project in Tianjin will include an expansion of the automobile
business where we will establish a new showroom for another ultra-
luxury car, plus a service center operation to be commenced in the
second half of 2011 in Tianjin. We will also copy “Sparkle Roll Luxury
World” model to Tianjin by establishing a mini luxury world there.

The premises in Beijing and Tianjin are mostly owned by Mr. Qi, our
single largest shareholder. Therefore, these will constitute continuing
connected transactions to be disclosed in detail in a separate
announcement in the near future in compliance with the Listing
Rules.

In addition to these two new projects ahead, we will continue to eye
on new business expansion opportunities in the fine wine business
and we are confident that it has potential to turn into one of our
major income growth drivers in the next few years. We have recently
established two fine wines shops — one in Shanghai on the renowned
Huai Hai Road, Shanghai and the other one in Tai Yuan, Shanxi.

In line with our commitment in luxury brands management, the
Group is endeavoring to enrich the product range in a progressive
manner.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

The revenue of the continuing operations of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2011 of approximately HK$3,286.7 million
represented a significant increase of approximately 204.3%
compared to approximately HK$1,080.0 million recorded in the
corresponding period of last year. The significant increase in
turnover was attributable to the encouraging performance of luxury
good division that a profit of HK$182.9 million was resulted for
the year ended 31 March 2011, as compared with a net profit of
approximately HK$113.7 million for the last financial year.

At the year end date, the Group maintained a net cash position with
cash at banks and in hand of approximately HK$215.3 million (2010:
HK$174.7 million), short-term bank borrowings of approximately
HK$53.7 million (2010: HK$17.7 million). The Group had sufficient
financial resources and will continue to finance its business
development by internal resources and bank borrowings.

DIVIDEND

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 March 2011 of HK1 cent per share (2010: HKO0.3
cent), which together with the interim dividend of HKO.3 cent per
share (2010: HKO.5 cent per share) make a total dividend of HK1.3
cents per share for the year ended 31 March 2011 (2010: HKO0.8
cent per share). The total dividend amounted to approximately
HK$38.7 million (2010: HK$21.9 million) for the year ended 31
March 2011. The final dividend is subject to approval by the
shareholders at the annual general meeting to be held on 9 August
2011 and payable on 31 August 2011 if it is approved.
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW

Automobile Distributorships

During the year, 291 units Bentley automobiles (2010: 178 units),
72 units Lamborghini automobiles (2010: 33 units) and 295 units
Rolls-Royce automobiles (2010: 27 units) were sold. Total revenue
of approximately HK$3,016.9 million was generated from sales of
automobiles compared to HK$892.6 million in last year. The gross
profit margin for automobiles decreased around 1.7% on overall
basis as a result of competitive pricing strategy in a fast growing
market and increase in purchase cost from manufacturers.

Moreover, after-sales-service generated services income of
approximately HK$54.0 million compared to HK$41.0 million in last
year.

Watch Distributorships

During the year, 120 pieces Richard Mille (2010: 57 pieces), 150
pieces DeWitt (2010: 68 pieces), 37 pieces Parmigiani (2010: 31
pieces) and 5 pieces delLaCour (2010: 1 piece) were sold since then
and up to 31 March 2011.

Sales of watches generated revenue of approximately HK$137.8
million compared to HK$104.2 million in last year. Management
believe that increase of 32% in sales revenue of watches was mainly
attributed by the cross-selling strategy among different products and
the opening of more watches shops in Beijing and Shanghai.
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Jewellery Distributorships

During the year, 197 pieces Boucheron jewelleries (2010: 60 pieces)
and 3 pieces Buccellati jewelleries (2010: Nil) were sold. Sales of
jewelleries generated revenue of approximately HK$16.1 million
compared to HK$2.1 million in last year, representing a growth of
667%. Both Boucheron and Buccellati had opened their flagship
stores in Beijing, Sparkle Roll Luxury World, during this financial year.

Moreover, the Group cooperated with Royal Assher in development
of their sales network in Mainland China.

Fine Wines Distributorship

During the year, 22,813 bottles (2010: 22,158 bottles) of fine wines
including 7,468 bottles of top fine wine were sold.

Comics and Animations Development

During this financial year, the Group’s animations development and
comic publications business were sold for a net cash consideration
of HK$27 million and HK$30 million respectively per the disposals
of animation and comics publication which were completed on 27
April 2010 and 18 November 2010 respectively, according to the
respective sales and purchase agreements.

Revenue generated from discontinued operation of comics and
animations segment was approximately HK$36.3 million compared
to approximately HK$139.1 million in last year.
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NUMBERS AND REMUNERATION OF
EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2011, the Group has 291 (2010: 610) employees.
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) charged to profit
or loss amounted to approximately HK$54.5 million for the year
(2010: HK$67.7 million). All permanent employees were under the
remuneration policy of fixed monthly salary with discretionary bonus.

There has been no change to the terms of the share option scheme
adopted by the Company on 7 October 2002. On 15 April 2010,
the Company granted 154,528,000 share options to certain of its
directors, employees and other eligible persons for nil consideration
at an exercise price of HK$0.82 per share.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group’s total assets as at 31 March 2011 were approximately
HK$1,703.9 million (2010: HK$1,185.0 million) which were mainly
financed by the owners’ equity and total liabilities of approximately
HK$1,263.2 million (2010: HK$869.8 million) and HK$435.5 million
(2010: HK$311.1 million) respectively.

The Directors consider the Group will have sufficient working capital
for its existing operations and financial resources for financing future
business expansion and capital expenditures.

The Group had limited exposure to fluctuations in exchange
rates and its borrowings, bank balances and cash were mainly
denominated in Hong Kong dollars (“‘HK$”) and Renminbi (“RMB”).
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year, convertible notes with principal amount of HK$82.5
million were converted into 150 million new ordinary shares of
HK$0.002 each at conversion price of HK$0.55 per share.

The Group’s gearing ratio then computed as total borrowings over
the owners’ equity was approximately 4.2% as at 31 March 2011
(2010: 9.5%).

EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN EXCHANGE

The revenue of the Group is mainly denominated in HK$ and RMB
while the purchases and production cost are mainly denominated in
Euro, Swiss Franc, HK$ and RMB.

For this year, the Group is mainly exposed to foreign currency
exchange risk of Euro, Swiss Franc and RMB and the management
mainly monitored the foreign currency exchange risk with advices
from the Group’s major bankers.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 March 2011, bank deposits of the Group with an aggregate
amount of approximately HK$42.3 million (2010: HK$11.3 million)
were pledged to secure bank loans of the Group and general
banking facilities granted to the Group.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

We would like to thank our dedicated team, board members
and staff members amid the challenging and competitive global
environment during the year. Given the positive outlook for the luxury
goods market in the PRC as well as our vision, we are confident that
we will generate profitable returns to our shareholders in future.

Tong Kai Lap
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2011
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance. The board of Directors of the Company (“the Board”)
agrees that corporate governance practices are increasingly
important for maintaining and promoting investor confidence.
Corporate governance requirements keep changing, therefore the
Board reviews its corporate governance practices from time to time
to ensure that all practices can be met with legal and statutory
requirements throughout the year of 2010/2011, the Group has
complied with all applicable the Code Provisions in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (“the Code”) contained in Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The Company has been in compliance with the Code
throughout the year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises three Executive, three Non-executive
and three Independent Non-executive Directors as defined by
the Stock Exchange. The biographical details are set out in the
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Managements” section.

The Company has three Independent Non-executive Directors,
representing one-third of the Board. At least one of the Independent
Non-executive Directors has appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise under
Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules. All the Independent Non-executive
Directors have signed the annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules to confirm their
independence.

Under the Company’s Bye-laws, every Director is subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three year.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board’s primary responsibilities are to determine the overall
strategies, monitor and control operating and financial performance
and set appropriate policies to manage risks in pursuit of the
Groups’ strategic objectives. Matters reserved for the Board are
those affecting the Group’s overall strategic policies, dividend policy,
significant changes in accounting policies, material contracts and
major investments. Day-to-day management of the Group’s business
is delegated to the Executive Director or officer in charge of each
department. The functions and power that are so delegated are
reviewed periodically to ensure that they remain appropriate. The
Board members have access to appropriate business documents
and information about the Group on a timely basis. All Directors
have recourse to external legal counsel and other professionals for
independent advice at the Group’s expense upon their request.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Group has a clear division of responsibilities for its top
management and separates leadership structure where the role of
Chairman is segregated from that of Chief Executive Officer. The
Chairman is responsible for providing leadership for the Board,
ensuring that good corporate governance practices and procedures
are established and that the Board acts in the best interests of the
Company. The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the day-to-
day business of the Group.

NON-EXECUTIVE AND INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

There are currently six Non-executive Directors of whom three are
independent. Under the Bye-laws of the Company, every Director,
including the Non-executive and Independent Non-executive
Directors, shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least every
three years. This means that the specific term of appointment of a
director cannot exceed three years.
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MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE

The Board meets regularly to review the financial and operating
performance of the Group and approve business plan. 8 Board
meetings were held in 2010/2011. Individual attendance of each
Director at the Board meetings, the Audit Committee meetings,
Remuneration Committee meetings and Nomination Committee

meetings during 2010/2011 is set out below:

Director

Executive Director
Mr. Tong Kai Lap

Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang
Mr. Zhao Xiao Dong

Non-executive Director

Mr. Zhang Si Jian

Mr. Qi Jian Wei (appointed on
30 September 2010)

Mr. Gao Yu (appointed on
30 September 2010)

Independent Non-executive
Director
Choy Sze Chung, Jojo

(Chairman of the Audit Committee)
Lam Kwok Cheong (Chairman of
the Remuneration Committee)

Mr. Lee Thomas Kang Bor
(Chairman of the Nomination
Committee)
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee in compliance
with the Listing Rules for the purposes of reviewing and providing
supervision over the Group’s financial reporting process and internal
controls and discussing with the external auditors for the nature and
scope of audit. Written terms of reference of the Audit Committee
were formulated and adopted in March 2005.

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors. The Chairman of the Audit Committee is an Independent
Non-executive Director. Its members include:

Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo — Chairman
Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong
Mr. Lee Thomas Kang Bor

The Chairman of the Audit Committee, Choy Sze Chung, Jojo,
has appropriate professional qualification in accounting and
extensive experience in accounting and auditing matters. Senior
management and auditors shall normally attend the meetings. The
Audit Committee held 2 meetings in 2010/2011 with satisfactory
attendance rate for the purpose of discharging the aforesaid duties.
The Group’s annual report for the year ended 31 March 2011 has
been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

According to the Code, the Company established the Remuneration
Committee in March 2005. The principal role of the Remuneration
Committee is to exercise the power of the Board to determine
and review the remuneration package of individual directors and
key executives, including salaries, bonuses and benefits in kind,
considering factors such as time commitment and responsibilities of
the Directors and key executive, employments conditions elsewhere
in the Group and desirability of performance based remuneration
so as to align management incentives with shareholders’ interests.
The Remuneration Committee is also considering all relevant
remuneration data and market conditions in addition to considering
the performance and responsibility of individual directors and officers
by linking their compensation with performance and measured
it against corporate goals. During the year, the Remuneration
Committee reviewed and approved the remuneration package of the
Executive Directors and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee shall consult the Chairman and/or
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company about their proposals
relating to remuneration of Executive Directors and have access
to professional advice if considered necessary. After reviewing
all relevant information, the Remuneration Committee made
recommendations to the Board for the remuneration of the Directors
and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee comprises three Independent Non-
executive Directors and two Executive Directors. Its members

include:
Independent Non-executive Director
Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong — Chairman

Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo
Mr. Lee Thomas Kang Bor
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Executive Director

Mr. Tong Kai Lap
Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang

The Remuneration Committee held 1 meeting in 2010/2011
to review and approve directors’ and senior managements’
remuneration. The directors’ fee paid to the Non-executive and
Independent Non-executive Directors are subject to annual review
and approval by the Remuneration Committee. The emoluments of
each of the Directors of the Company for 2010/2011 are set out in
note 11 to the financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 6 October 2008
comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr.
Lee Thomas Kang Bor (Chairman of the Committee), Mr. Choy Sze
Chung, Jojo, and Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board on a regular basis and
make recommendations to the board regarding any proposed
changes, identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
member, assessing the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors; and making recommendations to the Board on relevant
matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors
and succession planning for Directors in particular the chairman and
the chief executive officer.

All Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive
Directors are appointed for a specific term of two years and are
required to retire and eligible for re-election at the Annual General
Meeting of the Company in every three year in accordance with the
Company’s Bye-laws.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Each year, the auditors are appointed by resolution of the Annual
General Meeting and the Directors are authorised to fix their
remunerations for the auditing services.

The fee paid/payable to our auditor for annual audit for the year
ended 31 March 2011 amounted to HK$1.3 million (2010: HK$1.2
million).

The auditor has performed other non-auditing services during the
year with aggregate service fee of approximately HK$0.28 million
(2010: HK$0.15 million). The Audit Committee has considered
based on the policy developed by them in this regard and made
recommendations to the Board for these non-auditing services
conducted by our auditor.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary is responsible to the Board for ensuring that
board procedures are followed and that activities of the Board are
efficient and effective by assisting the chairman to prepare agenda
for meeting and by preparing and disseminating Board papers to
the Directors and board committees in a timely and comprehensive
manner. With respect to the company secretarial function, the
company secretary maintains formal minutes for Board and other
meetings.

The company secretary is responsible for ensuring that the Board is
fully briefed on all legislative, regulatory and corporate governance
developments and that it has regard to them when making decisions.
The company secretary is also directly responsible for the Group’s
compliance with the continuing obligations of the Listing Rules and
Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Repurchases, including
publication and dissemination of annual reports and interim reports
within the period laid down in the Listing Rules, timely dissemination
of announcements and information relating to the Group to the
market and ensuring that proper notifications are made of directors’
dealings in Securities of the Group.
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The company secretary also advises the Directors on their
obligations for disclosure of interests in securities, connected
transactions and price-sensitive information and ensures that the
standards and disclosures required by the Listing Rules are observed
and, where required, reflected in the annual report of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Group has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Companies (“the Model Code”) contained in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry, all
Directors have fully complied with the required standard set out in
the Model Code throughout the financial year.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS
RIGHTS

To promote investor relations and communications, meetings
with fund managers and potential investors are held frequently.
Shareholders are encouraged to attend the annual general
meeting for which at least 21 days’ notice is given. The Chairman
and Directors are available to answer question on the Group’s
businesses at the meeting. Shareholders have statutory rights to call
for extraordinary general meetings and put forward agenda items
for considerations by shareholders. Pursuant to rule 13.39(4) of the
Listing Rules, any vote of shareholders at a general meeting must
be taken by poll. Accordingly, all the resolutions put to vote at the
Annual General Meeting will be taken by way of poll. The chairman
of the Annual General Meeting will explain the detailed procedure
for conducting a poll at the commencement of the Annual General
Meeting.

After the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting, the poll results
will be published on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.

The Board is committed to providing clear and full performance
information of the Group to shareholders through the publication
of interim and annual reports. In additional to dispatching circulars,
notices, financial reports to shareholders, addition information is also
available to shareholders from the Group’s website.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s system of
internal control and for the assessment and management of risk. In
meeting its responsibility, the Board seeks to increase risk awareness
across the Group’s business operations and put in place policies
and procedures. The Company has not appointed an internal auditor.
The internal controls are monitored and reviewed regularly by
appropriate senior management so as to ensure that the categories
of risks are managed effectively.

The executive management team of each core business division
is accountable for the conduct and performance of each business
in the division within the agreed strategies. Business plans and
budgets are prepared annually by the management of individual
businesses and subject to review and approval by the Board. The
Board is overall responsible for monitoring the operations of the
business within the Group. Monitoring activities include the review
and approval of business strategies, budgets, and plans, and the
setting of key business performance targets. When setting budget
and forecast, management identifies, evaluates and reports on the
likelihood and potential financial impact of significant business risks.

The Group maintains a centralised cash management system for its
subsidiary operations and the Group’s finance department oversees
the Group’s cash position.

During the year, the Audit Committee and Board have reviewed
internal control of the Company. The Board considers that the
Group’s internal control system is satisfactory.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board recognises its responsibility to prepare consolidated
financial statements which give a true and fair view and are in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations (hereafter
collectively referred to as “HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Appropriate accounting
policies are selected and applied consistently. Judgements and
estimates made are prudent and reasonable. The Group has
changed some of its accounting policies following the adoption of
the new or revised HKFRSs which came into effect on 1 April 2010.
The accounting policies adopted by the Group are set out in the
“Summary of Significant Accounting Policies” of the notes to the
financial statements. The Directors use their best endeavours to
ensure a balanced, clear and understandable assessment of the
Group’s performance, position and prospects in financial reporting.
The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that the
Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the consolidated
financial statements.

The responsibilities of the auditors with respect to financial reporting
are set out on pages 47 to 48 in the Independent Auditor’s Report.
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The directors present their annual report and the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Details of the
principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 18
to the financial statements. Its subsidiaries were principally engaged
in trading of luxury automobiles, watches, jewellery in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”) (excluding Hong Kong and Macau) and
trading of fine wines in the PRC. The Group was also engaged in
the publications and distributions of comic books and animation
development, which the Group has discontinued in the year in
connection with the disposal of certain subsidiaries.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2011, the largest and the top five
suppliers of the Group accounted for 49.3% and 94.2% of the
Group’s total purchases respectively. The largest and the top five
customers of the Group accounted for less than 10% of the Group’s
total revenue.

At no time during the year did a director, an associate of a director
or a shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) have
a beneficial interest in any of the Group’s five largest suppliers or
customers during the year.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2011 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
pages 49 and 50.

An interim dividend of HKO.3 cent per share amounting to
approximately HK$8,929,000 was paid to shareholders during the
year. The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HK1 cent per share amounting to approximately HK$29,763,000 for
the year ended 31 March 2011.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on page 56 and note 35 to the financial
statements respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

In addition to retained profits, under the Bermuda Companies Act,
the contributed surplus account of the Company is also available
for distribution to its shareholders. However, the Company cannot
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed
surplus if:

(@) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities
as they become due; or

(b)  the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share
premium accounts.

In the opinion of the directors, the distributable reserve accounts
comprise the reserves of the Company of approximately
HK$70,257,000 in surplus (2010: HK$144,185,000 in surplus).

SHARE CAPITAL

During the year, convertible notes with an aggregate principal
amount of HK$82,500,000 were converted into 150,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.002 each at HK$0.55 per share of the
Company by convertible notes holders.

Moreover, 140,172,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.002 each were
issued upon exercise of share options by directors, employees and
other eligible persons (Note 37 to the financial statement).

Details of the movements during the year in the share capital of the
Company are set out in note 34 to the financial statements.
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CONVERTIBLE NOTES

Convertible notes of the Company with principal amount of HK$82.5
million were issued on 26 January 2010 for cash which were
convertible into shares of the Company at a price of HK$0.55 per
share (subject to pro-rata adjustments on capital structure changes)
and should be matured on 25 January 2015.

All such convertible notes were fully converted to 150,000,000
ordinary shares of the Company during this financial year. Details of
the movements are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group as at 31 March 2011 are set
out in note 30 to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the past five financial years is set out on page 184.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the year in the property, plant
and equipment of the Group are set out in note 17 to the financial
statements.
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DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Tong Kai Lap
Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang
Mr. Zhao Xiao Dong

Non-executive directors:

Mr. Gao Yu (appointed on 30 September 2010)
Mr. Qi Jian Wei (appointed on 30 September 2010)

Mr. Zhang Si Jian
Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo
Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong
Mr. Lee Thomas Kang Bor

In accordance with bye-laws 86(2B) of the Company’s Bye-laws,
any director appointed during the year will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and are eligible for re-election.

In accordance with bye-laws 87(1) of the Company’s Bye-laws,
every director should be subject to retirement by rotation at the
annual general meeting at least once every three years and are
eligible for re-election.
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No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

The term of office of each independent non-executive director is the
period of two years and renewable for one year up to his retirement
by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

In accordance with bye-laws 87(1) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr.
Zheng Hao Jiang will retire by rotation and, being eligible, for re-
election. In addition, pursuant to bye-laws 86(2B) of the Company’s
Bye-laws, Mr. Zhang Si Jian was appointed as director during the
year and will hold office until the forthcoming general meeting. Mr.
Zhang Si Jian will offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of directors and senior management are set
out in page 4 to page 8.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND CONVERTIBLE
NOTES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

At 31 March 2011, the interests of the directors and their associates
in the shares and convertible notes of the Company and its
associated corporations, as recorded in the register maintained by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFQ”), or as otherwise notified to the Company and
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Companies, were as follows:

Long position in the shares of the Company

EERARAREMEBEEE 2R
7 HERORATRERE 2 #ES

RZFE——F=ZA=1t—"H ZEFLEF
ZHMBATRARR REBBEEZ R &
AHREERTREARAREZE S NHAE K
7 ([EZ= MGG ) £362(GMFEZE
Ifpracs RIBEBLETAREZETES
RZNBETRASTHEARRANEBH
BRZABRAR (TBRAT)) 2T :

Name of director

BEENR

Mr. Tong Kai Lap (“Mr. Tong”)

BRI EE ([FEELE])

Mr. Tong

JERE

Mr. Zheng Hao Jiang
BET A

Mr. Choy Sze Chung, Jojo
EBIRESE

Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong
MBS % HE

Mr. Lee Thomas Kang Bor

FRMEE

Mr. Zhang Si Jian
oRBERE A

Capacity

4%

Founder of discretionary trust

A3

A

K

E(E R

H

H
i

Beneficial owner

BEolEBE A

Beneficial owner

BB A

Beneficial owner

BEamBAA

Beneficial owner

BB A

Beneficial owner

BEHmBAA

Beneficial owner

BB A

RARARGBZHER
Percentage of
Number of issued share
issued ordinary capital of
shares held the Company
BEE®T fMBEXRLQASHT
ZEREAE RAEB DL
10,274,400 0.67%
(Note 1)
(M$5E1)
9,760,000 0.67%
(Note 1)
(HMH5E1)
10,640,000 0.36%
2,504,000 0.08%
600,000 0.02%
2,504,000 0.08%
5,000,000 0.17%
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Notes:

(1) Interest in the issued shares shown in this row is beneficially owned
by Rapid Alert International Limited, a company controlled by a
discretionary trust of which Mr. Tong is the founder. Accordingly, Mr.
Tong is deemed to be interested in these shares. The total interests of
issued shares of Mr. Tong are 20,034,400 shares.

(2)  The denominator used is 2,976,324,850 shares, being the total number
of shares in issue as at 31 March 2011.

3) Other than as disclosed above and in the section headed “Share
Options” below, none of the directors nor their associates has any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or
convertible notes of the Company or any of its associated corporations
as at 31 March 2011.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at a special general
meeting of the Company held on 7 October 2002.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2011, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
shows that, other than the interests disclosed above in respect
of certain directors, the following shareholders had notified the
Company of relevant interests in the issued share capital of the
Company:

Long position in the shares of the Company

Name of shareholder Capacity

BRREEEEB & 5

Substantial shareholders

TERE

Sparkle Roll Holdings Limited (“SRHL")  Beneficial owner
IBERERAR AR (MBHEER]) EnEAA

Mr. Qi Jian Hong (“Mr. Qi") (Note 1) Held by controlled corporation
B ks ([H%E]) (1) MEEHNEERESR

B 5 -

(1) XTI RZEBTROEZHETLEHA
SN AZEREFEATES Z A FRapid Alert
International Limited B z # A  FIlt - B L4
WEABRLEERNPEERS BAEAH
¥ 7520,034,400f8 B BTN 22 -

(2)  FrA»&4A2,976,324,8500 8% - BIR =&
——FZ A=+ —HZEBBEITRMDEE-

(B) BHEXETX[ERE] —&MEEEN R
—E——F-A=Z+—"H ZEFHURFEZ
B8 A T BN AR RSk A EEEE 2
FERD  HEARNDKAITRREEFERTE
RS SK A -

Bl

ARmZBRESS ([ZAE]) DREAR
AR-_ZZ_F+ALBRTZRREHNK
BB EBRERRN-

FERR

RZB——F=ZA=1+—RH BARARE
EHRHERPIEIB6HRZREFEZ T ER
REXMARS BEXFREETES 2R
@O THBRREMEARARERARA
BEITRATAEAR 2 HEER

REQXRARGZHR
Percentage of
the issued
Number of share capital of
shares the Company
HARRAE
2RITRAE
ii&vig: - Q=] Bo
(Note 4)
(FF3E4)
835,000,000 28.05%
835,000,000 28.05%
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Name of shareholder

BRRESEHE

Ms. Zhu Shuang (“Ms. Zhu”) (Note 1)
KREZ L ([Rz+]) (EE1)

Sequoia Capital China

Growth Fund I, L.P. (Note 2)
Sequoia Capital China

Growth Fund I, L.P. (Fff#£2)

Mr. Shen Nanpeng (Note 2)
L E S 5 A (P EE2)

Max Wealth Enterprises Limited
(Note 2)

Max Wealth Enterprises Limited
(KtzE2)

SC China Holding Limited (Note 2)
SC China Holding Limited ( fif3F2)

Sequoia Capital China
Advisors Limited (Note 2)

Sequoia Capital China
Advisors Limited (Fff3£2)

Sequoia Capital China Growth Fund
Management |, L.P. (Note 2)

Sequoia Capital China Growth Fund
Management |, L.P. (Kf&E2)

Morgan Stanley Private
Equity Asia lll, Inc. (Note 3)

Morgan Stanley Private
Equity Asia Ill, Inc. (Ff33)

Capacity

=47

Interest of spouse

B

Beneficial owner

BEmBAA

Interest of controlled corporation

2 % B #E 2

Interest of controlled corporation

2 % B

Interest of controlled corporation
2 0% [ 4 a

Investment manager

REK

52

F

Interest of controlled corporation

7 A B # 2

Interest of controlled corporation

2 A B

Number of
shares

R E

835,000,000

274,743,000

315,000,000

315,000,000

315,000,000

315,000,000

315,000,000

300,000,000

Percentage of

the issued

share capital of

the Company
HARRAE
2RITRAE
Ao

(Note 4)
(PF3E4)
28.05%

9.23%

10.58%

10.58%

10.58%

10.58%

10.58%

10.08%
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Name of shareholder

BRRESEHE

Morgan Stanley Private
Equity Asia lll Holdings (Cayman)
Limited (Note 3)

Morgan Stanley Private
Equity Asia lll Holdings (Cayman)
Limited (B 7£3)

Morgan Stanley Private

Equity Asia lll, L.L.C. (Note 3)
Morgan Stanley Private

Equity Asia Ill, L.L.C. (Ki7£3)

Morgan Stanley Private
Equity Asia lll, L.P. (Note 3)

Morgan Stanley Private
Equity Asia lll, L.P. ( Fff5£3)

MSPEA Il Holdings
Cooperatief U.A. (Note 3)

MSPEA Il Holdings
Cooperatief U.A. (Hf3£3)

MSPEA Luxury Holding B.V. (Note 3)
MSPEA Luxury Holding B.V. (B 53)

The Real Return Group Limited
(Note 4)

The Real Return Group Limited
(Kt3E4)

Veritas Asset Management (UK)
Limited (Note 4)

Veritas Asset Management (UK)
Limited ( Fff5£4)

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011

Capacity

=47

Interest of controlled corporation

2 )% B #E an

Interest of controlled corporation

2 )% B an

Interest of controlled corporation

7 I B 7 2

Interest of controlled corporation

2 il & B i 2

Beneficial owner
E=HEAA

Interest of controlled corporation

2 i) B #E an

Beneficial owner

i

BmBEAA

A

Percentage of
the issued

Number of share capital of
shares the Company
HARRAE

2RITRAE

BOEE Bo
(Note 4)

(PF3E4)

300,000,000 10.08%
300,000,000 10.08%
300,000,000 10.08%
300,000,000 10.08%
300,000,000 10.08%
149,352,000 5.02%
149,352,000 5.02%
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Notes:

0

SRHL is a company wholly owned by Mr. Qi. Accordingly, Mr. Qi is
deemed to be beneficial holder of shares held by SRHL. Ms. Zhu is wife
of Mr. Qi. Accordingly, Ms. Zhu is deemed to be beneficial holders of
shares held by SRHL and Mr. Qi.

Sequoia Capital China Growth Fund Management |, L.P. is interested
in 315,000,000 Shares representing approximately 10.58% of the
Company’s issued share capital, of which (i) 274,743,000 Shares
(9.23%) is held by Sequoia Capital China Growth Fund I, L.P., (ii)
6,552,000 Shares (0.22%) is held by Sequia Capital China Growth
Partners Fund [, L.P. and (iii) 33,705,000 Shares (1.13%) is held by
Sequia Capital China GF Principals Fund [, L.P.. Sequoia Capital
China Growth Fund I, L.P., Sequoia Capital China Growth Partners
Fund I, L.P. and Sequoia Capital China GF Principals Fund I, L.P.
(collectively “SCC Growth Funds”) are managed by Sequoia Capital
China Advisors Limited, a company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands. The SCC Growth Funds’ general partner is Sequoia Capital
China Growth Fund Management |, L.P., whose general partner is SC
China Holding Limited, a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands.
SC China Holding Limited is wholly owned by Max Wealth Enterprises
Limited, a company wholly owned by Mr. Shen Nanpeng (also known
as “Neil Nanpeng Shen”) (“Mr. Shen”). Mr. Shen disclaims beneficial
ownership with respect to the shares held by the SCC Growth Funds
except to the extent of his pecuniary interest therein. Each of Sequoia
Capital China Advisors Limited, Sequoia Capital China Growth Fund
Management |, L.P., SC China Holding Limited and Max Wealth
Enterprises Limited is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
the SCC Growth Funds.

B :

BAZER AR LEEZEREZ AR Et
HEARBRREEBABRN ZERFHE
AN REEBEFREZEF A REEH
BRBRERLEEEMBEN ZERFE
Ao

Sequoia Capital China Growth Fund
Management |, L.P.#2315,000,0000% f% 17
(EARRFEETRAL10.58%) R H#EH
T2 H R () 274,743,0008% B 15 (9.23%)
M Sequoia Capital China Growth Fund
I, LLPE A (i) 6,552,0008% f% {7 (0.22%)H
Sequia Capital China Growth Partners Fund
I, LR35« K (i) 33,705,0008% 315 (1.13%)
i Sequia Capital China GF Principals Fund
I, L.P#%H ° Sequoia Capital China Growth
Fund I, L.P. » Sequoia Capital China Growth
Partners Fund |, L.P.}&2Sequoia Capital
China GF Principals Fund |, L.P. (47
A SCCHK K& £ ) JyH#HSequoia Capital
China Advisors Limited (—fE R A S B ST
KLz AR B - SCCRKRES ZERBA
# A ASequoia Capital China Growth Fund
Management |, L.P. M Sequoia Capital
China Growth Fund Management |, L.P.z
@A ¥ A ASC China Holding Limited (—
HRASHEEFMKIZZ2AF]) - SC China
Holding LimitedflaMax Wealth Enterprises
LimitedZ & # A © 1Max Wealth Enterprises
Limited & — & e L 79 85 55 4 (7718 /45 [ Neil
Nanpeng Shen|) ([MtE%E])2EH B Z
NE LA EMESCCREE B ARG
CEHBERE ERRER 2z BEMNER
4h o &Il - Sequoia Capital China Advisors
Limited » Sequoia Capital China Growth
Fund Management |, L.P.~SC China Holding
Limited 2 Max Wealth Enterprises Limited#&
A RNSCCRREGIBERMNTHE
e
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(3)

MSPEA Luxury Holding B.V. (‘MSPEA”) is interested in 300,000,000
Shares representing approximately 10.08% of the Company’s issued
share capital. MSPEA, a limited liability company incorporated in the
Netherlands and under Dutch law, is indirectly controlled by Morgan
Stanley Private Equity Asia Ill, L.P. (the “MSPEA III") (through its
control of Morgan Stanley Private Equity Asia lll Holdings (Cayman)
Limited and MSPEA Il Holdings Cooperatief U.A.), a fund managed
by the private equity arm of Morgan Stanley. The general partner
of MSPEA Il is Morgan Stanley Private Equity Asia lll, L.L.C., the
managing member of which is Morgan Stanley Private Equity Asia Il
Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Morgan Stanley. Each of MSPEA
Il Holdings Cooperatief U.A., Morgan Stanley Private Equity Asia llI
Holdings (Cayman) Limited, MSPEA Ill, Morgan Stanley Private Equity
Asia Ill, L.L.C. and Morgan Stanley Private Equity Asia lll, Inc. is
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by MSPEA.

Veritas Asset Management (UK) Limited is interested in 149,352,000
Shares representing approximately 5.02% of the Company’s issued
share capital. Veritas Asset Management is 100% owned by The Real
Return Group Limited.

Other than as disclosed above, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
discloses no person as having a notifiable interest or short position in
the issued share capital of the Company as at 31 March 2011.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2011, the Directors were

not aware of any other person (other than the Directors and the

chief executive of the Company) who had, or was deemed to have,

interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares
(including any interests in options in respect of such capital), which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange

under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,

or who was directly or indirectly interested in 10% or more of the

nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in

all circumstances at general meetings of any member of the Group.

(38) MSPEA Luxury Holding B.V. ([MSPEA])
$4300,000,000f% i 3 (15 4% 2 7] & 317 Ik
A #)10.08% ) 7 % A 4 71 ° MSPEA (7 7
WY RBEREEEEIMALZBERAF)
THERTAFZALERESMERZE
% Morgan Stanley Private Equity Asia Il
L.P. (TMSPEA Il | ) % i E A ] 2 Morgan
Stanley Private Equity Asia Il Holdings
(Cayman) Limited 2 MSPEA IIl Holdings
Cooperatief U.A.F# ] - MSPEA Il 2 & il
&% A AMorgan Stanley Private Equity Asia
I, LLC. (HEBKE AR RERLTAHNZ
2 & [f} & 2 A]Morgan Stanley Private Equity
Asia lll, Inc.) &Lt - MSPEA Il Holdings
Cooperatief U.A.~Morgan Stanley Private
Equity Asia Ill Holdings (Cayman) Limited
MSPEA Il - Morgan Stanley Private Equity
Asia lll, L.L.C.&Morgan Stanley Private
Equity Asia lll, Inc.% B # R AR MSPEARE A
2R R -

(4)  Veritas Asset Management (UK) Limited
$2149,352,000/& fx 5 ((h AR BB & 1T
% 7K #)5.02% ) #F ¥ B # 25 © Veritas Asset
Managementfi The Real Return Group
Limited 2= & # A

6) BEXHBE&N R-FE——F=f
St+—RA BARTREEERBEENE
36 REEE Y T ERRBRMAES -
WAL ERARSRTRARHEE
SENCPZ 2SR

BREXFEEEN RZFE——F=ZA=+—
B EEHMIABZEEMEMAL (EERA
RAEBITHABRRSN) BRIt SARRIRX (D
EHIERBEAREE S LB EOIFEXV
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BEREEDIAR (BREREBEBRAZER
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed in the section headed “Share Options”
above, at no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications
and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market information.

The Company has adopted a share option share scheme as an
incentive to directors and eligible employees.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange. The Company considers all of the
independent non-executive directors are independent.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
RMO Agreement

On 22 February 2008, Beijing Mei He Zhen Yong Motors Trading
Limited (“BJMH”) and Beijing De Te Motors Trading Limited (“BJDT"),
both are indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company,
entered into an office rental, management fees and office expenses
agreement (“BRMO Agreement”) with Beijing Shou Ying Tong Shang
Trading Commercial Limited or “Beijing SYTS” (formerly known as
Beijing Bin Li Group Limited or “BJBG”), a company established in
the PRC which is controlled by Mr. Qi, for a term commencing from
22 February 2008 to 31 December 2010, in respect of the office
rental, management fees and office expenses and subject to an
annual cap of RMB1,100,000.

This RMO Agreement expired on 31 December 2010. For the year
ended 31 March 2011, the total rental charge paid by BJMH and
BJDT to Beijing SYTS amounted to RMB720,000 or approximately
HK$837,210.

Additional RMO Agreement

For expansion of the Group’s business in distribution of luxury
goods, on 5 May 2010, Sparkle Roll Oriental (Beijing) Trading
Development Limited (“SROBJ”) and Beijing Sparkle Roll Xin Tian
Di Commerce Development Limited (“SRXTD”), both are indirect
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company, entered into an office
rental, management fees and office expenses agreement (“Additional
RMO Agreement”) with Beijing SYTS for a term commencing from
1 May 2010 to 31 December 2010, in respect of the office rental,
management fees and office expenses and subject to an annual cap

of RMB600,000.

This Additional RMO Agreement expired on 31 December 2010.
For the year ended 31 March 2011, the total rental charge paid by
SROBJ and SRXTD to Beijing SYTS amounted to RMB600,000 or
approximately HK$697,676.
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New RMO Agreement

On 31 December 2010, BJDT, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into an office rental, management fees
and office expenses agreement (“New RMO Agreement”) with Ms.
Zhu Shuang, spouse of Mr. Qi, the largest substantial shareholder
of our company, for a term commencing from 1 January 2011 to 31
December 2013, in respect of the office rental, management fees
and office expenses with Ms. Zhu Shuang and subject to an annual
cap of RMB1,860,000.

For the year ended 31 March 2011, the total rental charge paid
by BJDT to Ms. Zhu Shuang amounted to RMB465,000 or
approximately HK$540,698.

Showroom Rental Agreement

On 31 December 2010, Tianjin Xin Chang Tai Fu Trading
Development Limited (“TJXC”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a showroom rental agreement
(“Showroom Rental Agreement”) with Mr. Qi, the largest substantial
shareholder of our company, for a term commencing from 1
January 2011 to 31 December 2013, in respect of the office rental,
management fees and office expenses with Mr. Qi and subject to an
annual cap of RMB2,640,000.

For the year ended 31 March 2011, the total rental charge paid
by TJXC to Mr. Qi amounted to RMB660,000 or approximately
HK$767,442.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the
year ended 31 March 2011.

FMAZEHEHEEEHRS

R-ZE—TF+-A=+—H AQARME
PEWMBRARILREHFERARAZERNEZR
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EEEWE
Report of the Directors

AUDITOR

The financial statements of the previous financial years were audited
by Grant Thornton (“GTHK”), now known as JBPB & Co. Due to
a merger of the businesses of GTHK and BDO Limited (“BDO”)
to practise in the name of BDO, GTHK resigned and BDO was
appointed as auditor of the Company effective from 24 November
2010. The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2011
were audited by BDO.

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint BDO as auditor of the
Company.

There has been no other change of auditor in the preceding three
years.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting of the Company will be held at 4:30 p.m.
on 9 August 2011 at The Hong Kong Bankers Club, 43/F Gloucester
Tower, The Landmark, Central, Hong Kong and a notice of annual
general meeting will be published and despatched in due course.

On behalf of the Board

Tong Kai Lap
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2011
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CAVE 2% S ITES e
Independent Auditor’s Report

IBDO

Tel : +852 2541 5041
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

EEE - +852 2541 5041
{85 : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

To the Shareholders of Sparkle Roll Group Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sparkle
Roll Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 49 to 183, which
comprise the consolidated and company statements of financial
position as at 31 March 2011, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of cash flows
and the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
EETHER1115
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B ZBENHRE (48)

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the Company as
at 31 March 2011 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Tsui Ka Che, Norman

Practising Certificate Number P0O5057

Hong Kong, 28 June 2011
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BHE_ZT——F=A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 March 2011

2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 5 FERT FE T
Continuing operations BEKSEER
Revenue g 6 3,286,688 1,080,054
Cost of sales 8HE AR (2,919,521) (896,846)
Gross profit EF 367,167 183,208
Other income H g A 7 49,963 19,180
Selling and distribution costs SHE R A (125,109) (48,959)
Administrative expenses T E R (70,984) (29,450)
Other operating expenses HgE g A (3,710) (588)
Operating profit KRR 8 217,327 123,391
Finance costs B & pK AR 9 (8,556) (12,199)
Profit before income tax BRETE B AR R 208,771 111,192
Income tax expense FRS 8 1 10 (9,889) (4,380)
Profit for the year from FEREEKZ
continuing operations REE R 198,882 106,812
Discontinued operation ERIEREER
(Loss)/profit for the year from BARIE& %%ﬁ&zasir
discontinued operation (E18),/% 16 (16,023) 6,851
Profit for the year REERA 182,859 113,663
Other comprehensive income, BREZEMZEWA
net of tax
Release of exchange reserve upon & B A A AR R
disposal of subsidiaries HNEE {5 &5 (4,061) -
Exchange gains on translation of MEABINEBIHBRE L
financial statements of foreign bE 5 i =
operations 4,046 140
Total comprehensive income AEEEEBRALLE
for the year 182,844 113,803
Profit/(loss) for the year THALTEERFEE
attributable to: =R (EBR) -
Owners of the Company PiN/N T%ﬁ/\ 13 183,677 113,016
Non-controlling interests I 12 AR 4 2 (818) 647
182,859 113,663
Total comprehensive income TH AL EN
attributable to: EAON L
Owners of the Company iN/NEIEF SN 183,662 113,156
Non-controlling interests JEVE R = (818) 647
182,844 113,803
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FerEWATRK (8)
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (Continued)

BHE_Z——F=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2011

2011 2010
—E——F —T—TF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FTHET TR
Earnings/(loss) per share from ERARDFEE A
continuing and discontinued BhHBEREELR
operations attributable to the EARLEREEKR2BR
owners of the Company during BR (FEE)
the year 15
Basic earnings/(loss) per share BRELRBA
(&8)
from continuing operations P X5 HK7.1 cents &1l HK4.9 cents &l
from discontinued operation BERIEEEER HK(0.6) cent &l HKO.3 cent &l
HK®.5 cents i1l HK5.2 cents &l
Diluted earnings/(loss) SERBERA
per share (E#8)
from continuing operations SRS E T HK7.1 cents 1l HK4.4 cents &l
from discontinued operation B R T HK(0.6) cent &1l HKO0.2 cent &1Ll

HK6.5 cents &l

HK4.6 cents #1ll
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

MRZZTE——F=A=+—H Asat31 March 2011

2011 2010
—E——F —E—FF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B =E FHET FE T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment e Y 17 79,603 24,358
Goodwill RS 19 580,679 597,334
Other intangible assets HihmEEE 20 3,917 5,454
664,199 627,146
Current assets REEE
Inventories T8 21 353,469 131,421
Film rights 5 b hiR i 22 - 10,494
Trade receivables B E 5518 23 90,625 87,263
Deposits, prepayments and e fﬁ?%ﬁlml,ﬁ&
other receivables H h fE W k1A 24 337,726 138,571
Amount due from a related company & Ux — & B8 & A 7 738 25 - 3,825
Tax recoverable AT 4 [ 77 18 279 231
Pledged bank deposits BEEMRITER 26 42,325 11,348
Cash at banks and in hand RITRFHEIAES 26 215,300 174,700
1,039,724 557,853
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade payables FEE 5 38 27 15,438 20,804
Receipts in advance, accrued TE WG IE )E”r;%?ﬁﬁ&
charges and other payables Hoth JE S 5K I8 28 307,422 177,792
Amounts due to related parties FEAS BEE A T FKIB 29 46,448 136
Provision for taxation 755 T8 B 6,099 5,863
Borrowings B 30 53,665 17,663
429,072 222,258
Net current assets REBEEFE 610,652 335,595
Total assets less current liabilities EAEERABAEE 1,274,851 962,741
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sra iRk (8)

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

MRZZTE——F=A=+—H Asat31 March 2011

2011 2010
—E——F —E—FF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B =E FET TAIT
Non-current liabilities kFRBEMB
Receipts in advance and TE R IE B EAh & A< R IE
other payables 28 3,666 5,209
Convertible notes CIEAY &8 31 - 64,951
Derivative financial instruments TESmMIT A 32 - 18,469
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIBRE 33 2,734 206
6,400 88,835
Net assets EEFE 1,268,451 873,906
EQUITY R
Share capital % 7 34 5,952 5,372
Reserves 1 1,227,468 856,371
Proposed final dividend R R B R B 14 20,763 8,059
Equity attributable to the AATEE AEMLER
owners of the Company 1,263,183 869,802
Non-controlling interests IR ER 5,268 4,104
Total equity =B 1,268,451 873,906

Tong Kai Lap
BRI
Director

EF

Zheng Hao Jiang
EET
Director

BF
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Statement of Financial Position

MRZZTE——F=A=+—H Asat31 March 2011

2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
{S=a FET TF&T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries BB A Bl = 18 - 77,000
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments TERFRIE 24 - 74
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE W BfY /B8 R Bl ZkIE 18 878,235 692,812
Tax recoverable Al Uy B % 18 279 =
Pledged bank deposits BEEMRITER 26 3,369 3,327
Cash at banks RITIHE 26 254 34,647
882,137 730,860
Current liabilities REBAE
Accrued charges EEtER 28 1,418 150
Amount due to a subsidiary FEAS B B R R FIE 18 3,200 =
4,618 150
Net current assets REBEEFE 877,519 730,710
Total assets less current liabilities EEERABAE 877,519 807,710
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Convertible notes Al =R 31 - 64,951
Derivative financial instruments PTESRIT A 32 - 18,469
- 83,420
Net assets EEFE 877,519 724,290
EQUITY X
Share capital fi& 4 34 5,952 5,372
Reserves 1 35.2 841,804 710,859
Proposed final dividend R R AR IR B 14 20,763 8,059
TOTAL EQUITY AR 877,519 724,290

Tong Kai Lap

Rz

Director

EF

Zheng Hao Jiang
BR5E T
Director

EF
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an\ fﬁi/nb ?E

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BHE_Z——F=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2011

2011 2010
—E2——F —T-TF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 5 FERT FE T
Cash flows from operating REXBECHERE
activities
Profit before income tax from BELERDRIEKE
continuing and discontinued 75 R P45 B4 Al A
operations 192,748 118,247
Adjustments for: KRBT FIE:
Bank interest income RATH S WA 7 (601) (196)
(Gains)/losses on disposals of HEME R EERME
property, plant and equipment 2 (Wzk) /18 7,8 (158) 109
Write-back of deposits received BE 2 Wize 7 - (1,166)
Allowance for impairment of JE YR TR R (B e 1
receivables 8 3,500 1,625
Amortisation of film rights 52 v i e 4 55 8 2,490 4,641
Amortisation of other intangible H T B
assets 8 1,637 6,124
Depreciation of property, plant and Y e REE 2
equipment e 8 12,474 5,538
Equity-settled share option AR 45 & 2 B AR 4
expenses Z 8 18,991 =
Fair value losses on derivative PTEEMITAEARE
financial instruments &5 18 8 3,710 588
Losses on disposal of subsidiaries HEWBA TZJ%% 8 4,511 -
Write-down of inventories to net Wom A & 2= A 210 FE
realisable value 8 670 1,975
Property, plant and equipment SR ER Y
written-off 8 519 474
Interest expenses FMEEA 9 8,567 12,199
Operating profit before working BEESBEH ZKE
capital changes 554 7 248,958 150,158
Increase in inventories ﬁ —g:2Jill (245,865) (46,635)
Increase in film rights 2 R KR AEE AN - (3,389)
Increase in trade receivables FEUE 5 5RIRIE AN (27,118) (66,727)
Increase in deposits, prepayments e BEEIEREAM
and other receivables & Wk féi* ﬂu (225,286) (97,594)
(Increase)/decrease in amounts due & Y 783 I8
from related companies (% )JD)//UE’J\ (26,186) 9,988
Increase in trade payables FET B 5 FRIBIE AN 2,181 7,861
Increase in receipts in advance, TEWFIE BT E A R
accrued charges and other ﬁ‘rﬁﬂgﬁ QLRI
payables 186,952 132,156
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due  JE{FEEE A L IEE N,
to related parties O ) 46,312 (10,465)
Cash (used in)/generated from mEE (FTA),/
operations Fﬁ S & (40,052) 75,353
Hong Kong profits tax paid BRI BB G (545) (80)
Overseas tax paid EERELS: LR (4,482) (1,009)
Net cash (used in)/generated from KB (FTA) 3
operating activities &5 (45,079) 74,264
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an\ Eﬁi//lbiig (“E
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

BHE_Z——F=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2011

2011 2010
—E——F —E-FTF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FHET T T
Cash flows from RETBHz2EHERE
investing activities
Increase in pledged bank deposits 2R ER 1T 535 0 (30,977) (6,011)
Purchases of property, plant and EEME M REE
equipment 40 (71,365) (11,947)
Purchases of other intangible assets B EHMEFEE - (1,800)
Disposal of subsidiaries (net of cash  HEMEB A 7 (1
and cash equivalents disposed of) FrHEReRES®
EEEAE) 36 46,304 -
Proceeds from disposals of property, &Y #2E K &
plant and equipment Fr 1S 3008 180 257
Interest received EREESS 601 196
Net cash used in investing activities & & /E BT AR & /F 58 (55,257) (19,305)
Cash flows from financing METEHCEERE
activities
Capital contributions by non- B A B SRR R
controlling equity holders of BFHEALE
subsidiaries 5,698 -
Proceeds from exercise of share 1T B AR B AT 15 5K IR
options 114,941 -
New borrowings raised L EE 364,440 17,663
Issue of convertible notes BATARBRRIR - 82,500
Repayments of borrowings EEEE (328,438) (33,423)
Dividends paid to the owners of the AR GHEA AR Z
Company % 2 (17,438) (18,431)
Bank interest paid BERTERITH B (2,472) (860)
Interest on convertible notes paid BRI ZEEFE - (4,394)
Net cash generated from financing REEBMEEEFE
activities 136,731 48,055
Net increase in cash and cash RekHRELEHEEH
equivalents 32 0 28 36,395 103,014
Cash and cash equivalents at FHNzHEeRESEE
beginning of the year HE 174,700 71,563
Effect of foreign exchange rate ERGE) s ZE  FE
changes, net 4,205 123
Cash and cash equivalents atend TR RERBELEE
of the year IHH 215,300 174,700
Analysis of balances of cashand BE&RBESZEEH &
cash equivalents i
Cash at banks and in hand RITRFHEIAS 215,300 174,700
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FABARREDE
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BHE_ZT——F=A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 March 2011

Non-
controlling
Attributable to the owners of the Company interests  Total equity
ARAREARLR FERER REA%
Retained
profits/ Proposed
Share Share Capital Special ~ Contributed Exchange Statutory  (accumulated final
capital premium’ reserve’ reserve’ surplus* reserve’ reserve’ losses)* dividend Total
REEH/
e REEE ERGE BHRE EON:1 AERE" EERE  (RHER) BRRERE G
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
Tt Fitr Titn Tin TEn TEn L Tin ThL Tk Tk Tt
At 1 April 2009 RZZENFBA-A 3,572 529,766 112,184 (36,810) 49,394 431 3,558 (90491) = 575,494 3,457 578,951
Equity component in convertible BRI ARREEL
notes issued Badh - - 1,443 - - - - - - 1,443 - 1,443
Issued of shares upon comversion of X AT BRZHH LT
convertible notes BB 1,800 300,016 (112,184) - - - - - - 189,632 - 189,632
Interim dividends paid for the period ~ BE=ZTNE
ended 30 September 2009 ARZTBELE
(Note 14(a)) BREfPARE
(i 14(a)) - - - - - - - (13431) - (13431) - (13431)
Walver of interest on convertible —ARRHRAR
notes by a shareholder TAREEHE - - 3,508 - - - - - - 3,508 - 3,508
Transactions with owners REFAETZRS 1,800 300,016 (107,233) - - - - (13,431) - 181,152 - 181,152
Proft for the year RERER = = - - - - - 113,016 - 113,016 647 113,663
Other comprehensive income £ 2ERA
Exchange difference on translation B &5 £52
of overseas operations EXER = = - - - 140 - - - 140 - 140
Total comprehensive income for FERZARAEE
the year - - - - - 140 - 113,016 - 113,156 647 113,803
Reduction of share premium Bl - (260,000) - - 260,000 - - - - - - -
Elimination of contributed suplus WS ABBEHZ B
against accumulated losses - - - - (206,327) - - 206,327 - - - -
Transfer to statutory reserve %@:ﬁ'ﬁ - - - - - - 1,770 (1,770) - - - -
Proposed final dividend for the year
ended 31 March 2010 (Note 14(a)) =
FEIRERIRE
(Wz14(a) - - - - (8,059) - - - 8,059 - - -
At 31 March 2010 and 1 April 2010
5372 569,762 4,951 (36,810) 95,008 4461 5328 213,651 8,059 869,802 4104 873,906
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FORAEREDE ()
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)

BHE_Z——F=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2011

Non-
controlling
Attributable to the owners of the Company interests  Total equity
ARARAARE FERES REEE
Retained
Share profits/ Proposed
Share Share Capital option Special ~ Contributed Exchange Statutory  (accumulated final
capital premium’ reserve’ reserve’ reserve’ surplus* reserve’ reserve’ losses)* dividend Total

RERH/ ik
Ba  BEEER B4R BRERR  GARE  SABR  NEGR  iRER  (RHER)  RERS aif
HKSO0  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOD  HKSODD  HKBOOD  HKSOOO  HKSOOD  HKSOOO

TER TER TER TERL TiEn Tin Tin Tin Fin TER TER TER TERL
At 1 April 2010 5372 569,762 4,951 = (36,810) 95,008 4,461 5328 213,651 8,059 869,802 4104 873,906
Arising from capital injection of non- RERERTEREL
controlling interests - - - - - - - - - - - 5,698 5,698
Equity-settled share option amangement  MRARE 2 BRERH - - - 18,991 - - - - - - 18991 - 18,991
Issued of shares upon exercise of share 1T BREE XK A
options 280 131,888 - (17,221) - - - - - - 114,941 - 114,941
Issued of shares upon conversion of FRTARZERES
convertible notes ki3 300 94,368 (1,443) = = = = = = = 93,225 = 93,225
Final dividends paid for the year ended ~ HZ-%—%
31 March 2010 (Note 14(o)) =
£
( = = = = = (450) = = = (8,059) (8,509) = (8,509)
Interim dividends paid for the period H2o%-
ended 30 September 2010 (Note 14@)  ALA= + AL
BEEARERE
(MisE14(a)) = = = = = (8,929 = = = = (8,929) = (8,929)
Derecogniton of non-controling nterests it & MBA A EER
upon disposal of subsidiaries (Note 36) 3R ( ) - - - - - - - - - - - (8,716) 3716)
Transactions with owners EEFAETIRS 580 226,256 (1,443) 1,764 = (9,379) = = = (8,059) 209,719 1,982 211,701
Proft for the year TEEEF - - - - - - - - 183,677 - 183,677 (818) 182,859
Other comprehensive income A 2ERA
Release of exchange difierence upon ﬁEWEH RERER
cisposalof subsidries Note 36) 3£36) - - - - - - (4061) - - - (£,061) - (4061)
Exchange difference on translation of & E? $hoRNER
overseas operations = = = = = = 4,046 = = = 4,046 = 4,046
Total comprehensive income for the year  AEE2EMAEE - - - - - - (15) - 183,677 - 183,662 (818 182,844
Transfer to statutory reserve SRETTRE - - - - - - - 174 (174) - - - -
Release of statutory reserve upon HEMELNRRET
disposal of subsidiaries L] - - - - - - - (3,558) 3,558 - - - -
Proposed final dividend for the year B2 3%
ended 31 March 2011 (Note 14(a)) ZR=t-Hit
fﬂ’ LERAERS
(H3E14(a)) - - - - - 29769) - - - 29763 - - -
At 31 March 2011 RZ%--%F
5,952 796,038 3,508 1,764 (36,810) 55,866 4,446 1,944 400,712 29,763 1,263,183 5,268 1,268,451
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of  * HWERHERABESEZAMBMRIRANZE
HK$1,227,468,000 (2010: HK$856,371,000) in the consolidated & % 1#1,227,468,0008 L (=T —FT F :
statement of financial position. 856,371,000/ 7T ) °

BEEEAMRAE F¥H 2011



B R 2% MY 5T
Notes to the Financial Statements

BHE_Z——F=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2011

1. GENERAL INFORMATION 1. —REHR
Sparkle Roll Group Limited (the “Company”) is a limited BHEEEER AR ([ARF])B—
liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The address of ERERESFMANZzERAE &
its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church House, =T it #% =5 Bz #b 4E & Clarendon House,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda and its principal place of business 2 Church House, Hamilton HM11,
is Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on The Stock Bermuda' MEAF EZE XM SEHE -
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). RABIRNEEBHERZMEBR AT

(B pT]) £ e

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the AR REMBAR ([AER])EE
“Group”) are the distributorships of luxury goods. The Group’s REBRFEARLNE (TRIEES
operations are based in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic FMORP) (B RESEEE LD H
of China, excluding Hong Kong and Macau (the “PRC”). The ¥ o ASENEREEEELE L RE
Group was also engaged in the publications and distributions BITARBEMEES EEHEWE16
of comic books and animation development, which the Group K 36Fral EEW B A R MR AFEELIE
has discontinued in the year in connection with the disposal of g o
subsidiaries as described in notes 16 and 36.
The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2011 HE-_T——F=H=T—HLFEZ
were approved for issue by the board of directors on 28 June PBHREN=_TE——F A=+ /\BH
2011. EETeRAETIE-

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED 2. BRAFHEALEITEEBHK

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time all
of the new standards, amendments and interpretations (the
“new or amended HKFRSs”) issued by the HKICPA, which are
relevant to and effective for the Group’s financial statements for
the year.

Other than as noted below, the adoption of the new or
amended HKFRSs had no material impact on how the results
and financial position for the current and prior periods have
been prepared and presented or on the Group’s accounting
policies.
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l

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continuea)

(a)

HKFRS 3 (Revised), “Business Combinations”, and
consequential amendments to HKAS 27, “Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements” and HKAS 28,
“Investments in Associates”. The revised standard
continues to apply the acquisition method to business
combinations, with some significant changes in relation
to contingent payments, measurement of non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and acquisition-related costs.
HKAS 27 (Revised) requires the effects of all transactions
with non-controlling interests to be recorded in equity
if there is no change in control and these transactions
will no longer result in goodwill or gains and losses. The
standard also specifies the accounting when control is
lost. Any remaining interest in the entity is re-measured
to fair value, and a gain or loss is recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income. The Group has
applied these amended HKFRSs in the consolidated
financial statements.

HKFRS 5 (Amendment), “Non-current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations”. The amendment
clarifies that HKFRS 5 specifies the disclosures required
in respect of non-current assets classified as held for
sale or discontinued operations. It also clarifies that the
general requirement of HKAS 1 still apply, in particular
paragraph 15 (to achieve a fair presentation) and
paragraph 125 (sources of estimation uncertainty) of
HKAS 1. The amendment has no impact on the financial
statements.

HK Interpretation 5, “Presentation of Financial Statements
— Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause”, specifies
that amounts repayable under a loan agreement which
includes a clause that gives the lender the unconditional
right to call the loan at any time shall be classified by the
borrower as current liabilities in its statement of financial
position. The Group has applied this amended HKFRS in
the financial statements.
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2.

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the
following new or amended HKFRSs have been published but
are not yet effective, and have not been adopted early by the
Group.

HKAS 12 (amendment) — Recovery of underlying assets®

° HKAS 24 (revised) — Related party transactions?

° HKFRS 7 — Disclosures: Transfer of financial assets®

° HKFRS 9 — Financial instruments*

° HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 — Prepayments of a minimum funding
requirement?

o HK(IFRIC)-Int 19 — Extinguishing financial liabilities with
equity instruments’

o Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 issued in May 2010 by
the HKICPA'E2

U Changes effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2010

2 Changes effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2011

g Changes effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2012

- Changes effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013

9 Changes effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2011
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BHE_Z——F=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2011

ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

2.

The Group has already commenced an assessment of related

impact of adopting the above new or amended HKFRSs to

the Group. The Group is not yet in a position to state whether

substantial changes to the Group’s accounting policies and

presentation of the financial statements will be resulted.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

3.1

Basis of preparation

The financial statements on pages 49 to 183 have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. The financial statements
also include the applicable disclosure requirements of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

The significant accounting policies that have been used
in the preparation of these financial statements are
summarised below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented unless otherwise
stated. The adoption of new or amended HKFRSs and
the impacts on the Group’s financial statements, if any,
are disclosed in note 2.

The financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain derivative
financial instruments which are stated at fair values. The
measurement bases are fully described in the accounting
policies below.

2.
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l

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FE2:HEME »)
POLICIES (continued)

3.1

3.2

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011

Basis of preparation (Continued)

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in preparation of the financial
statements. Although these estimates are based on
management’s best knowledge and judgement of current
events and actions, actual results may ultimately differ
from those estimates. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the financial statements,
are disclosed in note 4.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(see note 3.3 below) made up to 31 March each year.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are excluded
from consolidation from the date that control ceases.

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting to
account for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred
and the equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair value of any
asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred. ldentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination
are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition
date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets.

3.1

3.2
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BHE_Z——F=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2011

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FE2:HEME »)
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Basis of consolidation (Continued) 3.2 ZRERBZEE(E)

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If this is less than
the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired
in the case of a bargain purchases, the difference is
recognised directly in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Intra-group transaction, balances and unrealised gains
and losses on transactions between group companies
are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Where unrealised losses on intra-group
asset sales are reversed on consolidation, the underlying
asset is also tested for impairment from the Group’s
perspective. Amounts reported in the financial statements
of subsidiaries have been adjusted where necessary to
ensure consistency with the accounting policies adopted
by the Group.

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interest as transactions with equity owners of the Group.
For purchases from non-controlling interest, the difference
between any consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the
subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposals to non-controlling interest are also recorded in
equity.

PR (B - RUTE 5 (IR AR
HE 21 N 4% M BE 7 {2 ) 2 A AR AN
sERBRBzARE BHAK
BrIEAFEERAREBEZEED
REE - Lz BB E R AT U R T B
REAIBEFEZAREZRER
EMs Z=HEREGAEEK
ABRKRHER

SEARRZAR S REBATZ
B3 5 2 #E f MOR 2 3R W et &2 &
B NGV BRREH -
SEAREEHEZARAERER
RiFERERKED - MAEEEET
SRAKE 2 ARETRERR -
MBARMBRRAMBE LS
HERNBERIELFE - UHERE
AEBRAZGFTEE B

AEBEFFERESETIRS
BEREAEERESHEBAZR
ZHERE - HNFAFERESRE
P S ASHE AT AR (B B2 P U BB BT B8 2
AZREEREERBRN2E
BN RO iR © B [F SRR A A a1
ETZHEMEEREKER I
PR RC R

BEEEAMRAE F¥H 2011

63



64

B R P ot

Notes to the Financial Statements

BHE_Z——F=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2011

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEME &)
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

3.3

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011

Basis of consolidation (Continueqd)

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value, with
the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the
purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Group has the power to control
the financial and operating policies so as to obtain
benefits from their activities. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether the
Group controls another entity.

In the consolidated financial statements, acquisition of
subsidiaries (other than those under common control)
is accounted for by applying the acquisition method.
This involves the estimation of fair value of all identifiable
assets and liabilities, including contingent liabilities of the
subsidiary, at the acquisition date, regardless of whether
or not they were recorded in the financial statements of
the subsidiary prior to acquisition. On initial recognition,
the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary are included
in the consolidated statement of financial position at
their fair values, which are also used as the bases for
subsequent measurement in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policies.

3.2

3.3
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l

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEME &)
POLICIES (continued)

3.3

3.4

Subsidiaries (Continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
subsidiaries are carried at cost less any impairment
losses unless the subsidiary is held for sale or included
in a disposal group. The results of the subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable at the reporting date. All
dividends whether received out of the investee’s pre or
post-acquisition profits are recognised in the Company’s
profit or loss.

Foreign currency translation

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
Dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency of the individual entity
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the reporting date, monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that date.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the reporting
date retranslation of monetary assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined and are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

3.2

3.4
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEME &)
POLICIES (continued)

3.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual
financial statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the Group’s
presentation currency, have been converted into HK$.
Assets and liabilities have been translated into HK$ at the
closing rates at the reporting date. Income and expenses
have been converted into HK$ at the exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates, or at the average rates
over the reporting period provided that the exchange
rates do not fluctuate significantly. Any differences arising
from this procedure have been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in the exchange reserve in equity. Goodwill and fair
value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation on or after 1 April 2005 have been treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and
translated into HK$ at the closing rates. Goodwill arising
on the acquisitions of foreign operations before 1 April
2005 is translated at the foreign exchange rate that
applied at the date of acquisition of the foreign operation.

When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are recognised in profit or loss as part of the
gain or loss on sale.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEME &)
POLICIES (continued)

3.5 Property, plant and equipment 35 Y- -HBERZE

Buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land, where the fair value of the building
could be measured separately from the fair value of the
leasehold land at the inception of the lease, and other
items of property, plant and equipment are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided
to write off the cost less their estimated residual values
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method, as follows:

EEREELHMEIEFE R ZET
(mEARENEBAERERES
T2 RREDFHFE) AR
W - HEs MR ETR B TSI RANR
REERRFBEERIK-

W - HEs MR TIIRIA N AT A]
ERFH MR A RSRERR
B EFHRITE - AMEHROA -

Buildings 50 years or over BF 504 = & F &
the term of lease, if shorter (A E B%E)
Furniture and equipment 3 to 10 years NS 3&E1045
Fixtures 5 to 10 years or over R®E 52 10F = 10 & F Hf
the term of lease, if shorter (A H B%E)
Motor vehicles 4 to 5 years RE 4B

The assets’ estimated residual values, depreciation
methods and estimated useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.

S (EA IR EE T ETER
fir st A P 4 EA R SR 5 B it
3 A ROE R R TR R -

BEILERELZBSELE
ISR AEEHMEEZREEL
B2 ZRET  WHEBSAER -

BEEEAMRAE F¥H 2011

67



68

B R P ot

Notes to the Financial Statements

BHE_Z——F=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2011

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEME &)
POLICIES (continued)

3.5

3.6

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
All other costs, such as repairs and maintenance are
charged to profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Goodwill

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost being the excess
of the aggregate of consideration transferred and the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests over the
fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities acquired.

Where the fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities exceed the aggregate of
consideration transferred and the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests, the excess is recognised in
profit or loss on the acquisition date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill arising from an acquisition is allocated to each
of the relevant cash-generating units that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. A cash-
generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually, and whenever there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired.

3.5

3.6
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEME &)
POLICIES (continued)

3.6

3.7

Goodwill (Continued)

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year,
the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the end of
that financial year. When the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount of
the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first,
and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the
basis of the carrying amount to each asset in the unit.
Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or
loss and is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable
amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the
determination of the amount of gain or loss on disposal.

Other intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Acquired intangible assets are recognised initially at cost.
After initial recognition, intangible assets with finite useful
lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation
for intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided
on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
Amortisation commences when the intangible assets are
available for use. The following useful lives are applied:
Copyrights 1to 10 years
Trademarks 5 to 10 years
Other intangible assets are tested for impairment as
described in note 3.19.

3.6

3.7

[k C-P)

AR BFERNETRERESE
ZEABRME EBORBEZREE
HEEM & %I I F A RATE
TTRERNR EREELEM A
W E R IRZEMREER R’
BEEEE &N A EMORZENL
O EMmE REE &M
ERZEBEMNARTEEZREER
WO EZEUZEMEE -7
BZERMREBENBRER M
TERERBMEED -

HEKEMBARR AEHEZ
KR EIESER S REEZ
EXNfemBeeE-

H\TEE (BREEUSN)

WRERBZEBTLEENTERAN

R-RMTHERR AERFEH
BR BV EERRAR R #
5 R (E 0] REHRERIRSIE - A6
RERERZEBLEERERE
REfEETRIE R FHAEE - B
BEMN R {E A A - P

ZA{ERFHMT
hiw 2 12104
5 1% 5E105

Hip & EAMGES 19/ 2 75
ETTRERF -

BEEEAMRAE F¥H 2011

69



70

B R 2% MY 5T
Notes to the Financial Statements

BHE_Z——F=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2011

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEME &)
POLICIES (continued)

3.8 Financial assets

The Group’s accounting policies for financial assets other
than investments in subsidiaries are set out below.

Financial assets are classified into financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss and loans and receivables.

Management determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition depending on the purpose
for which the financial assets were acquired and where
allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at
every reporting date.

All financial assets are recognised when, and only when,
the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instruments. Regular way purchases and sales
of financial assets are recognised on trade date. When
financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured
at fair value, plus, in the case of investments not at
fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable
transaction costs.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the rights
to receive cash flows from the investments expire or are
transferred and substantially all of the risks and rewards
of ownership have been transferred.

At each reporting date, financial assets are reviewed to
assess whether there is objective evidence of impairment.
If any such evidence exists, impairment loss is determined
and recognised based on the classification of the financial
assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BHE_Z——F=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2011

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEME &)
POLICIES (continued)

l

3.8 EWMEE (&)

3.8 Financial assets (Continued)

BRAABERRZZIEZ

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or (a)

loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading and financial
assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss.

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the
near term, or it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that are managed together
and for which there is evidence of a recent pattern
of short-term profit-taking. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives are also classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments or financial guarantee
contracts.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be
designated as a financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss, except where the embedded
derivative does not significantly modify the cash
flows or it is clear that separation of the embedded
derivative is prohibited.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BHE_T——F=A=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2011

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEME &)

POLICIES (continued)
3.8 Financial assets (Continued) 3.8

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (Continueq)

Financial assets may be designated at initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss if
the following criteria are met:

- the designation eliminates or significantly
reduces the inconsistent treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the assets
or recognising gains or losses on them on a
different basis; or

- the assets are part of a group of financial
assets which are managed and their
performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management strategy and information about
the group of financial assets is provided
internally on that basis to the key management
personnel; or

- the financial asset contains an embedded

derivative that would need to be separately
recorded.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BHE_Z——F=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2011

l

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEME &)
POLICIES (continued)

3.8 Financial assets (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (Continueq)

Subsequent to initial recognition, the financial assets
included in this category are measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Fair value is determined by reference to active
market transactions or using a valuation technique
where no active market exists. Fair value gain
or loss does not include any dividend or interest
earned on these financial assets. Interest income is
recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies
in note 3.17 to these financial statements.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Loans and
receivables are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment losses. Amortised cost is calculated
taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate and transaction
cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BHE_T——F=A=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2011

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEME &)

POLICIES (continued)
3.8 Financial assets (Continued) 3.8
Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date, financial assets other than
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
reviewed to determine whether there is any objective
evidence of impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment of individual financial
assets includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about one or more of the following
loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor; and

= a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value

of an investment in an equity instrument below its
cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BHE_Z——F=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2011

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEME &)
POLICIES (continued)

3.8 EWMEE (&)

3.8 Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets
include observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows
from the group of financial assets. Such observable
data includes but not limited to adverse changes in the
payment status of debtors in the group and, national or
local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on
the assets in the group.

If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss is
measured and recognised as follows:

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
on loans and receivables carried at amortised cost has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
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interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at E-FESENBEELEHRBZE
initial recognition). The amount of the loss is recognised R ©

in profit or loss of the period in which the impairment
occurs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BHE_Z——F=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2011

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FES:HHEME v
POLICIES (continued)

3.8 Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continueq)

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed to the extent that it does not result in a
carrying amount of the financial asset exceeding what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised at the date the impairment is reversed.
The amount of the reversal is recognised in profit or loss
of the period in which the reversal occurs.

Financial assets other than financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and trade receivables that are
stated at amortised cost, impairment losses are written
off against the corresponding assets directly. Where the
recovery of trade receivables is considered doubtful but
not remote, the impairment losses for doubtful receivables
are recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery of trade receivables is
remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is written off
against trade receivables directly and any amounts held
in the allowance account in respect of that receivable are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BHE_Z——F=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2011

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEME 2
POLICIES (continued)

3.9

3.10

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of cars, watches and jewellery
included in the inventories are determined using the
first-in, first-out method while the other inventories
with different nature are determined using the weighted
average basis, and in the case of work in progress
and finished goods, comprise direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and applicable selling expenses.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments, in individual contracts
or separated from hybrid financial instruments, are
initially recognised at fair value on the date the derivative
contract is entered into and subsequently remeasured at
fair value. Derivatives that are not designated as hedging
instruments are accounted for as financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Gains
or losses arising from changes in fair value are taken
directly to profit or loss for the year.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at banks and
in hand, demand deposits with banks and short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value. For the purpose of cash flows
presentation, cash and cash equivalents include bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BHE_Z——F=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2011

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FES:HHEME v
POLICIES (continued)

3.12 Financial liabilities

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, accrued charges, amounts due to related
parties, derivative financial instruments, borrowings and
convertible notes.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments. All interest related charges are recognised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for
borrowing costs (see note 3.21).

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying
amount is recognised in profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives including separated embedded derivatives are
measured at fair value (see note 3.10).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BHE_Z——F=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2011

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEME 2
POLICIES (continued)

312 ¢ WEE (£Z)

3.12 Financial liabilities (Continued)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
date.

Convertible notes

Convertible notes that can be converted to equity share
capital at the option of the holder, where the number of
shares that would be issued on conversion and the value
of the consideration that would be received at that time
do not vary, are accounted for as compound financial
instruments which contain both a liability component and
an equity component.

Convertible note issued by the Company that contain
both financial liability and equity components are
classified separately into respective liability and equity
components on initial recognition. On initial recognition,
the fair value of the liability component is determined
using the prevailing market interest rate for similar non-
convertible debts. The difference between the proceeds
of the issue of the convertible note and the fair value
assigned to the liability component, representing the call
option for conversion of the convertible note into equity, is
included in equity as capital reserve.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BHE_Z——F=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2011

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEME &)
POLICIES (continued)

3.12

3.13

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Convertible notes (Continued)

The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. The
equity component will remain in equity until conversion or
redemption of the convertible note.

When the convertible note is converted, the capital
reserve and the carrying value of the liability component
at the time of conversion, is transferred to share
capital and share premium as consideration for the
shares issued. If the convertible note is redeemed, the
capital reserve is released directly to retained profits/
accumulated losses.

Other financial liabilities

These financial liabilities are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Financial guarantees issued

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer (or guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BHE_Z——F=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2011

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEME &)
POLICIES (continued)

3.13

3.14

Financial guarantees issued (Continued)

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income within trade and other payables. Where
consideration is received or receivable for the issuance
of the guarantee, the consideration is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s policies applicable to
that category of asset. Where no such consideration
is received or receivable, an immediate expense is
recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition of any
deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over
the term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are recognised
if and when it becomes probable that the holder of the
guarantee will call upon the Group under the guarantee
and the amount of that claim on the Group is expected
to exceed the current carrying amount of the guarantee,
i.e., the amount initially recognised less accumulated
amortisation, where appropriate.

Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use
a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time
in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such
a determination is made based on an evaluation of
the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of
whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BHE_Z——F=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2011

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEME &)
POLICIES (continued)

3.14 Leases (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as being
held under finance leases. Leases which do not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the Group are classified as operating
leases.

Operating lease charges as the lessee

Where the Group has the right to use the assets
held under operating leases, payments made
under the leases are charged to profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the lease terms except
where an alternative basis is more representative
of the time pattern of benefits to be derived from
the leased assets. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent
rental are charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

3.14 HE (&)
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(b)

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011

HTFEEBHzEEST T

HRAKENHEREZE
E-HEEEMBERZEX
BoREBRANEREEEARE
B AHEERSEHE /N
REHERE WHETE
£ P #E 2 4B K BB 40 LB A
EHREEENEE A& 5R
RICEHE -

ERBRUACKEEHEER

WARBARERALEHE
ERBZEE AIREBEMEE
2R eEHEHNA
NBEAREERBRB NG BN
BEMEEGLE TR R
HEEEMESE 2 W fE
B RIBR SN - B YT S 22 R
ERzTHARENEEF
R ARRR 2 AR 1D - SR
HeaREEEZ S AR
RS-



B s 2% M 5T
Notes to the Financial Statements

BHE_Z——F=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2011

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEME &)
POLICIES (continued)

3.15 BE - FABERIBEE

3.15 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent

assets

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future uncertain events
not wholly within the control of the Group are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

3.16 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value of shares that have
been issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issuing
of shares are deducted from share premium (net of
any related income tax benefit) to the extent they are
incremental costs directly attributable to the equity
transaction.

3.16
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BHE_Z——F=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2011

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEME &)
POLICIES (continued)

3.17 Revenue recognition 3.17 =R

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received and receivable for the sale of goods, rendering
of services and the use by others of the Group’s assets
yielding interest, royalties and dividends, net of returns
and discounts. Provided it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and
costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised as follows:

Sales of goods are recognised upon transfer of the
significant risks and rewards of ownership to customer.
This is usually taken as the time when the goods are
delivered and the customer has accepted the goods.

Royalty income from the licensing of trademarks is
recognised on an accruals basis in accordance with the
substance of the license agreements.

Subcontracting income and income from provision of
after-sale services are recognised when services are
rendered.

Online comics viewing income is recognised on a basis
which generally coincides with the timing, when the
services are rendered.

Advertising income for advertisements on comic books
is recognised on the relevant publication date of the
Group’s comic books.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BHE_Z——F=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2011

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEME &)
POLICIES (continued)

3.18

3.19

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions. Government grants are deferred and
recognised in profit or loss over the period necessary to
match them with the costs that the grants are intended to
compensate. Government grants relating to the purchase
of assets are included liabilities as deferred government
grants in the consolidated statement of financial position
and are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the expected lives of the related assets.

Government grants relating to income is presented
in gross under “Other income” in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill arising from acquisition of subsidiaries, other
intangible assets, property, plant and equipment and
the Company’s interests in subsidiaries are subject to
impairment testing.

Goodwill and other intangible assets with an indefinite
useful life or those not yet available for use are tested for
impairment at least annually, irrespective of whether there
is any indication that they are impaired. All other assets
are tested for impairment whenever there are indications
that the asset’s carrying amount may not be recoverable.

3.18

3.19
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BHE_Z——F=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2011

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FE2:HEME »)
POLICIES (continued)

|

3.19 Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable
amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting market
conditions less costs to sell, and value-in-use. In
assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessment of
time value of money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely independent
from those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generate cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit). As a result, some assets are tested
individually for impairment and some are tested at cash-
generating unit level. Goodwill in particular is allocated to
those cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from synergies of the related business combination and
represent the lowest level within the Group at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purpose.

Impairment loss recognised for a cash-generating unit,
to which goodwill has been allocated, is credited initially
to the carrying amount of goodwill. Any remaining
impairment loss is charged pro rata to the other assets in
the cash-generating unit, except that the carrying amount
of an asset will not be reduced below its individual fair
value less cost to sell, or value-in-use, if determinable.
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BHE_Z——F=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2011

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEME &)
POLICIES (continued)

|

3.19 FEMEEZRME (&)

3.19 Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods. In respect of other assets, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the asset’'s
recoverable amount and only to the extent that the

BEREERTERNERER
E-ZEREMEE HWEEEELZ
AARESERMAZEHERSR
MEB) - RERBER ARE - HEE
RREEREETSBE KA R

RBREBERSREETCREE
(BT Ek ) 2 BN -

asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had
been recognised.

RAHEERRCEEBREESR
e 1% 2AfE R[] o BN pA A A7
B MR E TR AR
would have been recognised had the impairment been B A TAERBEIERAR D
assessed only at the end of the financial year to which the B AP g R EREEE -
interim period relates.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss,

3.20 Employee benefits 3.20 EERA

(a) EH#EF

(a) Retirement benefits

1’8 B R IKE I35 38 7€ K
RARETBIRY -

Retirement benefits to employees are provided
through defined contribution plans.

The Group operates a defined contribution REERBRGERTESET
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit giEp BETEEERS H
tAE 38 HilE A TE S R IK

[l

-8
f

scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory

Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of its BAETEl ([RERETEl]) 2
employees who are eligible to participate in the EERE—ERESFE -
MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a HRERNEEEATFEZE
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries. DB ©
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BHE_Z——F=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2011

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FES:HHEME v
POLICIES (continued)

3.20 Employee benefits (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Retirement benefits (Continued)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in the PRC are required to participate in
a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute a percentage of their payroll
costs to the central pension scheme.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss as employees render services during the
year. The Group’s obligations under these plans
is limited to the fixed percentage contributions
payable.

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the reporting date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.

3.20 EERA (&)

(a)

(b)

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BHE_Z——F=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2011

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEME 2
POLICIES (continued)

3.21

3.22

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
require a substantial period of time to be ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Income earned on temporary investments
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on those
assets is deducted from borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Accounting for income taxes

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise
those obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities
relating to the current or prior reporting periods, that
are unpaid at the reporting date. They are calculated
according to the tax rates and tax laws applicable to the
fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the taxable
profit for the year. All changes to current tax assets or
liabilities are recognised as a component of tax expense
in profit or loss.

3.21

3.22
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BHE_Z——F=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2011

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FES:HHEME v
POLICIES (continued)

I

3.22 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on
temporary differences at the reporting date between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and their respective tax bases. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised
for all deductible temporary differences, tax losses
available to be carried forward as well as other unused
tax credits, to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax
credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
taxable nor accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period the liability
is settled or the asset is realised, provided they are
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss, or in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity if they relate to items that are
charged or credited to other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011
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BHE_Z——F=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2011

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEME 2
POLICIES (continued)

3.22 Accounting for income taxes (Continued) 3.22 FTIBHigsTEE (&)

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are presented AEFHIBEEERARARIEGER

in net if, and only if, RUATBERFREZS :

(a) the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off (@ AEEFEFRGIFITER
the recognised amounts; and KB EREEHHE &

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise (o) T EIAHRE B X4 H ok R
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. BEREEREEEE

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred tax REBERERATERERZS

liabilities in net if, and only if, BETRIEEEMEEHRARRE:

(a) the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off (@) HEBLEFRGIFITER]
current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and LA % 7S BR 7 18 & 2= B AN ER

HEEHE &

(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax b) EEFEEERRELERIEE
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same B2 B8 7 [R) — B0 75 44 A it DA
taxation authority on either: T AE A — I8 P LRI FT A5

i

()  the same taxable entity; or () F—FERTEEE:

(i)  different taxable entities which intend either to (i) FEIR &R K HH
settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net (MEEAEE B ARER
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the 1 4505 sk U Bl K FE Y3
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period LEHIBEGBEHREE) N
in which significant amounts of deferred tax HRR R A E AR IR
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled EEREEXRRER
or recovered. BERESEBENTH

JERTAERE -
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FES:HHEME v
POLICIES (continued)

3.23

3.24

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011

Film rights

Film rights represent completed animations which are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
impairment losses.

Amortisation is charged to profit or loss based on the
proportion of actual income earned during the year to the
total estimated income from the exploration of film rights.
Where there is an impairment in value, the unamortised
balance is written down to its estimated recoverable
amount.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the executive directors
for their decisions about resources allocation to the
Group’s business components and for their review of
the performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information reported
to the executive directors are determined following the
Group’s major product and service lines.

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting
segment results under HKFRS 8 are the same as those
used in its financial statements prepared under HKFRSs,
except bank interest income, income tax expense,
finance costs, fair value losses on derivative financial
instruments, equity-settled share option expenses and
corporate income and expenses which are not directly
attributable to the business activities of any operating
segment are not included in arriving at the operating
results of the operating segment.

3.23

3.24
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BHE_Z——F=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2011

I

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEME 2
POLICIES (continued)

3.24

3.25

Segment reporting (Continued)

Segment assets exclude corporate assets which are
not directly attributable to the business activities of any
operating segment are not allocated to a segment, which
primarily applies to the Group’s headquarter.

Segment liabilities exclude corporate liabilities which
are not directly attributable to the business activities
of any operating segment and are not allocated to
a segment. These include current and deferred tax
liabilities, borrowings, derivative financial instruments and
convertible notes.

No asymmetrical allocations have been applied to
reportable segments.

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is
considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through
one or more intermediaries, to control the Group
or exercise significant influence over the Group in
making financial and operating policy decisions, or
has joint control over the Group;

(b) the Group and the party are subject to common
control;

3.24

3.25
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FES:HHEME v
POLICIES (continued)

3.25 Related parties (Continued)

©

the party is an associate of the Group or a joint
venture in which the Group is a venture;

the party is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent, or a
close family member of such an individual, or is an
entity under the control, joint control or significant
influence of such individuals;

the party is a close family member of a party
referred to in (a) or is an entity under the control,
joint control or significant influence of such
individuals; or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is
for the benefit of employees of the Group or of any
entity that is a related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family

members who may be expected to influence, or be

influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the
entity.

3.25 BEAL (£E)
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEME 2
POLICIES (continued)

I

3.26 Discontinued operations 3.26 BRI EEEFE

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s
business, the operations and cash flows of which can
be clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and
which represents a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, or is part of a single
co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line
of business or geographical area of operations, or is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to be
classified as held for sale, if early. It also occurs when the
operations is abandoned.

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single
amount is presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, which comprises:

- the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation; and

- the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or on
the disposal, of the assets or disposal group(s)
constituting the discontinued operation.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4. B&=st{hst & ¥ &

JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are et RAB DR BEBELREEMEE
based on historical experience and other factors, including (BRUEEFBEAMSEEESEZR
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable RE TR EITRIE AT A o

under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the AN B R R E I AT R RER - TS
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, LB EFTNEERRIEFEER S
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and RER -REFIEESZN TETBEE
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material NEEERBEZEEEFELDERARE
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities ZAtEt R BB T

within the next financial year are discussed below:

(@) Estimated impairment of goodwill (a)

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in note 3.19. The recoverable amounts of cash-
generating units have been determined based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations require the use
of estimates. Estimating the value-in-use requires the
Group to make an estimate of the expected future
cash flows from the cash-generating units and also to
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows. As at 31 March
2011, the carrying amount of goodwill was approximately
HK$580,679,000 (2010: HK$597,334,000). Details of the
impairment assessment are disclosed in note 19.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

I

BHE_Z——F=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2011

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(b)

(c)

Impairment of other non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether
there is any indication that other non-financial assets
with definite lives may be impaired. If any such indication
exists, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
assets in accordance with the accounting policy stated
in note 3.19. In assessing whether there is any indication
that other non-financial assets may be impaired, the
Group considers indications from both internal and
external sources of information such as evidence of
obsolescence or decline in economic performance of
the assets, changes in market conditions, economic
environment and customers’ tastes. These assessments
are subjective and require management’s judgements and
estimations.

Impairment of receivables

The policy for making allowance for impairment of
receivables of the Group is based on the evaluation of
collectability and ageing analysis of the receivables and
on management’s judgement. A considerable amount
of judgement is required in assessing the ultimate
realisation of these receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of
each customer/debtor. If the financial conditions of the
customers/debtors of the Group deteriorate thus resulting
in impairment as to their ability to make payments,
additional allowance for impairment may be required.
If the financial conditions of the customers/debtors of
the Group, on whose account allowance for impairment
has been made, were improved and no impairment of
their ability to make payments were noted, reversal of
allowance for impairment may be required.
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I

BHE_Z——F=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2011

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011

Impairment of inventories

The management of the Group reviews the inventories at
each reporting date, and makes allowance for impairment
of obsolete, slow-moving and impaired items. The
management estimates the net realisable value for such
inventories based primarily on the expected future market
conditions and the estimated selling price. The Group
makes allowance for impairment if the net realisable value
is below the carrying amount.

Impairment of film rights

The management of the Group reviews the film rights at
each reporting date, and makes allowance for impairment
when necessary. The management estimates the
recoverable amount of film rights based primarily on the
expected future market conditions and the estimated
income. The Group makes allowance for impairment if the
recoverable amount is below the net carrying amount.

Valuation of derivative financial instruments

The fair values of the derivative financial instruments as
at 31 March 2010 were determined by Roma Appraisals
Limited (“Roma”), a firm of independent professional
valuers, whereas the fair values of the derivative financial
instruments upon conversion of the underlying convertible
notes were determined by the management. Binomial
Option Pricing Model was used in determining the fair
value of the derivative financial instruments. This valuation
model requires the input of subjective assumptions,
including the risk free rate, stock price, estimated volatility
and expected life of the options. Changes in subjective
input assumptions can materially affect the fair value
estimate. Details of the fair values of the derivative
financial instruments are disclosed in note 32.
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BHE_Z——F=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2011

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4. BEEEr{sr R ¥ E (2)

I

JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(g) Valuation of convertible notes

The management uses their judgement in selecting an
appropriate valuation technique for the Group’s and the
Company’s convertible notes at initial recognition which
are not quoted in the active market. Valuation techniques
commonly used by market practitioners are applied.
The fair value of convertible notes at initial recognition
is estimated by Roma based on actual transactions of
the financial instruments in the market or transactions
of similar financial instruments which generally represent
the best estimate of the market value. The fair value of
convertible notes at initial recognition varies with different
variable and certain subjective assumptions. Any changes
in these variables so adopted may materially affect the
estimation of the fair value of convertible notes. Details of
the fair value of convertible notes at initial recognition are
disclosed in note 31.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The executive directors have identified the following reportable
operating segments:

Trading of automobiles and related parts and accessories
and provision of after-sale services — Distribute branded cars,
namely Bentley, Lamborghini and Rolls-Royce, and provide
related after-sale services;

Trading of branded watches - Distribute branded watches,
namely Richard Mille, DeWitt, Parmigiani and delLaCour
BiTourbillion;

Trading of branded jewellery — Distribute branded jewellery,
namely Boucheron and Federico Buccellati;

Trading of fine wine — Distribute certain brands of fine wines;
and

Comics and animations development — Publish and distribute
comic books, provide sub-contracting services for animations
production and distribute and broadcast animations. This
segment was discontinued in the year.
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BHE_Z——F=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2011

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

5.

Each of these operating segments is managed separately
as each of the product and service lines requires different
resources as well as marketing approaches. Inter-segment
transactions are priced with reference to prices charged to

external parties for similar order.

5. pEER (&)

HREEERNRBRFAAZERKE
HITHBR BEEEEIBIOFAE
2D EHERS T2 E 3B EWRR
SNERA L ZBRRTMEE

2011
8-
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
BALE
BREEXK ReELy
Trading of
automobiles
and related
parts and
accessories
and provision Trading of Trading of Trading of Comics and
of after-sale branded branded fine animations
services watches jewellery wines development Total
RERER
SHREH
EARRM ZBF & ZEHE ] BER
E&RY g% g5 g5 BERR At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER
Revenue from external customers RENDEP 2 Wk 3,070,935 137,823 16,065 61,865 36,297 3,322,985
Other income Ei A 21,292 2,17 558 25,351 563 49,935
Reportable segment revenue AR LB E 3,002,227 139,994 16,623 87,216 36,860 3,372,920
Reportable segment results AREDDEE 211,628 18,770 72 35,019 (16,022) 249,467
Allowance for impairment ERFEREERS
of receivables - - - - 3,500 3,500
Amortisation of; B
- film rights —~FhnE - - - - 2,490 2,490
- other intangible assets -HihBFEE - 1,277 260 - - 1,537
Depreciation of property, nE BEREENE
plant and equipment 6,042 2,728 1,147 1,101 302 11,320
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEHBARIZBE - - - - 4,511 4,511
Property, plant and equipment written-off WHME BERR - - - - 519 519
Write-down of inventories to MREEZETERE
net realisable value - - - - 670 670
Reportable segment assets HRESBEE 1,158,546 295,603 68,309 174,868 - 1,697,326
Corporate assets: REEE:
— financial assets -SBEE 5,134
- non-financial assets -FEREE 1,463
Consolidated total assets GRUEE 1,703,923
Additions to non-current segment assets FRREFRDHDEE
during the year 29,707 21,094 9,609 11,930 - 72,340
Reportable segment liabilities 345,837 19,487 1,380 4,832 - 371,536
Corporate liabilities:
— financial liabilities 55,103
- non-financial liabilities 8,833
Consolidated total liabilities GAUEE 435,472

100 SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2011



BT R PY ot

Notes to the Financial Statements

BHE_Z——F=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2011

. > M -
5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. 2HER (2
2010
—Z-%F
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
BRIE
FEREEY REEH
Trading of
automobiles
and related
parts and
accessories
and provision Trading of Trading of Trading of Comics and
of after-sale branded branded fine animations
services watches jewellery wines development Total
REREE
THREH
5 RiRt AT BRRE Eayi B2
B’k g5 g5 g5 HEER At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THET THET TR TET
Revenue from external customers RENDEE 2 Wiz 933,621 104,245 2,053 40,135 139,074 1,219,128
Other income HipA 18,977 17 = = 9,095 28,189
Reportable segment revenue ARED BRE 962,598 104,362 2,058 40,135 148,169 1,247,317
Reportable segment results TREDPEE 91,519 35,338 (182) 14,379 6,945 147,999
Allowance for impairment ERFIEREERE
of receivables - - - - 1,625 1,625
Amortisation of: &y
— film rights —FhRE - - - - 4,641 4,641
- other intangible assets -Hi BV EE - 1,249 115 - 4,760 6,124
Depreciation of property, nE BEREENE
plant and equipment 2,245 307 9 = 1,750 4,397
Property, plant and equipment written-off M #5%1% « # 2 R & - - - - 474 474
Write-down of inventories to WATEZIEREE
net realisable value - - - - 1,975 1,975
Reportable segment assets RESBEE 859,813 110,179 33,389 30,203 107,952 1,141,536
Corporate assets: NABE:
- financial assets -SRAE 40,108
- non-financial assets ~FEREE 3,360
Consolidated total assets GeBBE 1,184,999
Additions to non-current segment assets ~ FREEF R BEE
during the year 7,343 1,953 2,250 - 1,357 12,908
Reportable segment liabilities AREPBEE 163,205 14,820 - - 25,741 203,766
Corporate liabilties: AEBE:
— financial liabilities -tRAaf 101,258
- non-financial liabilities —FeRAR 6,069
Consolidated total liabilities GRNERE 311,008
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BHE_Z——F=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2011

I

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuea) 5. 7HER &)
The total presented for the Group’s operating segments Fr2 7R KB EE D 3 26 58T HER
reconcile to the Group’s key financial figures as presented in EUMBBEMEIAEE 2 EZHHEH
the consolidated financial statements as follows: FHERMOT :
2011 2010
—E——F —E—ZF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FH T
Reportable segment results AR E D HEE 249,467 147,999
Bank interest income HR1T A B WA 601 196
Fair value losses on derivative financial T4 € T A 2 AR EEE
instruments (3,710) (588)
Equity — settled share option expenses LA#E 25 45 E 7 BE IR #E B 2 (18,991) =
Unallocated corporate expenses AOBEARRX (26,052) (17,161)
Finance costs & B 7R (8,567) (12,199)
Profit before income tax from BELCEEBRERIELE
continuing and discontinued EXB2BRAEE AR T -
operations, including loss BREHNEMNBAR ZEE
on disposal of subsidiaries 192,748 118,247
The Group’s revenues from external customers and its non- REBEKRBIINBE 2 Wm RIEREE
current assets (other than financial instruments) are divided into E(eRITARINIZTIHES S :

the following geographical areas:

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets
REMPEE 2 E ERBEE
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——F —E-2F —E——F —T-F
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
TER T TR FET
Mainland China and B A R B
Hong Kong (& E)
(domicile) 3,320,751 1,217,212 664,199 627,146
Others Hih 2,234 1,916 - =
3,322,985 1,219,128 664,199 627,146
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5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The geographical location of customers is based on the
location at which the services were provided or the goods
delivered. The geographical location of the non-current assets
is based on the physical location of the assets.

REVENUE

The Group’s principal activities are disclosed in note 1 to these
financial statements. Turnover of the Group is the revenue from
these activities.

Revenue from the Group’s principal activities recognised during

the year is as follows:

5.

THER (&)
EEMENEERERREE R E
BEMERDEENE N EER ST
TE 1 25 EL RS o

g

AEMY FBEBRN AN KR M
WE ANERY SEENRE L ZEY
2 g 3b o

FRABRREAREEBEXH 2 Watin

T

2011 2010
—E——F —ET-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FE T
Continuing operations FEREER
Sale of automobiles MEHE 3,016,948 892,595
Sale of branded jewellery HRIREHE 16,065 2,053
Sale of branded watches ZHEFEIHE 137,823 104,245
Sale of fine wines BEHE 61,865 40,135
Income from provision of REEZRBEKA
after-sale services 53,987 41,026
3,286,688 1,080,054
Discontinued operation ERIEEEEK
Sale of comics books EEEHEMEE 32,616 71,050
Sale of comics scripts BEBIANHEE 52 12
Sale of copyrights hi 1 8 & - 26,000
Sale of merchandised goods 723 am 5H & 860 943
Royalty income HHEERA 2,727 6,500
Subcontracting income for animation  ZhE& & ¢E i T Uk A
production 28 34,385
Online comics viewing income HMESEHBEWA 14 184
36,297 139,074
Total revenue B 3,322,985 1,219,128

BEEEAMRAE F¥H 2011

103



BT R PY ot

Notes to the Financial Statements

BHE_Z——F=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2011

I

and distributions of animations.

f Unofficial name for translation purpose only.

B) 5,944,000/ 7T °

7. OTHER INCOME 7. HftgA
2011 2010
—E——F —E—FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TAT

Continuing operations BEREEK

Bank interest income RIT A S WA 591 86

Bonus receivable from suppliers HERLG T 2 E 10,698 4,545

Income from exhibitions AN 1,767 =

Income from insurance brokerage R B & A2 WA 7,565 1,077

Fair value gains on derivative financial T4/ T AR R ERZ

instruments - 1,887
Fair value gains on financial assets RAALEREBERERINEZ

at fair value through profit or loss ERMEEZAREBERZE 23,205 =
Other income from car dealership RERELERE 2 EaIA - 9,312
Others HAty 2,155 1,107
Rental income Ha2UWA 3,982 -
Write-back of deposits received B E B Wiz e - 1,166

49,963 19,180

Discontinued operation DRIEEEER

Advertising income & & WA 4 48

Allowance for impairment of & [B] & Wm0 I8 Rk (B 22 1

receivables written-back - 87
Amortisation of government grants B SH BT A B (BT REG) )

(Note (i) - 116
Bank interest income FRITH B HA 10 110
Colour and manuscript income FERESKA 200 -
Exchange gains, net bE 5 a5 ER 20 246
Gain on disposals of property, plant HEME B RZH 2

and equipment e 158 =
Government grants (Note (ii)) B 4 B (B 3£ i) ) - 5,944
Others Hit 181 437
Other income from animations REBEBHEB 2 HMKA - 2,217

573 9,205

Total other income H b I A 4B RE 50,536 28,385

Notes: Pt = -

()  The Group was entitled to receive government grants based 0] AEBEBREREBIZAEENNE A A
on 15% of the paid-up capital of a subsidiary of the Group. ARBEEEREFGR AR ([BER
Nanjing Hongying Anmie-cartoon Entertainment Company BE] REEMARR R ZME
Limited! (“Nanjing Hongying”), an indirect owned subsidiary of B RaE)MEERI5%s E 2 K
the Company before disposals, within 3 years from the date FFHB HE AR EA S B AR
of its establishment. The amount was recognised as deferred REB=F -FHcHEERK/ELTK
government grants and was amortised to profit or loss over 15 R - REZAD T HEFHH-
years.

(i)  During the year ended 31 March 2010, the Group was entitled (i) REE—ZE—ZFTF=FA=+—HLLF
to receive, and recognised directly in profit or loss, grants of B AEBEAERKEWE RN B NEE
HK$5,944,000 from the government of the PRC for productions ERTPEBNRRUERETHE ZH

RIEEA R ERBEREHT
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I

8. OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS) 8. KRB (FEH#E)
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER F& T
Continuing operations: BEKSEEK:
Operating profit are arrived L RAEHBRATIER
at after charging:
Amortisation of other intangible B B
assets* 1,537 1,364
Auditor’s remuneration V%( Bl Bl & 1,590 550
Add: Under-provision in prior years m:-BEFEREESR 550 10
2,140 560
Cost of inventories recognised as BRI 2FEEKA
expense 2,919,521 896,846
Depreciation of property, plant and Y% s RRE T EM
equipment### 12,172 3,788
Equity-settled share option expenses & TIAINE B A L
for eligible persons other than staff DHERGEE  BERERS 7,313 -
Exchange losses, net ME 5 &8 55 4,698 65
Fair value losses on derivative financial $T4 & @ T B2 A SEEE"
instruments* 3,710 588
Losses on disposals of property, plant &3 #E KR E 2
and equipment** B - 109
Operating lease payments in respect  FAEEF 2 & E A E KA
of rented premises 49,017 22,346
Defined contribution retirement JE 58 it K (B B R K& A
benefits scheme contributions &I 5K
for employees 1,922 1,001
Staff costs, including directors’ BEIRA BREEZHE
emoluments 24,899 16,714
Equity-settled share option expenses ~ Az #4EE 2 B TR #E
for staff B < 11,678 -
Total staff costs and staff costs BETIRABRELNIRS
charged to profit or loss Mz B ITRA 38,499 17,715
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8. OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS) (Continued) 8. R&EHM(FE#E) (&)
2011 2010
—E——F —ET-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FE T
Discontinued operation: ERILEEEK:
Operating (loss)/profit are arrived at e (B SR Bk
after charging: L/(TIE H:
Allowance for impairment of JE W SR I R (B 2
receivables* 3,500 1,625
Amortisation of film rights* 52 b Wi R S 2,490 4,641
Amortisation of other intangible H b £ A B S
assets™ - 4,760
Auditor’s remuneration 1% A B & - 640
Cost of inventories recognised as ERERI 2 FEERA -
expense, including the following BEATREFT AR ST
expenses which are also included BEzSEBEBE 2 AY
in the respective total amounts
separately disclosed 19,358 60,593
— Write-down of inventories to net —WoRTF B =] #5R )% E
realisable value* 670 1,975
— Depreciation —E 102 1,077
- Staff costs —B I~ 7,433 46,253
Depreciation of property, plant and VI HEs R AR 2 IrEH
equipment### 302 1,750
Losses on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AR ZEE 4,511 =
Operating lease payments HEBF 2 E&EHER
in respect of rented premises 2,471 5,362
Property, plant and equipment Y% - 2SR AR s
written-off* 519 474
Defined contribution retirement TE R KR B RINEF
benefits scheme contributions ST EI K
for employees 596 1,917
Staff costs, including directors’ BINA BREEFHE
emoluments 15,977 53,968
Total staff costs E TR A4 16,573 55,885
Amounts capitalised in inventories REEER Lz ®HE (585) (5,939)
Staff costs charged to profit or loss REZMB 28 THRA 15,988 49,946
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8. OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS) (continued)

#

##

*k

The amounts have been included in cost of sales.

Amortisation of other intangible assets for continuing
operations of HK$1,537,000 (2010: HK$1,364,000) has been
included in administrative expenses.

Amortisation of other intangible assets for discontinued
operation of nil (2010: HK$4,760,000) had been included in
cost of sales.

Depreciation for continuing operations of HK$9,514,000
(2010: HK$1,498,000) has been included in selling and
distribution costs and HK$2,658,000 (2010: HK$2,290,000)
has been included in administrative expenses.

Depreciation for discontinued operation of HK$102,000
(2010: HK$1,077,000) has been included in cost of sales
and HK$200,000 (2010: HK$673,000) has been included in
administrative expenses.

The amounts have been included in other operating
expenses.

The amounts have been included in administrative expenses.

8. REHAN(EE) »

##

#H##

*k

SREEFTAHEKAK -

& 8 R S 7 1,637,00058 7T E i £
FEES#E(ZF—ZF:1,364,000
BIL) Bt AITHEA -

ERIEGEEBTEEMETLEE
BHETAEHERA(ZE—ZF:
4,760,000 7T ) °

48 48 4 ¥ 7% 29,514,000 7T T &

— T —F 4 :1,498,000 T ) Bt A
$HE & S AN ¢ 2,658,000/ 7T #T
E (= —Z4:2,290,000/8 L) Bt
ATREM -

B A% 1E &8 & R 2 102,000 T iT &
(ZZ—Z4:1,077,000E L) E5t A
€ B 200,000 T E (==
—Z 4 :673,000% 7T) BT AT B
}Eﬁo

SHEAAREMKEEERR -

SHEEFATHER -
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9. FINANCE COSTS 9. BUERAK
2011 2010
—B——F —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHEx FHET
Continuing operations BEREEL
Interest expenses on financial liabilities R E$HK AT BR 2 &R A &
stated at amortised costs: MEFAX:
- bank loans and overdrafts wholly — AR AFABHEEZ
repayable within five year RITEREX 2,461 442
— other loans wholly repayable —ARAFABHEEZ
within five years HiER - 418
— effective interest expenses on —AFEABBREREZ
convertible notes for the year BERFERE
(Note 31) (FfF=E31) 6,095 12,134
— over-provision of effective interest - BAEFENBRREEZ
expenses on convertible notes in BERF BB
prior years (Note 31) B 4E (MH5E31) - (795)
8,556 12,199
Discontinued operation ERIEEEEK
Interest expenses on financial liabilities R E# K AFIER 2 @R A &
stated at amortised costs: MEFRX:
— other loans wholly repayable within —HRAFRNEBHEEZ
five years H A B3k 11 -
8,567 12,199
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. fTBH X H

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2010: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the
year. Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on the
estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation
prevailing in the locations in which the Group operates.

Income tax of certain subsidiaries of the Company in the PRC
is charged at progressive rates ranging from 18% to 25%
(2010: 18% to 25%) on deemed profits calculated at 6%
to 10% (2010: 6% to 10%) on revenue in accordance with
relevant tax regulations in the PRC.

Nanjing Hongying is established in Nanjing High and Advance
Technological Industries Development Zone, of which Nanjing
Hongying is exempted from the PRC Corporate Income Tax for
the two years since 1 January 2007 and are thereafter subject
to a tax rate at 15% for the following three years.

EBEFMEH DIBEANF R T ERT R
AR T ZE16.5% (ZE—FF:16.5% )
STEBINERFRENREAFE 2/
STERB R IR AR B L& MR 2 IRTT
FRETE -

ERPEAENSER  ARRETH
BIPH B A R Z TS B T A MR 25 2 6%
10% (ZE—Z2F 6%E10%):tEZ
HETE 4 M IE18%E25% (—ZF — T4

18%%E25% ) 2 BT RN -

MRBERNERRARMERXRAERMNK
VoA EREER TR EFE A
HEEREHNHEEEMSHMF -
HE=ZFRR15% 2 M B HANTHE R E
PIRER

Continuing operations Discontinued operation Total
BESEEY BALEERH ait
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
“g--% -E-%f -3--f -E-%% -E--f CEZ-%f
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TAL Tén TR TEn TAT
Current tax REEHE
Hong Kong: Bk
Current year REE 1,477 469 - 9% 1,477 564
Under-provision in respect of ~ BAEFEEEETE
prior years - 108 - = - 108
Overseas: o
Current year FER 5,884 3,507 - 131 5,884 3,728
7,361 4,174 - 226 7,361 4,400
Deferred tax (Note 33) BRI (i:E33)
Current year AERE 2,528 (43) - (22) 2,528 (65)
Under-provision in respect of ~ BEFERETR
prior years - 249 - = - 249
2,528 206 - (22) 2,528 184
Total income tax expense FERTLEE 9,889 4,380 - 204 9,889 4,584
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—E——F®=ZA=+—HItFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2011

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continuead)

Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting

profit at applicable tax rates:

10.

FrE®zH 2

RERAREXAERBHR D EE 5 EF

ZHER:

2011 2010
—B——F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET T
Profit before income tax from BREEERDRIEKEER
continuing and discontinued ZBRETERANER - B
operations, including loss on HEWBARZEE
disposal of subsidiaries 192,748 118,247
Tax on profit before income tax and B FT 1S % A1 4 A1) K 1 78 i 7
deemed profits, calculated at the ZTIE - RE AR A
rates applicable to profits in the tax RIBREER 252
jurisdictions concerned MEHE 2,762 4,345
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BERBRE BB ZE (17) (900)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses A HIE Sz 2 Fii5 2 & 6,989 4,471
Tax effect of unused tax losses not RERZABRATIBEEZ
recognised Bz E 2,001 812
Tax effect of temporary difference not KR Z FRlF =% 2
recognised M2 37 4)
Tax effect of prior years’ unrecognised 7K E B 1B Eifﬂiﬁﬁub
tax losses utilised this year ZHIEBECHREEE (1,883) (4,480)
Tax effect of utilisation of unrecognised Eh AR MER ZIEL T E &=
deferred tax assets 2GR ' - (a7
Under-provision of Hong Kong BEFERBASHEE
profits tax in prior years TR - 108
Under-provision of deferred tax in BEFERLEHIEREDE
prior years - 249
Income tax expense Fr5 ik i 9,889 4,584
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BHE_Z——F=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2011

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 11. EEME
Retirement
Salaries benefit
Directors’ and scheme Share-based
fees allowances contributions payment Total
RAKEH N5 A
EEHe HeREH EMR ERZAR A%t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TER TER TER TER
Year ended 31 March 2011 HE-E-——£
ZA=t-HL
5B
Executive directors: HITEE:
Tong Kai Lap (“Mr. Tong’) BRI ([BxE]) 180 1,860 12 3,072 5,124
Zheng Hao Jiang 5T 1,980 - - 3,072 5,052
Zhao Xiao Dong R 1,200 - - 3,072 4,272
Non-executive directors: FHTEE:
Zhang Si Jian REE 180 - - 614 794
Gao Yu (appointed on BE(R=2—%F
30 September 2010) NA=1+H
EZR1E) 920 - - - 92
Qi Jian Wei (appointed on BRE
30 September 2010) (R=ZZ—%F
hA=+A
EZ{E) 920 - - - 920
Independent non-executive ~ BUHHITEE
directors:
Choy Sze Chung, Jojo R 180 - - 308 488
Lam Kwok Cheong WE & 180 - - 308 488
Lee Thomas Kang Bor THEHR 180 - - 308 488
Total G 4,260 1,860 12 10,754 16,886
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BHE_Z——F=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2011

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

11. EEME (2

Retirement
Salaries benefit
Directors’ and scheme
fees allowances contributions Total
BT
EE0S e KRS SHEIE K A
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TET FHET FHET
Year ended BHEZZT -4
31 March 2010 ZR=+—-BLEE
Executive directors: HiTEE:
Mr. Tong B 180 1,860 12 2,052
Zheng Hao Jiang EfET 1,980 - 12 1,992
Zhao Xiao Dong HINR (RZZEZNEF
(redesignated as NA—BATEE
executive director on HITESE)
1 September 2009) 775 200 7 982
Wong Chun Keung BiRE (RZZETNEF
(resigned on +ZATImA#E)
14 December 2009) 120 488 8 616
Non-executive director:  FE# 772 F -
Zhang Si Jian REBR(RZZEZTNF
(appointed on TZATIEAE
14 December 2009) Z1E) 54 - - 54
Independent non- B TESE
executive directors:
Choy Sze Chung, Jojo £ 212 180 - - 180
Lam Kwok Cheong WE & 180 - - 180
Lee Thomas Kang Bor &85 )i 180 - — 180
Total ast 3,649 2,548 39 6,236

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office. None of the
directors has waived or agreed to waive any emoluments
during the year.

RREFER AEBEYEFAESE M
e AMERIMAREB IR IMAREE
R RS ERBR cHE-FA -8
BEENRARNBERETAME -
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BHE_Z——F=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2011

12. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, three (2010: three) were directors of the Company
whose emoluments are disclosed in note 11 above. The
emoluments payable to the remaining two (2010: two)

12. AU BRSHE AL

ERAEERURSH

AL HEp=f

—E-THE ZMA)RARAEF K
FZMEER EXHENRE - FAR
NMESML (T —FF M) &%

individuals during the year were as follows: AT ZBEMT -
2011 2010
—E——F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FE T
Salaries and other benefits Fe hEMER 2,681 4,779
Retirement benefit scheme R RAE T ET B 5k
contributions 24 24
Share-based payment VARE 0 B E ] 2 1 5k 308 -
3,013 4,803
The emoluments fell within the following bands: Bl 0 F T 548 5 -
2011 2010
—E——F —T—TF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE AEL
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/ 8 T2
1,500,000/ JT 1 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/& L&
2,000,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 L2
3,500,000/ 7T - 1
2 2

13. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE OWNERS
OF THE COMPANY

Of the consolidated profit attributable to owners of the
Company of HK$183,677,000 (2010: HK$113,016,000), a loss
of HK$56,490,000 (2010: profit of HK$3,263,000) has dealt

with in the financial statements of the Company.

13. A AT R AEIEREF

RARBHEEBANEWLLESE BT
183,677,000 L (=& — & F:
113,016,000/ 7T ) # » 56,490,000/ 7T
— T —ZF )5 F3,263,000/8 L) Z
EEER AR BERERFER-
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BHE_Z——F=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2011

14. DIVIDENDS 14. R &
(a) Dividends attributable to the year (a) EEEEMLKER
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T T
Interim dividends of HK0.3 cent A Hifi% 2 & §20.37 1L
per share (2010: HKO.5 cent) (ZE—ZF:0.551)
— to existing shareholders — RS TR AFRE 8,469 10,556
— to other shareholders* — IR T E MR R 460 2,875
8,929 13,431
Proposed final dividend of R R B AR S 8 AR 1 (1L
HK1 cent per share (ZE—ZF:0.351)
(2010: HKO.3 cent) 29,763 8,059
38,692 21,490
(b) Dividends attributable to previous financial year, (b) REREBHERIKFT 2 LE—B K
approved and paid during the year FEEMARE
2011 2010
—E——F —E—ZF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Final dividend of HK0.3 cent REAR B & A%0.378 1l
per share (2010: Nil) —T—TEE)
- to existing shareholders — kN THREBRRE 8,059 -
— to other shareholders* — R T EM AR 450 =
8,509 -
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BHE_Z——F=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2011

14. RE (&)

14. DIVIDENDS (continued)

(b) Dividends attributable to previous financial year,
approved and paid during the year (Continued)

Notes:

Subsequent to 30 September 2009, an aggregate of
575,000,000 ordinary shares were issued pursuant to
the conversion of convertible notes (the “New Shares I”).
The holders of the New Shares | were also entitled to the
interim dividend pursuant to the relevant provisions in the
Company’s Bye-laws. Accordingly, an interim dividend of
HK$2,875,000 was paid to the holders of the New Shares
I

Subsequent to 30 September 2010, certain share options
and convertible notes were exercised and converted and
an aggregate of 153,416,000 ordinary shares (the “New
Shares II”) were issued. The holders of the New Shares
Il were also entitled to the interim dividend pursuant
to the relevant provisions in the Company’s Bye-laws.
Accordingly, an interim dividend of HK$460,000 was paid
to the holders of the New Shares II.

Pursuant to the subscription agreement of the convertible
notes, the holders of convertible notes were also entitled
to an equivalent amount of final dividend per share for
the year ended 31 March 2010, namely As-if dividend,
in the event of any capital distribution being declared on
the shares. Accordingly, final dividend of approximately
HK$450,000 was paid to the holders of convertible notes
during the year ended 31 March 2011.

The directors of the Company recommend the payment of a
final dividend out of the contributed surplus of the Company
of HK1 cent per ordinary share, totalling HK$29,763,000 in
respect of the year ended 31 March 2011. Such a dividend
is to be approved by the Company’s shareholders at the
upcoming Annual General Meeting. The proposed dividend
has not been reflected as a dividend payable in these financial
statements, but will be reflected as an appropriation of
contributed surplus for the year ended 31 March 2011.

(b)

REREHERIKMS 2 £E—FK
FERGRE (&)

i & -

R=ZZZhFALA=+H%E &
#575,000,0000% % i A% A 7] #2
BREREERmERET ([ —
BERRG ) - BIBARR R QB4
AlB RIS E— 8RGO IR
ATRAI R R HAAR B o it -
HAR% B.2,875,00078 7T &K I F
E—HFROIFTEAC

RZZE—ZTFAA=+H%K &
THERERAIBRERETES
Rugit - Kk & #£153,416,000
A& AR 1T ([ AR
B1) - RIEBAARARAAIEREE
3 B HEFR G IFH AIRA
BRFHR S - Bt R HIR S
460,000 7T B IR 1 T 88 — #t 3
BRDFEB A -

BB AT RARZR 2 REHZ W
AR B IR E AR A DR + Bl AT
BRBEIFEANGEERES
REE=—ZT—ZTF=F=+—8H
HFEEZBRAREREZEHE
BIR AR S - FE It REARR B4
450,000 TEREZ =T ——
F=ZA=t+—BUEFEEERMNFTH
BREEFEA

RAREZEBRRARRZHARBT
BE_Z——F=RA=1+—HILFEIK
BERLTBRIBW RS @ B
29,763,000 7T ° i IR B AR AN A 7 iR
RAREERREF K E#EE - Bk
B ERZEMB®RE LR AEMR
B EBERMAEE-_T——F=A
=+ BUEFEZHRARGBER-
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BHE_Z——F=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2011

15. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 15.

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share
are based on:

gREFN(EHE)

FREARBERF, (BER) HRE
THERAE

(a) Basic (a) EX
2011 2010
—E——F —T—TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FH T
Earnings/(loss) BR(ER)
Profit from continuing operations 5 48 &8 & ¥ 75 2 % 7l 198,882 106,812
Result attributable to non- FECE IS 2R ER
controlling interests from FEAE A
continuing operations 430 =
Profit attributable to equity RELEEB 2N AR#ER
holders of the Company A AE R
from continuing operations 199,312 106,812
(Loss)/profit from discontinued ERIEREER
operation (BE]) % (16,023) 6,851
Result attributable to non- BRI 5T 2 JEIE R
controlling interests from R EE
discontinued operation 388 (647)
(Loss)/profit attributable to equity T4 1F & & ¥ 7 2 ANA 7
holders of the Company from DA ARG
discontinued operation (E18) 5 F (15,635) 6,204
Profit attributable to equity AR EIERIEA A B R F
holders of the Company 183,677 113,016
2011 2010
—E2——F —T—TF

Weighted average number of 217 & iR i F 19 &
ordinary shares in issue

Basic earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by dividing
the profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue during the year.

2,823,130,463 2,186,796,687

FREARRN, (BER)IREFAXR
NEERFAEARERN(BE)G
B BITEBBRINEFOHETE -
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15. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (Continued) 15. 8REF  (BE) @
(b) Diluted (b) #8F
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by dividing SREERN S (BE) HiREE
AARBIEDSRHE ARGEERAER
wmA (BER)BRABBETERR
EREME T BEE -

the adjusted profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders of
the Company by the adjusted weighted average number
of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

2011 2010
—E——F —E-ZF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TAT
Earnings/(loss) BR(ER)
Profit attributable to equity FEICE X 2 AR A=
holders of the Company B AEG R
from continuing operations 199,312 106,812
Add: Effective interest expenses — fl: AJ AR ZIE 2 BT 8
on convertible notes 53 - 12,134
Adjusted profit attributable to REBELEEB 2NN RER
equity holders of the Company BB A FE (5 £ 2 5 A
from continuing operations 199,312 118,946
(Loss)/profit attributable to equity B4 IFAE & %752 A A A
holders of the Company from B A ARG (BER),/
discontinued operation kil (15,635) 6,204
Adjusted profit attributable to RRABERTFB AEL
equity holders of the Company £ T B A 183,677 125,150
2011 2010
= i —T-T%
Adjusted weighted average ERTEBERLCHEME
number of ordinary shares T8

in issue

2,826,453,975

2,712,865,179
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BHE_Z——F=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2011

15. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (continued) 15. 8REBHN  (E8) (&)

(b) Diluted (Continued)

The weighted average number of ordinary shares used
in the calculation of diluted earnings/(loss) per share
was calculated based on the weighted average of
2,823,130,463 ordinary shares in issue during the year
ended 31 March 2011 (2010: 2,186,796,687) as used in
the calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share plus the
weighted average of 3,323,512 ordinary shares deemed
to be issued at no consideration as if all the outstanding
share options had been exercised (2010: 526,068,492
ordinary shares deemed to be issued at no consideration
as if all the Company’s convertible notes had been
converted).

16. DISCONTINUED OPERATION

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Group entered into
agreements to dispose of its entire interests in Jade Dynasty
Multi-media Development Limited (“JDMM”) and Jade Dynasty
Holdings Limited (“JDH”) and their respective subsidiaries, the
disposals were completed on 27 April 2010 and 18 November
2010 respectively. The operation of the publications and
distributions of comic books and animation development
carried out by JDH and JDMM and their respective subsidiaries
up to the dates of disposals was presented in the consolidated
financial statements of the Group as a discontinued operation.

Details of the JDH and JDMM disposals are described in note
36.

(b) #58 (&)

REtESREBEERF, (EE)
2RI INRE B TR R A A
HEEREAAF (BB)Z
HE-_ZT——F=A=+—HIL
FEDETERRMETAH
2,823,130,463k (=T —ZF F:
2,186,796,687%) * 5 HN & &0 BT
BERITEBREDETEMER
VEME (B 21T 2 LB AR I 39 &L
3,323 512 (ZE—ZFF : B0
KRR ERRERD EH
BMEARIEEERT 2 ERmBRM
7 15 £1526,068,4920% ) 5T & o

16. CRIERE X

REZE—ZE——F=A=+—HIHF
B AEBEDBELD S K Jade
Dynasty Multi-media Development
Limited ([JDMM |) - EEFHZERFR
AAI(TEEFA])RREZBZWER
AlzeHER HEFHEEDHIN T
—EFPAZF+tHRZTE—TF+—
A+NBZEX - E25  IDMME K E %
BB RARREZHEBRARE L
RRBETEEEHZUARDERBEER -
ERAEBGEMBREREINA/DK

EEHANIDMMH EFIE Z F BN
36 ©
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BHE_Z——F=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2011

16. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continuea) 16. ERIEREXK (#)
An analysis of the results and cash flows of discontinued HAGES2AMARERGEABS RS
operation included in the consolidated statement of ETBRFES R SR e e
comprehensive income and the consolidated statement of cash ST :
flows are as follows: 7
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FTF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FHET T T
(Loss)/profit for the year from BRILGCEER 2 KFE
discontinued operation: (B18) & H
Revenue L& 6 36,297 139,074
Cost of sales 55 A AR (33,888) (111,055)
Gross profit EF 2,409 28,019
Other income H At Yo A 7 573 9,205
Selling and distribution costs SHE R SHK AR (1,665) (2,991)
Administrative expenses THER (8,799) (25,079)
Other operating expenses H b & A (4,019) (2,099)
Operating (loss)/profit K (FE) B 8 (11,501) 7,055
Finance costs & pK AR S (11) -
(Loss)/profit before income tax KR Fr 8% A1 (E1E)
il (11,512) 7,055
Income tax expense FriS M sz i 10 - (204)
(Loss)/profit for the year KEZE (BE),HH (11,512) 6,851
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries i & M /& A &l 2 E5i8 36 (4,511) =
(Loss)/profit for the year from BRIEEE R 2 AFEE
discontinued operation (E518) /& 7 (16,023) 6,851
Cash flows used in ERIEKEEBTIARS
discontinued operation: mE
Net cash used in operating KEEEFTAE 258
activities (1,737) (12,014)
Net cash generated from/ BEEBHE,/ (FTA)
(used in) investing activities IR & F5 190 (794)
Effect of foreign exchange rate  [EX & &) 2 2 FE
changes, net 650 (148)
Net cash outflow RE ML FRE (897) (12,956)
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. ¥ HKBRRE
GROUP rE
Furniture,
fixtures and Motor
Buildings equipment vehicles Total
BR - -KER
¥ B3] RE &t
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET TAL THAL
At 1 April 2009 RZZEZNFNA—H
Cost A - 23,965 5,879 29,844
Accumulated depreciation Z&t#rE - (9,408) (1,669) (11,072)
Net carrying amount FEREE - 14,562 4,210 18,772
Year ended BE-T-Z25=H
31 March 2010 =t—HLEFE
Opening net FNFREE
carrying amount = 14,562 4,210 18,772
Exchange differences fE X =8 - 15 2 17
Additions NE 447 10,292 1,208 11,947
Disposals HE - (141) (225) (366)
Write-off ik - (474) - (474)
Depreciation neE - 4,161) (1,377) (5,538)
Closing net carrying FRFEREAE
amount 447 20,093 3,818 24,358
At 31 March 2010 R-ZZE-ZF
and 1 April 2010 ZA=+-HBK
—ZT-TFMA—A
Cost B AR 447 31,737 6,747 38,931
Accumulated depreciation Z:tiTE = (11,644) (2,929) (14,573)
Net carrying amount FIREE 447 20,093 3,818 24,358
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. ¥ -HBRRE 2)

(Continueqd)
GROUP (Continued) REE (&)
Furniture,
fixtures and Motor
Buildings equipment vehicles Total
BR-RER
B3 B} "E &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THAT THT
Year ended BE-Z——%5=8
31 March 2011 =Et—HLEE
Opening net FNFREE
carrying amount 447 20,093 3,818 24,358
Exchange differences fE 5 =5 & 398 54 457
Additions NE - 57,085 15,493 72,578
Disposals & = = (22) (22)
Write-off ik - (519) - (519)
Disposal of subsidiaries ~ HEH B 7
(Note 36) (Kt7E36) (452) (4,012) (311) 4,775)
Depreciation ne - (10,211) (2,263) (12,474)
Closing net carrying FREREMR
amount - 62,834 16,769 79,603
At 31 March 2011 R=B——F
=RA=+-H
Cost B AR - 78,446 20,533 98,979
Accumulated depreciation Z&H#r & - (15,612) (3,764) (19,376)
Net carrying amount FREE - 62,834 16,769 79,603
As at 31 March 2010, the Group’s buildings were situated in R-ZE—ZTF=HF=+—H XA&EB
the PRC and were held under medium-term lease. BFEDMAF R WIARBHELNFS -
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18. INTERESTS IN AND BALANCES WITH 18. B ARERENEBARZ
SUBSIDIARIES R BR
COMPANY Vi NN
2011 2010
—E——F —E—FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET THT
Unlisted shares, at cost* JE TR - ] AR - 150,298
Less: Allowance for impairment BB - (73,298)
- 77,000
* The aggregated investment costs in subsidiaries were less than a * MEBEARZBIREXRRNDIN—F T

thousand dollar.

Balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and MEBARZ &8 aEEIE oo RikE
repayable on demand. SkEE o
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2011 are RoE——F=A=+—BZTEME
as follows: REZFHBWT:
Percentage
Place/country of of effective
incorporation/ Class of Nominal interest held by  Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary establishment capital held value of capital the Company  place of operations
EMAL KA R
WEAFEE R/ ER ikl RAEE ERERESN FEXBREELE
Carnaby Group Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary share US$1 100%*  Investment holding, the
British Virgin Islands
RERAHE ERR (E 100%" REZR REELHES
Sparkle Roll (France) Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary share US$10,000 100%  Trading of branded watches
and branded jewellery,
Hong Kong
RERAHE ERR 10,000% 7T 100% AEREERAEKE
55 &%
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18. INTERESTS IN AND BALANCES WITH 18. fiB AR RMB AT Z
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) ek (#)

QR (#F)

COMPANY (Continued)

Place/country of

Percentage

of effective

incorporation/ Class of Nominal interest held by  Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary establishment capital held value of capital the Company  place of operations
HMERL/ ERARFE
WEAEERE R/ ER Fifs R A B Bl BRAEE EREZEAAN FEEBREERY
Sparkle Roll Fine Wine Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary share US$10,000 100%  Trading of fine wine,
Hong Kong
RERUES ERR 10,000% 7T 100% HREES BE
Sparkle Roll (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share HKS$1 100%  Provision of management
service, Hong Kong
BR (ZB)BRAT BB EER 18T 100% REEERS BB
Sparkle Roll International Distributions Hong Kong Ordinary share HK$100 100%  Trading of branded
Limited watches, fine wines and
wine futures, Hong Kong
BRERREERAR BE ERR 100/ 7T 100% BRERER 2ERET
25 &k
Sparkle Roll Watch & Jewelry Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share HK$1 100%  Trading of branded watches
and branded jewellery,
Hong Kong
BREFRERRAA BE ERKR 1T 100% AEREERZEKE
25 &k
Beijing Bu Lao Ke Commerce & Trading The PRC Paid-up capital RMB500,000% 100%  Provision of consultancy
Limited * (“BLK”) services, the PRC
PRAERBEERAA ([FER]) HE BHRRA AR #500,00070 100% REEMRSE #E
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18. INTERESTS IN AND BALANCES WITH
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

COMPANY (Continued)

Place/country of

18. WE AR EERMBELA 2

ek (#)
AAT (&)

Percentage

of effective

incorporation/ Class of Nominal interest held by  Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary establishment capital held value of capital the Company  place of operations
HMERL/ ERARFE
WEAEERE R/ ER Fifs R A B Bl BRAEE EREZEAAN FEEBREERY
Beijing De Te Motors Trading Limited * The PRC Paid-up capital RMB60,500,000 100%"  Trading of automobiles
(‘BJDT") (2010: and related parts and
RMB17,770,000) accessories and provision
of after-sale services, the
PRC
IRERAEBESERAR HE BRBRA AR #60,500,0007 100%" P"EREEZHREFES
(MERER]) (Z2-2%: AR AR E R R
AR#17,770,0007C ) G
Beijing Mei He Zhen Yong Motors The PRC Paid-up capital RMB49,000,000 100%"  Trading of automobiles
Trading Limited (2010: and related parts and
(‘BIMH") RMB20,000,000) accessories and provision
of after-sale services, the
PRC
EREFREKAEEHERLA HE HR KA AR #49,000,0007 100%" SREREETHREAES
(MERER]) (Z2-2%: AR AR E R R
AR #20,000,0007C ) G
Dalian Bo Yi Motors Trading Limited™ The PRC Paid up Capital RMB10,000,000 51%  Trading of automobiles
and related parts and
accessories and provision
of after-sale services, the
PRC
AEBEREEHERAF HE HRBA AR #10,000,0007 51% REXEBRTHREGES
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BHE_Z——F=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2011

18. INTERESTS IN AND BALANCES WITH
SUBSIDIARIES (continueq)

COMPANY (Continued)

Place/country of

18. B AR EZRHMEB AT Z
ek om)

QR (#F)

Percentage

of effective

incorporation/ Class of Nominal interest held by  Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary establishment capital held value of capital the Company  place of operations
HMERL/ ERARFE

WEAEERE R/ ER Fifs R A B Bl BRAEE EREZEAAN FEEBREERY

Richmile (Shanghai) Commerce & The PRC Paid-up capital HK$1,000,000 100%  Trading of branded watches
Trading Limited and branded jewellery,

Hong Kong

WE(LE)BEERAR HE BB 1,000,000/ 72 100% BiEREREEKRE

85 &%

Sparkle Roll Aerial Advertising Multi-media  The PRC Paid-up capital RMB49,500,000 100%  Provision of marketing and
Limited (formerly known as Hui De Ding (2010: advertising services, the
Feng Investment Consultant (Beijing) RMB3,000,000) PRC
Limited) *

PREREPESEEERAA HE BRBRA AR #49,500,0007C 100% RETSREERSE FE
(78 ERSERERAE (tR) (Z2-2%:

BRAR) AR #3,000,0007T)

Sparkle Roll Oriental (Beijing) Trading The PRC Paid-up capital HK$40,000,000 100%  Trading of branded

Development Limited * (2010: watches, banded
HK$10,000,000) jewellery and fine wine,
the PRC

BARD (ER)BESERERAA HE BB 40,000,000/ T 100% Bk BERER

(ZZ-%2%: 2EES hE
10,000,000/ 7 )

Sparkle Roll Xin Jing Jie Public Relation The PRC Paid-up capital RMB32,600,000 100%  Provision of public relation

Planning Limited t ("XJJ") (2010: and marketing services,
RMB100,000) the PRC

PREFHBZARBRAERAA HE BRRA AR %32,600,0007T* 100% RERBEEIRTSRE

(TFER]) (Z2-2%: HE
AR #100,0007)
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18. INTERESTS IN AND BALANCES WITH

18. WE AR EERMBELA 2

SUBSIDIARIES (continued) mER (&)
COMPANY (Continued) QR (#F)
Percentage
Place/country of of effective
incorporation/ Class of Nominal interest held by  Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary establishment capital held value of capital the Company  place of operations
HMERL/ KRR
WEAEERE R/ ER Fifs R A B Bl BRAEE EBEREZEAAN FEEBREERY
Sparkle Roll Xin Tian Di Commerce The PRC Paid-up capital RMB49,000,000 100%  Trading of branded
Development Limited f (2010: watches, branded
RMB10,000,000) jewellery and fine wine,
the PRC
PRERFABEEERERAA HE BRRA AR %49,000,0007T 100% BMRRE GHRKER
(Z2-2F: LEES hHE
AR #10,000,0007)
Tianjin Heng Ying Tai Fu Trading The PRC Paid up Capital RMB2,000,000 100%  Trading of automobiles
Development Limited and related parts and
accessories and provision
of after-sale services, the
PRC
REEERERHERARAHT e BRRRA AR #2,000,0007C 100% AREREBRZHERENES
AR IR R ER R &
Tianjin Xin Chang Tai Fu Trading The PRC Paid up Capital RMB20,000,000 100%  Trading of automobiles
Development Limited? (2010: and related parts and
RMB10,000,000) accessories and provision
of after-sale services, the
PRC
REEERERHERARAH HE BUR A AR #20,000,0007T 100% AERBETHREGES
(Z2-%F: ARBHEE &R PE
ARE
10,000,0007¢)
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BHE_Z——F=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2011

18. iB AR EZRMEB AT Z
ek om)

18. INTERESTS IN AND BALANCES WITH
SUBSIDIARIES (continuead)

COMPANY (Continued)

f Unofficial name for translation purpose only

* Other than this subsidiary which is directly held by the Company,
all other subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company.

’* As at 20 May 2011, the paid-up capital of XJJ has been
increased from RMB32,600,000 to RMB49,700,000.

i As at 13 May 2011, BLK has changed its name to Sparkle Roll
Xin Hang Xiang International Transportation Agency Limited 1t
RREFMABEBREEREBRAA. As at 30 May 2011,
the paid-up capital has been increased from RMB500,000 to
RMB15,000,000.

The Group has appointed nominees as the registered owners
of these companies or their holding companies. The Group has
entered into contractual agreements to obtain the controls over
the entire business operations and is entitled to all profits of and
assume the risk of these companies.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the
net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, result in
particulars of excessive length.

QR (#F)

##

RFERETH ERBERERT

ZBUMBARRARTERFAE - A
HbHEARGHARRRBERES -

RZE——FHA-+H FERIH
R IEAE B A R #32,600,0007T 1 A1
= AR #49,700,0007T °

R=ZF——FRA+=H TEZREE
ZRILZRESMABBREERES
BAR -R—_ZT——FHA=+H H
BEKRAE B ARBS500,000TE 1 E
A R #15,000,0007T °

AEBEZERBARZF QAN
BEASEERAR - AEEEFILA
e AEHZE AR 2 2 HEBK
& BERZEAEME &N AR AEZ
FRRZAR -

EREINARAEERRTIEFEARSF
EEEIBNASEEEFEEZA D
ZERRBMBRR -ARREERS
FRHEEMHMBARZHE BTEHR
BRITE -
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19. GOODWILL 19. B8
GROUP AEE
The main changes in the carrying amount of goodwill result HMEZEREFZEHRE WEHRBA
from acquisition of subsidiaries as well as impairment of AR ZAEBRAEMEZRE BEZF
previously recognised goodwill. The net carrying amount of BREER ST :

goodwill can be analysed as follows:

2011 2010
—E—-—F —E—ZF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TR
At beginning of the year REA]
Gross carrying amount REREE 724,580 724,580
Accumulated impairment ZEHRAE (127,246) (127,246)
Net carrying amount FERMEE 597,334 597,334
Year ended 31 March HE=ZA=+T—RHLFE
Opening net carrying amount FY2FREE 597,334 597,334
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 36) B E KB A A (FizE36) (16,655) =
Closing net carrying amount FRZFREE 580,679 597,334
At end of the year REEK
Gross carrying amount FESER ] 580,679 724,580
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE - (127,246)
Net carrying amount FIREE 580,679 597,334
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19. GOODWILL (Continued) 10. B & (&)

GROUP (Continued)

The carrying amount of goodwill, net of any allowance for
impairment, is allocated to the following cash-generating units
(“CGU"):

rEE (&)

AR 2 BREER MR TR EEER D
EETHREELBEM([ReELE
fizl) :

2011 2010

—E——F —E—FF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET T

Comics and animations development 82 } 8= 57 % - 16,655
Trading of automobiles and related AERHBESHRENE S

parts and accessories and provision LA R $2 1 & 12 AR 75
of after-sale services 580,679 580,679
Net carrying amount at end of the year F#R 7 FERMHEE 580,679 597,334

The recoverable amount for the CGU of the comics and
animations development business as at 31 March 2010 was
determined based on the fair value less cost to sell of the
business with the fair value as the price agreed in a sale and
purchase agreement dated 11 March 2010. The details of the
agreement are disclosed in note 36(a).

The recoverable amounts for the CGU of the business of
trading of automobiles and related parts and accessories
and provision of after-sale services as at 31 March 2010 and
2011 were determined based on value-in-use calculations,
covering a detailed five-year plan, followed by an extrapolation
of expected cash flows at the growth rates below. The growth
rates reflect the long-term estimated average growth rates for
the product lines of the CGU.

R-ZT—ZTF=-A=+—HEERHE
FEEBREEAEM 2T KB SEET)
RZEBZAARBEREEXNAEE
AREDNEHRA-ET-—ZEF=A+—H
ZEBERHEMBEER - BRFBERM
F36(a) M & °

N_BE-—TEFER-—FB——F=F=+—
B8 AT 4 REHE S RIRH
ERBRBEBRSELEN ZAIKE S
BIOUGERAEBEFEZEE REFR
Z A FE & WAKMER T 5138 & 5
ZTEHAeRE - AHAERERMRRES
EfBVEMGRZERMBITFEFHEER

>__%-__<o
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BHE_Z——F=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2011

19. GOODWILL (Continued) 19. B8 (&)
GROUP (Continued) REE (&)
The key assumptions for the value-in-use calculations are: FREBEHEEZCEEZERRENT
2011 2010
—E2——F —ZE-TF
Growth rates R 20% 15%
Discount rates AL 3R 2 15% 15%
The key assumptions have been determined based on past FTEBRRXOBBERATRR URKLLE
performance and its expectations for the market’s share B A i35 TR R 9T 2 T %5 1 58 78R
after taking into consideration published market forecast BRIETE -FTERAZ T REEE
and research. The weighted average growth rates used are PRE PTEl 2 T8 R — B Frt A 2 Bh3R
consistent with the forecasts included in industry reports. KRB AIME Wk 3 2 HF
The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks TE J2 Bz o
relating to the relevant segments.
Apart from the considerations described in determining the KETE MR CEEEN ZERAEBEER
value-in-use of the CGU above, the Group’s management is Fritz ZEAZRIN AEBEERERE
not currently aware of any other probable changes that would A 7 R0E A ) E b ] B2 8 B F B (b At
necessitate changes in its key estimates. FIEEH M EEE) 2 &)
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20. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 20. HtEEEE

GROUP REEH
Copyrights Trademarks Total
hi ¥ B &5t
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000 HK$’000
FAT TATT TAT
At 1 April 2009 RZZEZNFMNA—H
Gross carrying amount AR (A 16,506 5,952 22,458
Accumulated amortisation £ 51 #f § (6,861) (934) (7,795)
Accumulated allowance ZEOREERE
for impairment (4,885) - (4,885)
Net carrying amount FEREE 4,760 5,018 9,778
Year ended HE_Z—ZF
31 March 2010 ZA=+T—BLEE
Opening net carrying FHFREE
amount 4,760 5,018 9,778
Additions NE = 1,800 1,800
Amortisation charges 5 ST (4,760) (1,364) (6,124)
Closing net carrying FROFEREME
amount = 5,454 5,454
At 31 March 2010 and R-IB—TF
1 April 2010 =A=+—Hk
—E-TFMHHA—H
Gross carrying amount HEREE 16,506 7,752 24,258
Accumulated amortisation 2 51 #f § (11,621) (2,298) (13,919)
Accumulated allowance 2EIREERE
for impairment (4,885) - (4,885)
Net carrying amount FAREE = 5,454 5,454
BEEEERAR Fi 2011
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BHE_Z——F=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2011

20. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 20 HthBEEE (&)
GROUP (Continued) REE (&)
Copyrights Trademarks Total
I & mE &t
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000
T T T T T T
Year ended BE-E——F
31 March 2011 =A=t—HLFE
Opening net carrying FHFREE
amount - 5,454 5,454
Amortisation charges S - (1,537) (1,537)

Closing net carrying FREREE

amount - 3,917 3,917
At 31 March 2011 R=ZTB——%F
ZA=+-A
Gross carrying amount WA E = 7,601 7,601
Accumulated amortisation 2 &t # £ - (3,684) (3,684)
Net carrying amount FREE - 3,917 3,917
21. INVENTORIES 21. FE
GROUP AEH
2011 2010
—_E——F —E—FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TETT
Raw materials and consumables R K X H FE @ 10,623 7,717
Work-in-progress ERm - 21,658
Merchandised goods o 342,846 102,046
353,469 131,421
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22. FILM RIGHTS 22. ¥ R
GROUP AEE
The film rights represent production and direct costs of MR RERDRIERE 2 2EREERK
completed animations less amortisation. No allowance for RNBEE - HE_TE—TFR_FT——
impairment was made during the years ended 31 March 2010 FZA=+—HIEFEWEELRBELE
and 2011. & o
23. TRADE RECEIVABLES 23. EWE ZRE
GROUP AEE
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T T
Trade receivables FEWE 5 58 90,625 88,888
Less: Allowance for impairment of W EUE S IR R (B
trade receivables - (1,625)
Trade receivables — net FEUWE 5 KI8T 5 90,625 87,263
An ageing analysis of trade receivables as at the reporting date, AR EBEE QB RNBRREEER 2B
based on the invoice dates, and net of impairment losses, is as BERERBEB ZREITAT :
follows:
2011 2010
—E——F —E—ZTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FE T
0 — 30 days 0£30H 58,785 71,749
31 - 60 days 31260H 30,513 8,622
61 — 90 days 61290H 273 550
Over 90 days @90 H 1,054 6,342
90,625 87,263
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23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 23. EWE ZRIE (&)

l

GROUP (Continued)

The Group’s sales to its customers are mainly on credit. Except
as detailed below, the credit period is generally for a period of
30 days to 90 days for general customers. The Group is also
entering into certain specific repayment schedules for sales to
certain major customers for the terms not more than one year.
The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
trade receivables and has a credit control policy to minimise
credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by the
management.

On 14 April 2009, the Group had entered into an agreement
with one of the major customers that approximately
HK$4,933,000 of the trade debts due from this customer at 31
March 2009 is to be settled by 22 installments. The balance
of approximately HK$2,458,000 has been included in trade
receivables as at 31 March 2010 and the remaining balance
was derecognised upon disposal of subsidiaries.

The directors of the Company consider that the fair value of
the remaining trade receivables which are expected to be
recovered within one year is not materially different from their
carrying amounts because these balances have short maturity
periods on their inception.

The carrying amounts of the trade receivables are denominated
in the following currencies:

rEE (&)
AEBTENGEEIAEBRPENTR
B TITXFREN —REFPZ
Hi— M RB0H =90 - "Bt & E
TEEREPETRHIILETHEEN
FREX EXPIEE-—F -AEEHS
SKEEH R B R E 5 RIA BTN E
EoURGEEEEEBRARDEER
Rk -EEEERENARER-

Jdi
hs

pa

oif
iy

RZZEZNFOA+HEE AEEHEE
—RETBREFI—DE Bt %
BER - ZZNFE=ZA=1+—HZ2EH
R 5% #94,933,0007% 7T #& LA22HA 2 HA 1+
BB - £ 82492,458,00078 T E 5F AR
—E-TFEZA=1+—BZEKRESK
B MR TRBERHENEB R AR

ARAEERR ARBTRKE SR
B (AR —FAKE) h s ARRE
EEHARE MEZEFBAZANER
HEmMELIESEAER-

FEWE 5 RIA 2 FREE A T & %5t
=

2011 2010
—E——F —E—FF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FTHET FHET

Renminbi (‘RMB”) ARE(TARK]) 43,125 20,308
HK$ BT 47,500 36,129
United States dollars (“US$”") E (%)) - 30,826
90,625 87,263
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23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 23. EWE ZFIE (&)
GROUP (Continued) RE®(E)
The movement in the allowance for impairment of trade JEWE B RmEEEZEEHNT
receivables is as follows:
2011 2010
—E——F —E—ZF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Balance at beginning of the year F 5 1,625 -
Allowance for impairment recognised 2R E NIER Z R EEE
during the year 3,500 1,625
Derecognised upon disposal of & B B R R £ R BR FE SR
subsidiaries (5,125) -
Balance at end of the year FIE R - 1,625
At each reporting date, the Group reviews receivables for RERE R AEE R RZE R & &8
evidence of impairment on both an individual and collective AEXFEHEWHIBEE S L IRRER ?F°
basis. During the year ended 31 March 2011, trade receivables REZE=ZZE——F=A=+—HIHF
of HK$3,500,000 (2010: HK$1,625,000) were determined as [ - A& EEE R E 5 5/IE3,500,000
individually impaired. The impaired trade receivables are due B (ZE—FF :1,625,0008 ) B

from customers experiencing financial difficulties that were in 1B Bl o B E U B 5 5K I8 & HE
default or delinquency of payments. MR E 2 B PR B AR IE 6
RS SHAERER

The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables that are NEERFERYKE S RIE 2 RER DT
not impaired is as follows: N

2011 2010

—E-—F —T-TF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FTET FHET

Neither past due nor impaired SR8 B 75 R Rk (B 65,834 65,258

Not more than 1 year past due B HR R R iR — 4 24,791 22,005

Balance at end of the year FIRE & 90,625 87,263

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
related to certain customers from whom there was no recent
history of default.

WARE B RBE 2 BUE S FHKIBTIIR
BETHREIBRZOLEZIES -
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23.

24,

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 23. EWE 5 RIE (&)
GROUP (Continued) REE (&)
Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired related BRERBECEKEZFIBETIRE
to independent customers that had a good track record with BEASEEERFBEREIB IR,
the Group. Based on the past credit history, management BREBFEERS BEEEMRRE AR
believed that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect EEERVTELRERNES FHEEH
of these balances as there has not been a significant change WAR AR 2B E - B AR I S A%
in credit quality and the balances were considered fully ERREER NEEWEGE BmEAE
recoverable. The Group did not hold any collateral in respect of REREZEKRE S FIERFBERER
trade receivables past due but not impaired. an °
DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 24, € FEAHMFEREMERK
RECEIVABLES FIE
GROUP AND COMPANY REERAEADT
Group Company
rEE PN
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——F —ZT-ZF —E——F —ZT-ZF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET TET TR
Deposits b gera 25,146 10,655 - -
Prepayments TEBFRIA 203,012 84,811 - 74
Other receivables H A, R WK IA 109,568 43,105 - -
337,726 138,571 - 74

A receivable of approximately HK$58,000,000 (2010: Nil)
from a counterparty included in other receivables is repayable
under a repayment schedule by instalment within one year in
connection with the disposal of the Group’s financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss.

The directors of the Company consider that the fair values
of the other receivables which are expected to be recovered
within one year are not materially different from their carrying
amounts because these balances have short maturity periods
on their inception.

HtERRERREREE—2EFH
3% 1B #4958,000,000/8 L (= — T 4F
/) AL EASERANERER
RINE 2 & B EER —F NIRE KM
ROHIEE-

ARRIEZTRA AR EME WA
(AR —FAKRE) 2 AeREFEHRA
ERECSHAIH WZERBIARN
ERAEEHETESEAER-
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25. AMOUNT DUE FROM A RELATED 25. EW—EBEERAKIE

COMPANY

GROUP R EE

2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TAT
Beijing Heng Yu Da Ye investment IEREFAEREBRAQ A
Limited T (Note (a)) (M 5T (a)) - 3,825
- 3,825

Note: B 5 -

(a) The related company was a company in which Mr. Qi Jian () ZEAEATABARAETERREAE
Hong (“Mr. Qi"), a substantial shareholder of the Company, has e E ([HaE ) EEaERZ A
beneficial interests. The amount due was unsecured, interest-free Al ZIEWRAKIEAERT R ERIRE
and repayable on demand. KIBE -

t Unofficial name for translation purpose only T RIFEXBHE ERABEZERAEHY

The directors of the Company consider that the fair value of AAFIESZRA BRER—FHBEER

the amount due from a related company which is expected to AIFRE (FFHITR —FAKE) 2 &t

be recovered within one year is not materially different from its Bt ABRRF B A HA N B B - H sz kE

carrying amount because these balances have short maturity ZAREHRHEEHETESEAER

periods on their inception.
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26. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AT 26. BT ERURBTEF

BANKS AND IN HAND

GROUP AND COMPANY

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Certain of the Group’s and the Company’s
bank deposits have been pledged to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group (Note 30). As at 31 March 2011,
the deposits bore interest rates ranging from 0.01% to 2.75%
per annum (2010: 0.01% to 0.05% per annum) which are
closed to the market interest rates. The pledged bank deposits
will be released upon the settlement of the relevant bank
borrowings.

The directors of the Company considered that the fair value of
the pledged bank deposits is not materially different from their
carrying amount because of the short maturity period on their
inception and the bearing of market interest rates.

Included in cash at banks and in hand of the Group is
approximately HK$133,062,000 (2010: HK$117,853,000)
of bank balances denominated in RMB and is placed with
banks in the PRC. RMB is not a freely convertible currency.
Under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement and Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for foreign currencies through banks that are authorised
to conduct foreign exchange business.

RS
REEMR AL T

BITHEBZ B TIET BRITE KX
LOZEETE - REBE RARFETRIT
THREEER URSEAEEER Y —
ARERITREE (FMsES0) - R ZTE——F=
A=+—H FZAFEFEN F0.01%
E2.75% (ZE—FF  FHE0.01%=E
0.05% ) &1 & + B T i5 A K - B KRR
TERERENERRITEEERR -

ARBEERR AREEBRITER
MFRF AREEHAZE AiRhHE5
MEFE BMRZFRAZARLBEER
HETEERER-

AEBZ2HROERFERSEHED
133,062,000 L (=& — T F :
117,853,000 7T ) Z $RIT&&E R - ThLAA
REFHE UYERFREZRITR AR
EAEHARAEMEE - BEPE
ZONEBEBIROI R EE EERNEE
BHRTE AEEEERCRELEINE
HBMEBZRITHARBLBAEME
‘vrt;go
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27. TRADE PAYABLES 27. ENEZ NIE
GROUP rE
The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables as at the ENEZRBER®REBR ZERE DN
reporting date: R
2011 2010
—E——F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET Tt
0 — 30 days 0% 30H 12,248 7,312
31 - 60 days 31260H 1,246 7,567
61 — 90 days 61290H 80 2,280
Over 90 days 8 1E90 H 1,864 3,645
15,438 20,804
All amounts are short-term and hence the carrying values are FrERELHBREBMES EHit - BEE
considered to be a reasonable approximation of fair value. HEHERAEEMERDEREE -
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28. RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE, ACCRUED

28. HIWFIR B ERAR HA

CHARGES AND OTHER PAYABLES FES R
GROUP AND COMPANY KREBE R AN T
Group Company
rEE NN
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E-—-fF —E-TF —E——-fF —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
THERT FAT FEx FAT
Current portion: TENE4D
Receipts in advance B R IE 249,994 143,186 - -
Accrued charges fEETE A 6,790 6,043 1,418 150
Other payables H 8 15 UIR 50,638 28,563 - =
307,422 177,792 1,418 150
Non-current portion:  FR B4 :
Receipt in advance BURIE (H5E@))
(Note (a)) - 1,309 - -
Other payables H e < 5008
(Note (b)) (FF&E®)) 3,666 3,900 - -
3,666 5,209 - -

The carrying amounts of current portion of accrued charges
and other payables are short-term and hence their carrying
value are considered to be a reasonable approximation of fair

value.

140 SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011

FERT B P K ELAD R 15 SRR 2 R B BB D
FEHEBEHEE Fit - 6lEEE
RESEEMERRERSE -



B R 2% M 5T
Notes to the Financial Statements

BHE_Z——F=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2011

28. RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE, ACCRUED

29.

CHARGES AND OTHER PAYABLES (continuead)

GROUP AND COMPANY (Continuead)

Notes:

28. HIWFIR B ERAR HA

(a)

Pursuant to the investment agreement entered into between
the Nanjing Hongying and R e RIMEXRAZEEEEZE
@, the Group was entitled to receive government grants based
on 15% of paid-up capital of Nanjing Hongying within 3 years
from the date of its establishment. The grants are to be used
in the business development of Nanjing Hongying. Pursuant to
the agreement, the Nanjing Hongying’s operating tenure should
be not less than 15 years during which the principal place
of business should be retained in F R m ¥ ITEXEMZE.
The government grants received are amortised over 15 years
accordingly and they have remaining amortisation period of 12
years as at 31 March 2010.

The Group enjoys a rent free period on leasing of office premises
and showrooms ranging from 3 to 10 years (2010: 3 to 5 years).
This lease incentive received is recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments.

AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED PARTIES

PEASFRIE ()

AE@MRAAT (£)

B 5 -

(a) IRIRFRIGE HE R = T E R

BREEREEE STV ZRERS A%
B A W ER RO SR B AN15%
STEZBITHE - BB EK L B
Bt A =F - ZmB R E RS E
ZEBERR -BRIBZHE BABEZ
A FHEN DR+ RE  HREEE
& 2 i 2578 B2 A FE R = AR I
@ o F It ATIRER 2 BT BN IR 156
B MR=Z—ZTF=A=+—82Z
RN EESHER B2 -

AERERBERATMEREEAN
TIZI0F (ZF—FTF:3E5F)Z
SEE LB KM BERE TR
1R ar R R M BDF ARIR A A8 2 A AR A
e

20. FE{JREE A LT RIE

GROUP &S S
2011 2010
—E——F —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHEx FETT
Mr. Qi - Pl 4,763 -
Beijing Heng Yu Da Ye investment IEREFAREREGR AR
Limited  (Note (a)) (P 5E(a)) 41,685 =
Amount due to a related party FE — R EE A TR
(Note (b)) (M5 (b)) - 136
46,448 136
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20. E{JREEALTRIE (2)

29. AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED PARTIES
(Continued)

GROUP (Continued)

Note:

(@  The related company is a company in which Mr. Qi has beneficial
interests.

(o)  The related party is a relative to Mr. Tong, an executive director
of the Company.

T Unofficial name for translation purpose only

Amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand. All amounts are short-term and hence the carrying
values are considered to be a reasonable approximation of fair

AR ()

W :

@ HEEANARALRAESMEEY
AR

(o) ZEABALRARBRNTEEEFLLE
ZHB e

i RIFEREH ERBEREEHT

ENRAEASEER RERRERE
B-FARBOBEHNE Bt - 5H
FEEHERSEEMENEMES-

value.
30. BORROWINGS 30. B E
GROUP rEH
2011 2010
—E——F —E—EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FATT
Current NEE
Bank loans, secured RITER (HHEHF) 53,665 11,923
Bank loans, unsecured RITEZR (EIRH) - 5,740
53,665 17,663
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T——®F=ZA=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2011

BEC

30. BORROWINGS (Continued) 30. & E (&)
GROUP (Continued) TEE (&)
The effective interest rates (which are also equal to contracted REBEE ZEBRMNE (RERETLF
interest rates) on the Group’s borrowings are: ) B
2011 2010
—E——F —E—TF
Bank loans, secured RITER(FEMT) HIBOR + 1.5% HIBOR + 1%
to to
HIBOR + 2.25% HIBOR + 2.25%
per annum, per annum
LIBOR + 1.25% and
to LIBOR + 1%
LIBOR + 2.25% to
per annum LIBOR + 2.5%
and 6.96% per annum
per annum
BER|RIT BBIRIT
E#FER FEEFSEES
+EFE15%ZE +FENT1%E
BER|RIT BBIRIT
E#FER FEEFSEES
+E F%£2.25% +F I ZE2.25%
RBERTT PA R fm BER 1T
E#FER FESFSEES
+EFE1.25%F +FEFE1%E
REBERTT REERTT
E#FER FEEFSEES
+5 F E2.25% +FEFE2.5%
AR & R 26.96%
Bank loans, unsecured RITE R (EER) - 1.48%
per annum

As at 31 March 2010 and 2011, certain bank deposits of the
Group and of the Company were pledged to banks to secure

general banking facilities granted to the Group (Note 26).

The bank loans were also secured by corporate guarantees
executed by the Company and certain subsidiaries during the
year ended 31 March 2011 (2010: by the Company and a

subsidiary).

F R ET.48%

R-F-—FFR-_F-——F=f=1—

B AEBRARFETRITES

R e

BTRIT URAKEERZ —RIRTT
BEFEA (FIRE26)

REEZ

T——4=A=+—AIL%F

B RTERFMAARNRETHEL

A (=& —

TE BARA R —HEHE

“T);;iZi%iﬁ%{’E}fﬁﬁ
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30. BORROWINGS (Continued) 30. & & (#)
GROUP (Continued) REE (&)
As at 31 March 2011, certain equity interest of a subsidiary RZFE——F=A=+—8H —HFEH
in the PRC was pledged to banks to secure general banking B AR & TRAERITEHER TR
facilities granted to the Group (2010: Nil). T AARERER 2 —RRITHEE

BER (2 —FF 8&)

The carrying values of current borrowings are considered to be AR ERE AR A R
a reasonable approximation of fair values due to their short- BERERAEEMEAREES -

term maturities.

The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in the BEEZERBEUTY EBEE:
following currencies:

2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FET FABT

HK$ BT 26,164 8,724
RMB AR 23,256 =
European Euros (“Euro”) &t ([BoT]) 1,990 5,740
Swiss France (“SF”) T EOERR ([ TR 0EER] ) 2,255 3,199
53,665 17,663
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31. CONVERTIBLE NOTES 31.

|

TRRREE

GROUP AND COMPANY

The Company had two types of convertible notes. Convertible
notes of the Company were issued on 26 June 2008 (the “Type
| CN”) upon completion of the acquisition of the exclusive
entitlements to all of the economic benefits derived from the
distributorships of Bentley cars, Lamborghini cars and Rolls-
Royce cars and rights to control, manage and operate BJMH
and BJDT. The Type | CN is convertible into 1,200,000,000
ordinary shares of the Company at a price of HK$0.22 (subject
to pro-rata adjustments on capital structure changes), 4% per
annum interest-bearing and matured on 26 June 2010. During
the year ended 31 March 2010, the Type | CN at the remaining
principal amount of HK$198,000,000 was converted into
900,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company (Note 34). The
Type | CN had been fully converted into the Company’s shares
in prior years.

Convertible notes of the Company were issued on 26
January 2010 (the “Issue Date”) (the “Type Il CN”) for general
fund raising purpose. The Type Il CN are convertible into
150,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company at a price of
HK$0.55 (subject to pro-rata adjustments on capital structure
changes), interest-free and will be matured on 26 January 2015
(the “Type Il CN Maturity Date”). The principal terms of the Type
Il CN were as follows:

(@) The outstanding principal amount of the Type Il CN
might be converted at the option of the Noteholders (as
defined below) in whole or in part into ordinary shares of
HK$0.002 each in the Company at any time on or after 1
April 2010 up to the Type Il CN Maturity Date.

TEBRAERQT

AABEEMBENRRER - NQ A
R_ZEZENERNAZ+B ExK
WHEE RS E - BIGEE TE R4 T
HRBE D HEEMEE 22 BEET
mZBRERN  ARIERES RIERE
RS BEERCERRKET
MR EE([E—EBREE]) -
E— AR TR A 1R0.22/8 T (A
HERNEBES IR OIARE) 2EBRE
#751,200,000,0008% A8 A &) & 8 % -
BREFERIEFF B TR —FF
NAZT+ANBEH REBEE=_Z—F
FZA=1T—"BLFE KAE&BEAR
198,000,000/ 7T 2 25 — A ] ik = 1%
& 5,3 /5900,000,0000% & 2 7] X 578 %
(MI5E34) - F—EARERENBE
FERHELARRANTRG -

RARARRET—REEMR=_ZT—F
F—AZ+ B ([B1TBEH]) T
BREB([E_HARRER]) -F
— AR Z IR AT 420.55/8 T (AT L&
REELBIRL B AE) 2BRELRA
150,000,000/% A8 A 7] ¥ @ A% » I T &t
B YBR-_ZTE—RF—A=-+H
(BB RRERINEAR B F
THEABRERZ FEERET

(@ F_HUBRREREZAREEARS
BAR-_ZE-—FTFONA-—BHL
REEF _BABREEERIHE
BREEEFAA (EER TX)
BEZHRRFOALBRAEARE
AR {E0.00278 7T 2 & AL o
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31. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued) 31. TRBRRE (2

146

GROUP AND COMPANY (Continued)

(b) The Noteholders might early redeem all or part of the
Type Il CN on the third anniversary from the Issue Date
and thereafter at the redemption amount equal to their
outstanding principal amount plus a premium of 10% per
annum of outstanding principal amount from the Issue
Date.

(c) The Company might redeem all of the Type Il CN on the
third anniversary from the Issue Date and thereafter at the
redemption amount equal to their outstanding principal
amount plus a premium of 10% per annum of outstanding
principal amount from the Issue Date.

(d) Unless previously converted or redeemed, the Company
will redeem the Type Il CN on the Type |l CN Maturity
Date at the redemption amount equal to their outstanding
principal amount plus a premium of 10% per annum of
outstanding principal amount from the Issue Date.

The fair value of the liability component of the Type Il CN
was calculated using a market interest rate for an equivalent
instrument containing similar non-equity derivative features
and without the equity conversion feature. The fair value of
the liability component of the Type I CN at the Issue Date
amounted to approximately HK$63,175,000. The fair value
is calculated using discounted cash flow method at a rate of
16.03%. Details of the fair value of the non-equity derivatives
have been disclosed in note 32. The residual amount of
HK$1,443,000 of the Type Il CN, which is calculated by
deducting the liability component of HK$63,175,000 and
non-equity derivatives of HK$17,882,000 (Note 32) from the
principal amount of HK$82,500,000, represented the value of
the equity conversion component and is included in capital
reserve in the owners’ equity for the year ended 31 March
2010.

TEBRAEQTR (£F)

b) BEHRBATRETEBMZES
AEERZARERRERERDS
BREBAE - BTHRER  EE
& ARSI K B A S W R 04
BASEEETT AR EF10%
2

€ ARRARBEITRHEBZE=ZAF
EmzBREBEESNREE
AR RS EESRAE
BEASHENABEERNSEHET
HERF B F10% 2 miE

(d) ERIEFEAIDENBMEE - FRIA
RARERE — R R R E 2
BREEE AR RRE  BEE
BHERAEEASZEMAEER

AeRABTRHEAEF10%Z

)

B e

E_HUBRREBRBESDZANETY
ERATAERRA BRI mAEEESE
BRATTETEFR 2 BEIRAER 2™
BHRAE - F B BREEEED
MRETHHZ A ARER /63,175,000
B ARBEDNERTRR S REXIR
PTIRE16.03%T E - ERAINTET R
AAEZFBRK 32 E -5 — 87
AR F I 2 T o4 851,443,000/ 7T )
¥ 7K 4 %882,500,000/8 T HIM B E
1763,175,000% 7T R FER AR ITAET A
17,882,000 7T (KizE32) 518 - HER
EmiBmEhzEBE Wt AHEZS
—ZTFE=A=1+—HILFEHEAF AER
N2 B

SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011



B s 2% M 5T
Notes to the Financial Statements

BHE_Z——F=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2011

31. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continuead) 31. TR ERE (&)
GROUP AND COMPANY (Continued) KEERAAT (#&)
The liability components of the convertible notes recognised B RERE AR R AR BB B AR
in the consolidated statements of financial position and the RAERZ T BRRERBERMDIE
Company’s statement of financial position are calculated as N
follows:
2011 2010
—E—-—F —E—ZF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FH T
Balance at beginning of the year F R 64,951 183,668
Issuance of the convertible notes BT R R IR - 63,175
Conversion to shares of the Company X3 A7 A &l %5 (71,046) (188,837)
Effective interest expenses for the year F R E K252 (HF3E9)
(Note 9) 6,095 12,134
Over-provision of effective interest BEFEERAERZ 2
expenses in prior years (Note 9) FRRE B (MI3E9) - (795)
Interest paid EENEES) - (4,394)
Balance at end of the year F R &L o - 64,951
Effective interest expenses on the Type | CN and Type Il CN are E—BUMRERRE_HAIBRE
calculated using the effective interest method by applying the BZEBRIERAI DRERFBE &
effective interest rates of 10.1% and 16.03% respectively to the RE—BRREERE BBk
liability components of the Type | CN and Type Il CN. ZEEENH 2EBRFESH101% K%

16.03%5T & o
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|

32. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 32. TTE€mIT A
GROUP AND COMPANY AEBRARAT
Group Company
rEE KA F]
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E2——-fF —E-ZF —E-—-fF —E-ZF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$ 000
THER FAT THER FAT
Non-equity derivatives ~ FERRAHTA T A
- early redemption —FTAJEREAE
options on Z AR E R
convertible notes I 5B B H A
included in non-
current liabilities - 18,469 - 18,469

On 18 January 2010, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement (the “Subscription Agreement”) with certain
independent third parties (the “Noteholders”) for subscription
of the Type Il CN issued by the Company with an aggregate
principal amount of HK$82,500,000. Pursuant to the
Subscription Agreement, the Noteholders have an option (the
“Non-equity Put Option”) to request the Company to redeem all
or part of outstanding principal amount on the third anniversary
and thereafter from the issue date of the Type Il CN. The
Company also has an option (the “Non-equity Call Option”) to
require the Noteholders to redeem all of outstanding principal
amount on the third anniversary and thereafter from the issue
date of the Type Il CN. Details of the Type Il CN are disclosed in
note 31.

RZZE—ZEF—HA+=H AQFHES
FTEIUE=7 (EBFEAHRE
AR R EITA SR A $£82,500,000/%
TLZEBEZRIBRERT IRERZ
([REWRZ]) - BERBHZ ZEF
BEANGEEERE ([FERARHARE]) -
A ERANRRE LA R IR BT
BBz E=BFlEhns B RHEEBRS
B E D M AREEAR ST - AR T I
BEEE ([FERAREDE]) - ATEK
ZEREARE B BREERETH
HMrE=RFEmRs A RHEEERZH
MAEEASCRE FHABRBREEY
BB R 31 55 -
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32. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continueqd)

GROUP AND COMPANY (Continued)

As at 26 January 2010 (the “Issue Date”), the Non-equity Put
Option and Non-equity Call Option which were not designated
as hedging instrument according to HKAS 39 were treated
as a single compound embedded financial instrument and
were measured at fair value. The fair value of HK$17,882,000
was valuated by Roma by using Binominal Option Pricing
Model. The inputs into the model for the value of the derivative
financial instruments were as follows:

32.

TTEEMIE (%)

FEBERERQR (&)

R-ZT—FTFE—F=-+/xB (%178
H])  BEEB G ERFEI95% - WK
IR TE A ¥R T B 2 3E R AN R0E Hi 4
RIEBRAREHREFEELSE—EENA
ReMTE BUAREFE-ANE
17,882,000/ 7T M #& 52 A — 18 = B ##
EEENIHEEH BETESRMIT A
BEZER ZHABAT:

As at

26 January

2010

R=-ZF—%F

—BA=+H

Risk free rate o2 [ i ) 2= 1.841%
Discount rate A5 3R = 16.031%
Volatility R 18.490%
Year to maturity 5| 4 4F BB 5 years

As at 31 March 2010, the fair value of HK$18,469,000 was
valuated by Roma by using Binominal Option Pricing Model.
The inputs into the model for the values of the derivative
financial instruments were as follows:

R—E—ZEF=ZA=Z+—HBH A&
18,469,000/ 7T M 28 5 2 A — 18 = B #%
EEEMFHAL AETESHITA
BEZER ZHABAT:

As at

31 March

2010

R=-Z—%F

=BR=+-—H

Risk free rate o0 [ i ) 2= 1.915%
Discount rate Ah 3R = 16.105%
Volatility i 17.212%
Year to maturity % 4 4F BB 4.825 years
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32.

33.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continueqd)

GROUP AND COMPANY (Continued)

The differences arising from the changes of the fair values of
the derivative financial instruments have been recognised in
profit or loss at each reporting dates. On 25 October 2010 and
29 October 2010, the dates of the Type Il CN fully converted
into the ordinary shares of the Company, the derivative
financial instruments with carrying amount of approximately
HK$22,179,000 has been transferred to share premium in the
owners’ equity. The directors of the Company have assessed
the fair value of the derivative financial instruments at the dates
of conversions by applied appropriate valuation technique
commonly used by market practitioners and determined
that the fair value of the derivative financial instruments was
approximately HK$22,179,000.

DEFERRED TAX

GROUP

Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences

32.

33.

TTEEMIE (%)

FEBMEARRQT (E)

TESMTIAEAREEHELECZED
REREERBEER - R_T—TF
+A-+RBR-ZE—ZF+/=-1+h
B(EZ_HEIRREBRERRAERAR
Timlk o BE) - BRMEE 422,179,000
BLZTESM T EAEEEZHER AE
mPZBRNBEE AARESCERM
GEEFRAZEBEMERETHITESR
BITAREBRABZARNE  WEELT
EEET AR RARELA22,179,0004
=

I SE i 1R
A%

BEREBBELRIEEEL  EHBEHEE

under the liability method at rates of taxation applicable when TREZENZERMRE e ERE
the temporary differences are expected to reverse. HitHEo
The movement on the deferred tax liabilities during the year is BEEFIHEEERFEFAZEBHMT
as follows:
2011 2010
—E—-—F —E—ZF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FH T
At beginning of the year REH] 206 22
Deferred taxation charged/(credited) to W18z % (5t A)
profit or loss (Note 10) RIERIE (M5E10) 2,528 (65)
Under-provision in respect of prior year i@ F E & ET 2
(Note 10) (FF=E10) - 249
At end of the year RER 2,734 206
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33. IEERIE (&)

33. DEFERRED TAX (Continuea)

GROUP (Continued) REE (&)
The movement in deferred tax liabilities recognised in the FAEREE VM BIRARER IR
consolidated statement of financial position during the year is HEEZEHMT:
as follows:
Group
rEE
Accelerated Temporary
tax difference
depreciation on inventories Total
MERERE FEZEREER ast
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T THET TR
At 1 April 2009 RZEZNFMHA—H 22 - 22
Credited to profit or loss ~ zF A8z (65) - (65)
Under-provision in respect & F FEEE T T
of prior years 249 - 249
At 31 March 2010 and RZE—TF
1 April 2010 =ZA=+—BR
—E-ZTFMA—H 206 - 206
Charged to profit or loss fEEE Tk = 2,528 2528
At 31 March 2011 R=-Z——F
=HA=+-—H 206 2,528 2,734

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a

legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes
relate to the same fiscal authority and the entity intends either
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

fid B BORBIITH 2 B A BN ETE 1R
BERHNGHBARE  METHMEHR
BRA—BKE BREREENE
BELEBE IABFREERFER
B AEERBEEN EREEE-
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33. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 33. IELERIE (&)

GROUP (Continued)

At the reporting date, the Group has estimated unused tax
losses of HK$13,960,000 (2010: HK$22,661,000), of which
unused tax losses of HK$9,263,000 were derecognised upon
the disposal of subsidiaries, available for offset against future
taxable profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams of those
subsidiaries which incurred these tax losses as at 31 March
2010 and 2011.

Deferred tax liabilities of HK$13,655,000 (2010: HK$6,304,000)
have not been established for the withholding tax that would
be payable on the unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries
because the Company controls the dividend policy of
these subsidiaries and it is not probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future. Such
unremitted earnings for investments in subsidiaries totalled
HK$273,090,000 (2010: HK$126,080,000) at 31 March 2011.

rEME (&)

RWER AEBEBMEFAREBATE
E51813,960,0008 T (= ZF —ZT F:
22,661,000/ 7t ) 7] A 1E 4K §5 K 2R FE =%
T Al - 2 HRE) AT IEE1E9,263,000
BILTEREEH B R AR RERER
RZER_TE—TFR-FT—F=A
=t HEEUHEHEEBEZNBA T
ZARKHFRREBRAZE NEH
WEERREREEE -

ERARNREFE THBRARZEKE
B MEREZEE TR R R i
R - M ERZERB AR KRB
BR 2 F FE {3 2 78 0 %1 7 3 4 E R 18
8 118,655,000 L (Z & —Z & :
6,304,000 L) - R=_T——F = A
=t+—H8 ZEWBARIREZRBR
& F| & £ 5273,090,0008 70 ( = F —
T 4F 1 126,080,000/ 7T ) °
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=

—E——F®=ZA=+—HItFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2011
34. SHARE CAPITAL 34. KA
GROUP AND COMPANY KEBRAEAF
Number of
ordinary shares Amount
ZEREE EEG]
Notes HK$’000
Bt 2 FHT
Authorised: EERA:
Ordinary shares of B EE0.0028 T 2 E i
HK$0.002 each
At 1 April 2009, 31 March 2010, R-ZZEZNFHA—AH-
1 April 2010 and —E-TF
31 March 2011 =A=+—8"
—ET-TFWEA-BR
—E——%=ZA=1+—H 250,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: EBRTREERA:
Ordinary shares of B E0.00278 T 2 & i@k
HK$0.002 each
At 1 April 2009 E/\f ST NFEOA—H 1,786,152,850 3,572
Issue of shares upon conversion 8 A] 2 1% 2 & B 2617 % (D
of convertible notes (@) 900,000,000 1,800
At 31 March 2010 and R-ZE-—FTF=H=+—H
1 April 2010 MN—Z2—ZFAH—H 2,686,152,850 5,372
Issue of shares upon exercise of 171 BE B% # B 25 17 A% 1D
share options (Note 37) (M$5E37) 140,172,000 280
Issue of shares upon conversion R A 2 0% 2 5 I 8617 AR (D
of convertible notes (Note 32) (M$3E32) (b) 150,000,000 300
At 31 March 2011 R=ZB——%=H=+—~H 2,976,324,850 5,952
Notes: B 5
(@)  During the year ended 31 March 2010, the Type | CN with an (a) BEZZT—TF=A=+—HLFE"
aggregate principal amount of HK$198,000,000 was converted R %84 $£198,000,000/8 L 2 55 — 48
into 900,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.002 each at a AHRRRER FREFR22E TE
conversion price of HK$0.22 per share. H # 2900,000,000% & % HE 1E0.002
BT 2 A
(b)  During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Type Il CN with an by BEZZT——F=A=+—HLFE"

aggregate principal amount of HK$82,500,000 was converted
into 150,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.002 each at a
conversion price of HK$0.55 per share.

N & %4 ££82,500,0008 7T 2 5 — 48
AR EEIZ R ESRS5ETE
3% /5150,000,0000% & A% M {E0.002
BT 2 EimAR o
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BHE_Z——F=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2011

35. RESERVES 35. f# &
GROUP AND COMPANY REBR QDT
35.1 Group 35.1 X£H
Special reserve KR

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal amount of the shares of the
subsidiaries at the date on which they were acquired
by the Company and the nominal amount of the shares
issued for the acquisition under a group reorganisation in
1997.

Contributed surplus

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the annual
general meeting of the Company on 10 August 2004, the
Company reduced its share premium by an amount of
approximately HK$286,300,000 in accordance with the
provisions of section 46 of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981 and transferred the same amount to the contributed
surplus account of the Company. On the same date,
the Company applied an amount of approximately
HK$236,906,000 from the contributed surplus account
against the accumulated losses; and

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the annual
general meeting of the Company on 31 July 2009, the
Company reduced its share premium by an amount of
approximately HK$260,000,000 and transferred the
same amount to the contributed surplus account of the
Company. On the same date, the Company applied an
amount of approximately HK$206,327,000 from the
contributed surplus account against the accumulated
losses; and

Dividends were reflected as an appropriation of
contributed surplus in respect of final dividend for the
year ended 31 March 2011 of HK$29,763,000 (2010:
HK$8,509,000) and interim dividend for the year ended
31 March 2011 of HK$8,929,000.
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AEBZRRFEEEARBNRE
MEBRARKNEBZERND ZE
BER-NWNAEFETEEEM
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ZER-

BA &

BEARBR_ZTZEMFNA T+
HREAOZRRAFASLARZ
BFRARZR AQABREBEARE
—NN\—FRAEFIBEZERE
15 E A% 1 4 18 B 3l £9286,300,000
B U ZeRERERARRZ
BABBRIERN-RFH  AQB
A B & BR 7 &) F§ #7236,906,0007%8
T RETEE &

BEARATR _-_ZZENELA
“t+—AETREBAFRE L
BB FFRIRZES A AR ER
15 % & Bl )8 49260,000,0005% 7T *
Wz EERERERRE ZHA
BHRERN-BH ARRRBAR
#4 B8R 7 8 F 49206,327,0007% 7T A
IR FTEE &

BRETDTRBARBZ-T——F
ZA=+—HILEFEZRHERE
29,763,000 L (=& —ZT F:
8,509,000 L) KRB E =T ——
F=A=1+—HILEFEZHHRE
8,929,000/ L I #1 A B BR B 5K ©
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BHE_Z——F=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2011

35. RESERVES (Continued) 35. e (#)

GROUP AND COMPANY (Continued) KEERARAT (#&)

35.1 Group (Continued) 35.1 XEH (&)
Statutory reserve B
The Group’s statutory reserves represent appropriations REE 2ETE RERAR A H B
of profits retained by the Company’s PRC subsidiaries. BABURBRAZAH - BREAR
In accordance with the respective articles of association AFBEMBARSE CHBER
of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries, they are required A ZEARIAEERERE
to appropriate amount not less than 10% of their profits F1gm DL R10% 5 B 2% €
after income tax to statutory reserves each year, until the B EEREESRELRFMREARZ
reserve balance reaches 50% of its registered capital. 50% /3 1k © % &% 18 7] R YEHRAE A
Such a reserve may be used to reduce any losses FEAZ BB BITEHERA -

incurred or for capitalisation as paid-up capital.

35.2 Company 35.2 XA
Retained
profits/ Proposed
Share Capital Contributed (accumulated final
premium* reserve’ surplus™ losses)* dividend Total
REBEF,/
R fn i (B BRGEE BARKT (ZHEB)' BRERARS Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT T T THT THT
At 1 April 2009 RZEZNENA—H 529,766 112,184 100,680 (206,327) - 536,303
Equity component in convertible BETARREE 2 BHHH
notes issued - 1,443 - - - 1,443
Issued of shares upon conversion of 5 2 AT # % = Fr 5 4T A7
convertible notes 300,016 (112,184) - - - 187,832
Interim dividends paid for the period EZE-ZEAFNA=THIE
ended 30 September 2009 BEBEARHRS
(Note 14(a)) (Hz14(a)) = = = (13,431) - (13,431)
Waiver of interest on convertible —ARERERRATRBERE
notes by a shareholder ZHE 3,508 - - - 3,508
Transactions with owners BREEAETZRS 300,016 (107,233) - (13,431) - 179,352
Profit for the year and total AEEENRAEEZE
comprehensive income oL
for the year - - - 3,263 - 3,263
Reduction of share premium IR ARG R B (260,000) - 260,000 - - -
Elimination of contributed surplus A REE R BB
against accumulated losses - - (206,327) 206,327 - -
Proposed final dividend for the year #HZE-ZF-ZT4=A=1—H
ended 31 March 2010 LFEZBZRARE
(Note 14(a)) (BtE14@) = = (8,059) - 8,059 -
At 31 March 2010 and 1 April 2010 R=-Z—Z#=A=1+—-8AK
e e =) 569,782 4,951 146,294 (10,168) 8,059 718,918
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35. RESERVES (continued)
GROUP AND COMPANY (Continued)

35.2 Company (Continueqd)

35.6% 1 (&)

TEBRAEQTR (£F)

352 KARpal (%)

Retained
Share profits/ Proposed
Share Capital option  Contributed (accumulated final
premium* reserve’ reserve’ surplus* losses)* dividend Total
REER,/
RO RE BExftfe BRERSGY SARR (RHER) BERERE &it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT T FAL FAL TAT FAEL
At 1 April 2010 R=ZF-ZFNA—A 569,782 4,951 - 146,294 (10,168) 8,059 718,918
Equity-settled share option MRS E 2 B R 2
arrangement - - 18,991 - - - 18,991
Issued of shares upon exercise of  {T{FEE IR ERS Z TR (A
share options 131,888 - (17,227) - - - 114,661
Issued of shares upon conversion of SEIRARRFBEETRG
convertible notes 94,368 (1,443) - - - - 92,925
Final dividend paid for the year HE-2-%F
ended 31 March 2010 ZAZT-HIEFE
(Note 14(b) BRREABE (KiE140) - - - (450) - (8,059) (8,509)
Interim dividends paid for the period EHZE=-Z—ZF
ended 30 September 2010 NA=+RIEHRA
(Note 14(a)) B HRE (Hi14a) - - - (8,929) - - (8,929)
Transactions with owners HBEBEANETLIRS 226,256 (1,443) 1,764 (9,379) - (8,059) 209,139
Loss for the year and total AEEFRRAEE
comprehensive loss for the year FAFBEAE - - - - (56,490) - (56,490)
Proposed final dividend for the year HZE-T——%&
ended 31 March 2011 ZA=+-BIEFEZ
(Note 14(a)) BERARS (Fi14()) - - - (29,763) - 29,763 -
At 31 March 2011 R=%--%=8=1-H 796,038 3,508 1,764 107,152 (66,658) 29,763 871,567
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35. RESERVES (Continued)

GROUP AND COMPANY (Continuead)

35.2 Company (Continueqd)

*

The contributed surplus of the Company consists of:

HK$51,286,000 being the difference between the
underlying consolidated net assets of Global Food
Culture Group Limited and its subsidiaries and the
nominal value of the Company’s shares which were
issued under a group reorganisation in 1997; and

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the
annual general meeting of the Company on
10 August 2004, the Company reduced its
share premium by an amount of approximately
HK$286,300,000 in accordance with the provisions
of section 46 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981
and transferred the same amount to the contributed
surplus account of the Company. On the same date,
the Company applied an amount of approximately
HK$236,906,000 from the contributed surplus
account against the accumulated losses; and

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the
annual general meeting of the Company on 31 July
2009, the Company reduced its share premium by
an amount of approximately HK$260,000,000 and
transferred the same amount to the contributed
surplus account of the Company. On the same date,
the Company applied an amount of approximately
HK$206,327,000 from the contributed surplus
account against the accumulated losses; and

Dividends were reflected as an appropriation of
contributed surplus in respect of final dividend for
the year ended 31 March 2011 of HK$29,763,000
(2010: HK$8,509,000) and interim dividend for the
year ended 31 March 2011 of HK$8,929,000.

These reserve accounts comprise the Company’s
reserve of approximately HK$841,804,000 (2010:
HK$710,859,000) in the Company’s statement of financial
position.

35. B (&)

TEBRAEQTR (£F)

352 KARpal (%)

AR RAZBABRKRERE:

RIERRXEEBEFR A
AR E M B A R Z i8R AR
BEEFERLRAR
—ANEFETEEER
B P E AT D < E{E R &
< Z=#51,286,000/% T ;
&

RERARFR-_ZZTMEF
NA+THABRTZERE
FRELBBZERIR
BECARRRBAERE
— NN\ —FRREEA6%F
Z FRTE R R A s (B ER
#7286,300,000% 7T * I
BzeBEBREARRZ
BABBEAN-RB A
NRARFHARRRPE D
#9236,906,0007% 7T A K
HREERE: R

REARRAR-_ZETNEF
TtA=+—HBETZER
BFEREG LBEBZEHIAR
B ARAERKRG R
& Hl &k £9260,000,0007%
T ZEREERER
RAZBABBIEA R
B AABEBARREK
R 5 H 49206,327,0007%
A REHEE &

BEDRMRAREE =
T——®=/8=+—
AEEEZRER A
29,763,000/ T (=&
— Z £ : 8,509,000/ 7T )
rHE-—_ZT——%=H
—t+—ALFEEZzRHEK
58,929,000/ 7T A 1 A
BT -

EHFERERBEARATK

MR EKAZARRAFEELD
841,804,000 T (=T — %
4F 710,859,000/ 7T ) °
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BHE_Z——F=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2011

36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 36. HEME AT

I

GROUP REE

(a) Disposal of JDMM (a) HEJDMM

On 11 March 2010, the Company entered into a sale
and purchase agreement (the “S&P I”) with a company
(the “Purchaser”) which is beneficially owned by Mr.
Wong Chun Loong (“Mr. Wong”), a key management
personnel of the Company and a relative of Mr. Tong.
Pursuant to the S&P |, the Company has agreed to sell
(i) the entire issued share capital of JDMM, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, and its subsidiaries
(together as the “JDMM Group”); and (i) the benefits
of and interests in the loans owed by JDMM to JDH,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (the “Sale
Loans”) (collectively refer to the “JDMM Disposal”), at an
aggregate consideration of HK$67,000,000 as agreed by
the contracted parties. The completion date of the JDMM
Disposal was on 27 April 2010 (the “Completion Date I”).
The JDMM Group is principally engaged in the business
of animations development in the PRC. Details of the
JDMM Disposal are included in the Company’s circular
dated on 31 March 2010.

The consideration will be settled by 4 instalments of
which the Purchaser has to pay HK$10,000,000 at the
Completion Date | with last instalment to be made on
or before 31 December 2010. The remaining balance
of HK$40,000,000 will be regulated by a non-interest
bearing promissory note which is jointly and severally
guaranteed by Mr. Wong and an independent third
party, and secured by a security deed executed by the
Purchaser and JDMM in favour of the Group creating a
charge over the entire issued share capital of JDMM and
incorporating an assignment of loan due from JDMM.

RZE—ZF=A+—H ' AQF
H—MAERELE ([FEE]
KRR EEEBABREREZ
FEB)Ex#EAZz AR ([ER])
R EEMRE([E—MEE
mEl) REBEE—MHEERZE
RAARIEREEHEON)ARAEE
BB A FlUJDMM K KT B A 7] (4
8 [IDMMER ) 2 2 2B TR
7 R (i) JDMM&E R AR R 5] 2 & [
BAREEMHZERZ Fls ki
(TEE&Ex®]) (#1AJIDMM
EEEE]) BRELTHHH
E £67,000,000/8 7T ° JDMMH &
EHERAPA-ZT—ZTFN
AZ+tR ([EEEKBE]) -
JIODMMEB X ZTREN EEEH
BEK - HHEIDMMEEEH 2 F
BERAQRRAHAE-_ZT—ZF
—A=+—HZz&X-

REFSOEBEN EREFER
& {8 75X B B &% 110,000,000/
T MExE—BNRER =2 —F
F+-—A=+—HEZAEL - &
¥H40,000,000% 7T #§ & T & B =
HEERE AR EERE LS
M —RBME=ZHHERRERIE
R WHEHTKRIDMMIAKREE A
5 AZLJDMM 2 2 2B B BT AR AR
i 837 2 # 58 R A8 52 IDMMAS
RZERMEN 2 EREZLDER
j:Eﬁo
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I

36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

GROUP (Continued)

(b) Disposal of JDH

On 30 September 2010, the Company entered into a
sale and purchase agreement (the “S&P II”) with the
Purchaser. Pursuant to the S&P I, the Company has
agreed to sell the entire issued share capital of JDH
and its subsidiaries (together as the “JDH Group”)
(the “JDH Disposal”), at an aggregate consideration of
HK$30,000,000 as agreed by the contracted parties.
The completion date of the JDH Disposal was on 18
November 2010 (the “Completion Date II”). The JDH
Group is principally engaged in the business of comics
development in Hong Kong and the PRC. Details of the
JDH Disposal are included in the Company’s circular
dated on 22 October 2010.

The consideration will be settled by 2 instalments of
which the Purchaser has to pay HK$10,000,000 at the
Completion Date Il with last instalment to be made on
or before 22 December 2010. The remaining balance
of HK$20,000,000 will be secured by a security deed
executed by the Purchaser and JDH in favour of the
Group creating a charge over the entire issued share
capital of JDH.

36. HEMEB AT (&)

rEME (&)

(b)

HEEEE

E—ZTFNA=1+H ARQF
/EE J—HhEBEWRE([EF=
tmmn BEEF-—MNHEE
%* ARRBERBHEEEHK
HIWBRR (B E2HEE])
ZEBEBHTRA ([E2HLEE
EHE|) BREGITNVIHBER
30,000,000/ 7C° E 28 HEHE
ZEKBEHA-_ZT—ZTE+—A
TNANB(E=FExTKBEH]) £
EHEEFEERARTERS
EBEREEG BHEEEHALES
B HBHERAARBHEA=ZT
—ZE+A-+-HZBEXK

=
m]ﬁ m]ﬁ \I

_\ \

REFSMBEN  EREFER
% — {& 52 5 B B % 110,000,000
BT MExE—HARER =2 —
TF+ A=+ =Bz ZAI{EL -
#£25820,000,000/8 T B E 5 &
FEFUAERAZTAREE
Bz 2 e BITRAM A 27
50T ER L 2 R LA MEH AR o
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36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 36. HEWEB AR (2)
GROUP (Continued) REE (&)

JDMM K EEFE B R IEREHE S E T
RBEZEE(BF) ZEBRENT

The carrying amounts of assets/(liabilities) of the JDMM and
JDH Group as at the respective completion dates of disposals

are as follows:

JDMM JDH Total
JDMM EE2H =
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT TAT TAT
Net assets/(liabilities) PEZEE/
disposed of: (BE)FE:
Property, plant and R =5
equipment (Note 17) B
(MH5E17) 4,360 415 4,775
Goodwill (Note 19) PR (M5E19) 16,655 - 16,655
Inventories FE 21,681 1,466 23,147
Film rights 52 F bR 7,388 = 7,388
Trade receivables, net e E 558
R RR 10,855 9,401 20,256
Deposits, prepayments and B EHFIER
other receivables H ) JiE U5 kI8 10,126 2,442 12,568
Amounts due from related FEMEE i A T RIE
parties - 30,011 30,011
Cash at banks and in hand RITRFHEES 7,174 3,622 10,696
Trade payables & B 5 3K I8 (824) (6,723) (7,547)
Receipts in advance, B FIE ~ FEET
accrued charges and other R REAM
payables JE 15 3R (9,891) (8,974) (18,865)
Provision for taxation IR B (240) (1,906) (2,146)
Non-controlling interests IEE IR = (3,716) = (3,716)
63,568 29,654 93,222
Amounts due from/(to) the HEZERS
Group disposed of (FER) REH
KIB (31,150) 3,500 (27,650)
Disposal of the Sales Loans HELHEER 40,000 - 40,000
Recycle of exchange reserve H £ B 8% (O] SN FE
upon disposal 1 (2,893) (1,168) (4,061)
Loss on disposal of HEMBARZ
subsidiaries (Note 16) B8 (FIsE16) (2,525) (1,986) (4,511)
Total consideration REMRFE 67,000 30,000 97,000
Satisfied by: AT AR ER:
Cash received BUE & 27,000 30,000 57,000
Secured, interest-free B R BAR
promissory note ER 40,000 - 40,000
67,000 30,000 97,000
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BHEZ
36.

37.

T——®F=ZA=+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2011

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 36. HEMEB AT (&)

GROUP (Continued)

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in
respect of the disposal of JDMM and JDH is as follows:

rEME (&)

EBEDMMEEEFHEETH L RE R
REFZEBERAFBEZOMAOT

JDMM JDH Total

JDMM FE8 &5t

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000

F&TT FH&T THT

Cash received B UWIR & 27,000 30,000 57,000

Cash and bank balances HEZRER

disposed of IRITHE R (7,174) (3,522) (10,696)
Net inflow of cash and cash HeMReEE

equivalents HB RAFHE 19,826 26,478 46,304

SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at a special
general meeting of the Company held on 7 October 2002 for
the primary purpose of providing incentives to directors and
eligible employees. The Scheme will expire on 6 October 2012.
Under the Scheme, the board of directors of the Company
may, at its discretion, grant options to eligible employees,
including executive directors, suppliers, customers, advisers or
consultants and joint venture partners or business alliances of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries to subscribe for shares
in the Company.

37. AR HER 2 HE

AAFZERERE ([ZarEl]) iR
BARIR=ZZTEZE_FTALBETZ
BREFINARE EBB s TRAZRR
M EFEZENRGETEERGERE
EHRE) - Zi 8RN —=F T AN
HE®R BEZE ARRESEA
HIEREREXTEERES BEXR
AR EEAHBAR ZHITES -« #
EE XF EBERHXEBAAREERH
HEBE R URERNQRIRG -
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37. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (Continued) 37. UR M AER o @E &)

The total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time,
without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. The
number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
to any individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed
1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time,
without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders.
Options granted to substantial shareholder or independent
non-executive directors in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s
share capital or with a value in excess of HK$5 million must be
approved in advance by the Company’s shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days of the date
of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per each grant of options.
Options may be exercised from the date of grant of the share
option to the tenth anniversary of the date of grant. The
exercise price is determined by the directors of the Company
and will not be less than the highest of the closing price of
the shares on the Stock Exchange on the date of grant, the
average closing prices of the shares on the Stock Exchange on
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant of
the options or the nominal value of the shares.

All share-based compensation will be settled in equity. The
Group has no legal or constructive obligation to repurchase or
settle the options other than by issuing the Company’s ordinary
shares.

fEAREAR QN RIR R E S E R - AT IR I
ZETEIE L 2 BEARE TS ko2 IR B2
BB B PMEA R B BT
19210% o fEAREAR R A IRE E L #L
Al RER—FRA R TEREAZE
REFF R 2BRMNEE  THRBBARD
AR EMKEREBETRMD 21% &% T
TERFNB L IEMITE S 2 B IRE W
BBARABKRAZ01%KEEBERA
5,000,000/ 7T * B4 EE R EAR R AR
HALAE ©

B2z B ARK G B #ER21
B A& WA B8R B
RSB TT © 8 B HE F] 0 BB IR A 3 1
FHMEERHEMNETBFER LHH
TE-TEERARAESTET D
BERBY R L B BRI 2 T
B BONBERBRERD A BATAME
R 5 BER R P2 PR ES D E
BE(AERERE) -

FT B AR D /B 27 2 # 18 # A B AR 48
H-BRBEBETARNAERBRIN A&
B AR IEE R T MERE R B
&
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37. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (Continued)

—E——F®=ZA=+—HItFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2011

On 15 April 2010, the Company granted 154,528,000 share
options to certain of its directors, employees and other eligible

37.

UR#ABER @HE#)

R-ZE—ZFNMA+HB  ARQAEE
%;zﬁﬁf“ftﬂxo 8278 T 154,528,000

persons for nil consideration at an exercise price of HK$0.82 hiERETEETES EEREME
per share. Details of the share options granted by the Company BRAT - ARBIRBEZTER L 2
pursuant to the Scheme and the share options outstanding as BEAER=ZF——F=HA=+—8#
at 31 March 2011 were as follows: RITECBREZFBRAT
Number of options
EHE
Balance at
31 March
2010 and Granted Exercised Lapsed Balance at
1 April during during during 31 March
Directors Date of grant Exercisable period 20132 the year the year the year 2011
—E-ZF
EREr= »n
k=—2-%% —g——F
MA—-HZ =A=t+—-H
= R B H T8 &8 FARE FRITE FRER &
(dd/mm/yy) (dd/mm/yy)
/R) (£/R/8)
Mr. Tong 15/04/10 15/04/10 to 14/04/13 - 25,000,000 (25,000,000) - -
BEAE —E-ZFMA+HHA “Z-ZFMA+HEBZE
—Z—=-FMA+MmA
Zheng Hao Jiang 15/04/10 15/04/10 to 14/04/13 = 25,000,000 (25,000,000) = =
5T —Z-ZFMA+HEE ZZT-THNATHREE
ZZ-=-FWmA+MA
Zhao Xiao Dong 15/04/10 156/04/10 to 14/04/13 - 25,000,000 (25,000,000) - -
HANE —T-ZFMA+RA —Z-ZFMATRAZE
—E-=FWA+MmA
Zhang Si Jian 15/04/10 15/04/10 to 14/04/13 - 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000
KRB —T-ZEMA+HA Z—ZT-TEMAT+HAZE
:?**ﬁ@ﬂ+ﬂﬁ
Choy Sze Chung, Jojo 15/04/10 15/04/10 to 14/04/13 - 2,504,000 - - 2,504,000
3N —“Z-ZFMA+EH “Z-ZFMA+HEBZE
—Z—=-FMA+MA
Lam Kwok Cheong 15/04/10 15/04/10 to 14/04/13 = 2,504,000 (1,908,000) = 596,000
ME :%*?ﬁ@ﬂ‘l‘ﬁﬂ : ﬁ@ ‘|’£E|:|—_
Z—=FMA+MA
Lee Thomas Kang Bor 15/04/10 156/04/10 to 14/04/13 - 2,504,000 (1,256,000) - 1,248,000
FHER “T-TFWMA+HEA —Z-ZFMATRAZE
T-=FMA+MA
\n aggregate - 87,512,000 (78,164,000) - 9,348,000
l:l D
Employees
B8
\n aggregate 15/04/10 15/04/10 to 14/04/13 - 7,512,000 (2,504,000) - 5,008,000
A% —E-ZFMA+HHA “Z-ZFMA+HEABZE
—T—=FMA+HEA
Consultants, advisors,
customers and
business associates
B ZAANFFR
EBBH
\n aggregate 15/04/10 15/04/10 to 14/04/13 - 59,504,000 (59,504,000) - -
a3 —“Z-ZFMA+HEHA ZENATHAZE
:?**ﬁ@ﬂf@ﬂ
- 154,528,000 (140,172,000) = 14,356,000
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37. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (Continued) 37. UR M AER o @E &)

The weighted average exercise price for the outstanding share
options as at 31 March 2011 was HK$0.82 per share (2010:
Nil).

The weighted average share price for share options exercised
during the year at the date of exercise was HK$0.99 per share
(2010: Nil).

The fair values of options granted were determined using the
Black-Scholes option pricing model that takes into account
factors specific to the share incentive plans. The following
principal assumptions were used in the valuation:

Share price at date of grant HK$0.823
Expected volatility 56.566%
Expected option life 0.5 year
Dividend yield 0.973%
Risk-free interest rate 0.125%
Exercise price at date of grant HK$0.820

The underlying expected volatility was determined by reference
to historical data, calculated based on expected life of share
options. Expectations of early exercise were incorporated into
the Black-Scholes option pricing model. No special features
pertinent to the options granted were incorporated into
measurement of fair value.

In total, HK$18,991,000 of equity-settled share option
expenses have been included in profit or loss for the year
ended 31 March 2011 (2010: Nil), the corresponding amount of
which has been credited to share option reserve in the owners’
equity. No liabilities were recognised due to share-based
payment transactions.

RE——F=A=+—RHRTEZ
R R 2 I 3977 (B A 9 A%0.827%
T(ZE—FF M)

FABTEZBRERITEBH 2N
BFERERER099BT(ZF—F
FE)

EREERE S AARETRA 5 AE
EERE (K5 Rikp REE &8l 2 FE
AR)EE-HEHRMBZEZERREN
T

HEHBEZRE 0.8237% 7T
SERENAE 56.566%
8 5T B IR i 4 B 0.5%
RS 0.973%
f J Bea ) 2= 0.125%
R AHZITERE 0.820/%8 T

HERMREL2ZREER ZHEKR
BZEAFHAE -BHRERETED
AZHHETEEL -FEAARERY
B ABHC BRI -

A #£18,991,0008 T Z AR A4 & 2
BRERIEFAEHEZE=ZE——F=
A=+—HLtFEZEzZR(ZE—%
F /) MEESEETT ARE AR
R ERERE - BIEAEDEURD
RER MRS MER

164 SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011



BT R PY ot

I

Notes to the Financial Statements

BHE_Z——F=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2011

38. KEHERIE

38. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

(@) Group as leasor

The Group sub-leases out a number of rented premises
under operating leases. The leases run for an initial non-
cancellable period of 5 years. The rentals on this lease
are calculated based on a percentage of the relevant
sales of the tenants pursuant to the rental agreement.
Contingent rents recognised in profit or loss during the
years ended 31 March 2011 amounted to approximately

HK$3,982,000 (2010: Nil).

(b) Group as leasee

At the reporting date, the total future minimum lease
payments payable by the Group under non-cancellable

operating leases are as follows:

(a)

(b)

AEEERHBA

REBBESEHES L ZENR
EME-HEN L BHSE A
g - REBEHERZE WHEEZHA
S REPEBESE 28 5 tEt
H-#HE—_T——F=A=+—H
IEFE REEER KRS
733,982,000 70 (ZF — T F:
) o

FEEEREEA
K& B AERBERET AL

EHERNZRRKEHEEFKA
PR T 51 A Y 2

2011 2010

—E——F —E-TF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT FAET

Within one year —F A 54,760 32,423
In the second to fifth year “FEEERF

inclusive (BREEMSE) 132,526 58,858

After five years AFENE 22,744 8,716

210,030 99,997

The Group leases a number of office premises and staff
quarters under operating leases. The leases run for an
initial period of one to ten (2010: one to five) years.

The Company does not have any significant operating

lease commitments.

AEBERELKEHEHEBZE M
REPERETIBE -HENF S
P—=E2+F(ZFT-—FTF:—EF
e

AR BN AE (] & KA A B R
-
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39. CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS 39. EX R H AL

GROUP rE
2011 2010
—E——F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET T T
Property, plant and equipment Y% - iEs Rkt 874 682

At the reporting date, according to certain distributorship RBEER REEESEEEMIE T

agreements for trading of luxury goods, the Group has DR ANEED RSN D HER
committed to open nil (2010: nine) flagship stores and thirteen NHAZRE® (ZZE—ZF : LHE) EEE
(2010: eleven) boutiques during the terms of the distributorship E+=F(=E—FF:+—@F)EE-

period.

ARRBAEAEFEARE RN RE AR AYE

o

The Company does not have any significant capital and other
commitment.

40. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 40. mEBEEREXRKETE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
During the year ended 31 March 2011, certain deposits of @:Kt E-——F=A=+—HIFE"
approximately HK$1,213,000 were set-off with acquisition cost AT & #%1,213,0008 T EHEHE T
of certain property, plant and equipment. ) %%ﬁ& % 2 W PR AS o

41. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS M. BBEREN
COMPANY KA F

RIBER AARREETHEL T
&2 — iR 1715 B #7180,900,0007% T

At the reporting date, the Company has executed corporate
guarantee to certain banks with respect to general banking

facilities granted to certain subsidiaries of the Company of
approximately HK$180,900,000 (2010: HK$22,000,000). At
the reporting date, no provision for the Company’s obligation
under the financial guarantee contracts has been made as the
directors of the Company considered that it was not probable
that the repayments of the borrowings would be in default.

—ZT—FT 422,000,000/ 7T ) AE T
BITELRAIER - RBER - BARA
NRAEERATAAELEREREER
2B R B AN R B R B S R AR
BRI EEFHREME -
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

42 BEATZRS

GROUP xE
During the year, except as disclosed elsewhere in these F A - BRI ZR B 7% 3 3% L B 10 P 2R
financial statements, the Group had the following significant BN ANEEGHEBEATHETNIE
transactions with related parties: AR5
2011 2010
—B——fF —T-THF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 53 FHERT T
Payment of comic script fee X T—ZHEEALTZ
and bonus to a related party BERIAE RIEA (a) 624 3,372
Payment of salary and SR THEATZ
administrative fees to related FERITHER
parties ) (b) 586 1,300
Sales of watches to directors M E = 85 & Pk (©) - 542
Sales of jewelleries M—BEEATHEARE
to a related party (d) 23 -
Sales of automobiles, m—BREEERE
watches and jewelleries PRk MR E
to a shareholder (e) 83 4,338
Payment of rents, management X i ¥ —MRBI:E R T~
fee and office expenses He EBEBER
to a related company MAERZ (f 1,535 1,091
Payment of rental expenses TN T—HBEAFZ
to a related company e ) 10 200
Payment of agency fee to TR FHEEARZARER
related companies (f) - 93
Payment of rents, management it F —HRIEA L2
fee and office expenses He EBREBEREAE
to a related party 3 () 541 =
Payment of rents, management X F— &R 2 &
fee and office expenses EEBRRAEAL
to a shareholder _ (h) 767 -
Purchase of inventories m—EEERRRBFE
from a related company (i) 12,297 11,419
Purchase of property, m—ERREEME
plant and equipment 28 kR iE
from a shareholder (i) 978 -
Receipt of other income from BLTE o 8 U Y — ] [
a car distributorship from a RNAEZ HE MU A
related company ) (k) - 9,312
Receipt of other income ROE—WTHERE—F
from a shareholder IR 2 B AU A
regarding sale of a car ] {) - 1,887
Loan from a shareholder —ZBRRZER (m) - 15,000
Loan from a related party —HEEALTZER (n) 302 -
Payment of advertising fee IHTFT—HBEARZ
to a related company EBELE \ (o) 600 -
Sales of watches and m—EEERFHERER
jewelleries and provision of RE MR E R R
after-sales services
to a related company (P) 8,027 -
Receipt of colour and photo mMEAZEAF KR EE Rk
and manuscript fee from RELESER
related companies ) (@) 200 -
Sales proceeds from the JDMM  Fh1A —fE @B A &) H &
and JDH disposal to a related JDMM K E £ 5A B 4 &
company (Note 36) Fr1S 3038 (M97E36) 97,000 -
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42 BEBEBAXTZRE (&)

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

GROUP (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

During the year, the Group paid comic script fee and bonus to
Mr. Wong Chun Loong (“Mr. Wong”), a relative of Mr. Tong in the
capacity as chief creative officer pursuant to the relevant service
agreement signed with the Group.

During the year, the Group paid salary and administrative
expenses to certain relatives of Mr. Tong. The amounts paid to
these related parties are for the purpose of normal course of
business. No individual persons received over HK$1,000,000 in
each of the year.

During the year ended 31 March 2010, sales of watches were
made to three directors of the Company, Mr. Tong, Mr. Zheng
Hao Jiang and Mr. Zhao Xiao Dong.

During the year, the Group sold certain jewelleries to a relative of
Mr. Tong.

During the year, the Group sold certain jewelleries (2010: certain
watches and an automobile) to Mr. Qi.

During the year, the Group paid rents, management fee and
office expenses (2010: rents, management fee, office expenses
and agency fee) to related companies in which Mr. Qi has
beneficial interests.

During the year, the Group paid rents, management fee and
office expenses to a related party who is a relative to Mr. Qi.
During the year, the Group paid rents to Mr. Qi.

During the year, the Group purchased certain inventories from a
related company in which Mr. Qi has beneficial interests.

rEME (&)

B &

(@)

FRA ARBEEEZEBREIRELRSE
(IEEE]) ARIMERE 2 B {0 ETTH
REERF] 26 BRG W - HAKE
MEXMEEBIANE R -

FR-AEERELEZETRBX M
o RITHAX - N FZE@BEAT
ZeBINIERBEBRS - EERA
45 & F W HRER 181,000,000/ 7T ©

BEZT-ZTF=A=+—HIFE"
REBRARR=ZRERTELE A
TRERBIDREEHERE

Py AREEE S R R
FHH-

FA AREERELEHES T
B( 2 ZF 5 THRER WA
) -

FN AEERREEBEERERL
BERAXNES BEERRAEH
X(ZE-—ZF: % EEE BR
ERXRREE) -

FRN - AEER-BRELRERBEZH
BALIXNES BEERERBAER
Lo
FA-AEERELEEZNEE -

FN AEER-—HEALTEHAEEE
BZBAEARBEETHFE
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

GROUP (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

() During the year, the Group purchased certain property, plant and
equipment from Mr. Qi.

(k) During the year ended 31 March 2010, the Group received the
profit generated from a related company in which Mr. Qi has
beneficial interests.

() During the year ended 31 March 2010, the amount represented
profit from sale of a car transferred from Mr. Qi.

(m)  During the year ended 31 March 2010, the Group entered into
a loan agreement pursuant to which the Group borrowed an
interest-free loan from a shareholder of the Company.

(n)  During the year, the Group entered into a loan agreement
pursuant to which the Group borrow a loan at interest rate of
5% per annum from a related party who is a relative of Mr. Tong.
Interest paid in relation to the loan for the year ended 31 March
2011 was HK$11,000 (2010: Nil). The amount was fully repaid
during the year.

(0)  During the year, the Group paid advertising fee to a related
company in which Mr. Wong has beneficial interests.

(p)  During the year, the Group sold certain watches and jewelleries
and provided after-sales services to a related company in which
Mr. Qi has beneficial interests.

(@)  During the year, the Group received colour and photo and
manuscript fee from related companies in which Mr. Wong has
beneficial interests.

(n The directors of the Company considered that the directors’
remuneration as set out in note 11 is equivalent to the Group’s
key management’s remuneration.

42. BEATZXRF (&)
AEE(F)
MisE: (48)

) FAR AREREEEBESTYER
HeER R w e

k) BHE-FT-ZTFZA=+—HILFE"
$E@wmxa—ﬁm%ﬁ¢%ﬁﬁ
R BEARMBZ A -

() BEZZF=-"A=+—HIFE"
&ﬂﬁhﬁ% WMBRELEEEZEZ A
BB e

(m BEZZ-ZF=F=1+—HIEE"
AEEFTER G R AEER
RAR— %h$1A%ME#O

n TR -AKEFTZERDE Bt
RNEE [ — %ﬁ%%iﬂ%Z%EA
TEAFHNEANZER-BHET
——F=A=+— Eﬁifﬁ& b
St ZF B B11,0008T(ZE—F
FE) ZABERFREHEE-

I,

(0 FA- $%Iﬂ—ﬁmﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁa
B ZHEARXNESE-

(P) CAREER—HHEEALEREE
% S 2 BN R B & T ik &Ik
Z WiIRHERRS-

(@ FA AEERHELSEEEESES
ZHAERREBR ELERRARESE
o

(N ARREZRRMEIME 2 E =M
EHERNAEETREBRARZME -
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 43. £ iEMEE N AALEE

fim

VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of
financial instruments in its ordinary course of operations. The
financial risks included market risk (including currency risk and
interest risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

Financial risk management is coordinated at the Group’s
headquarters, in close co-operation with the board of directors.
The overall objectives in managing financial risks focus on
securing the Group’s short to medium term cash flows by
minimising its exposure to financial markets.

It is not the Company’s policy to engage in the trading of
financial instruments for speculative purposes.

AEERERXEBBRTERERT
B -EAmAREBER ZFTrREAR
BEMZAR (BREBER K EE
) EERRMREIERR -

TREREERAASEANRE WM
ExeREAr-EECRRARZER
BEAREREESRMSARZIERT -
BRAEEDEHZASRE -

RAERBENEESRT AN FARAZ
KR °

431 cRIEEREEER

43.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities

R BARRKZI 2 REED K
UTEemEERSBRAEBEE:

The carrying amounts presented in the statements of
financial position relate to the following categories of
financial assets and financial liabilities:

Group Company
rEE b N/N|
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——-F —ZET-ZF —E——F —ET-ZF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TET TER FET
Financial assets cREE
Loans and receivables & 7% & e g 2 TE
Trade receivables fEWZ 5 708 90,625 87,263 - =
Other receivables H it FE U TR 109,568 43,105 - -
Amounts due from e A+
related parties FIE - 3,825 - =
Amounts due from = NG
subsidiaries A - - 878,235 692,812
Pledged bank BEHEART
deposits T 42,325 11,348 3,369 3,327
Cash at banks and R17 N FE
in hand Be 215,300 174,700 254 34,647
457,818 320,241 881,858 730,786
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 43. ¢t AR EERAAEE
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) (%)
43.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities 431 s MEEREEER (&)
(Continued)
Group Company
rEH PN
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E—-—-F —ZE-ZTF —E-—-—-F —E-ZTfF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FTET FTHET T
Financial liabilities tREE
Financial liabilities at BARERERR
fair value through 518k 2 & @t
profit or loss: BE:
Derivative financial MTEEMTA
instruments - 18,469 - 18,469
Financial liabilities IABESEA ARG TE 2
measured at cRIBE:
amortised cost:
Trade payables B8 23R 15,438 20,804 - -
Accrued charges and  JEETE A M E A
other payables 15 30 IE 61,094 38,506 1,418 150
Amounts due to JEfTEEE AL
related parties FIE 46,448 136 - -
Amount due to a & < — R B B
subsidiary UNETE- Q] - - 3,200 -
Borrowings BE 53,665 17,663 - -
Convertible notes IR EE - 64,951 - 64,951
176,645 160,529 4,618 83,570
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 43. £ iEMEE N AALEE

VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

43.2 Foreign currency risk

(#&)

43.2 &R B

fim

Transactions in foreign currencies and the Group’s
risk management policies

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group’s
exposures to currency risk arise from bank deposits
and borrowings, which are primarily denominated in
EURO, RMB and SF while the Company’s exposures to
currency risk arise from bank deposits which are primarily
denominated in RMB. These are not the functional
currency of the Company and its subsidiaries to which
these transactions relate. The Group currently does
not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However,
the management monitors foreign exchange exposure
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency

SR G RA LM 2 E b BB

EREAREERIAZAAER
AERBERERAINESERZEEHM
ME Z B - REE 2 B R BIR
BRTTEAREE  TEUBTT
AR¥ KIn DERHIE - mARE
ZEERERREEEZAARET
BZRITER WEFEBLIEAR
AREZERZHBIHE AT
ZINEE R o AN BRI HNEE
BRBER - AT EIEE S ST
EEE - WABEREREBEIME
RINER R

exposure should the need arises.

Foreign currency denominated financial assets and

liabilities, translated into HK$ at the closing rates, are as

MONETEZERMEERAES
REEREXRESET RET

follows: ONE
2011 2010
—B--F 22§
Financial Financial Net Financial Financial Net
assets liabilities exposure assets liabilities exposure
SREE StRERE BRFHE CREE cRAR el
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TR TR THT THT THT
EURO BT 37,523 (1,990) 35,533 368 (5,740) (5,372)
SF WA - (2,255) (2,255) 4,049 (3,199) 850
RMB AR 3,585 - 3,585 - - -
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 43. € RiEREER AABNE
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) (#&)
43.2 Foreign currency risk (Continued) 43.2 SN R ()
Sensitivity analysis BBE ST
The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the Group’s TREMAAEEREZ_ZF ——
results for the year ended 31 March 2011 and equity in FZA=Z+—"BULEFEZEEX
regards to a 5% (2010: 5%) appreciation in HK$ against BT RBUT B EEB R A
EURO, SF and RMB respectively. The 5% is the rate used RESRABER (ZTE—FF:
when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key 5% ) 2 BUKRE - 5% M EEEE
management personnel and represents management’s ABEINERBRATRERAZ
best assessment of the possible change in foreign LEE - IR E I B N R R
exchange rates. B8 B EGET o
Results for the year
and retained profits
TEEEBERRERR
Group
rEME
2011 2010
—E——F —E—ZF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET F& T
EURO BR 7T (1,793) 201
SF ¥ R BP 94 (32)
RMB AR (151) -
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 43. £ iEMEE N AALEE
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) (%)

I

fim

43.2 Foreign currency risk (Continued) 43.2 SN R ()

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis of the Group’s exposure to foreign
currency risk at the reporting date has been determined
based on the assumed percentage changes in foreign
currency exchange rates taking place at the beginning of
the financial years and held constant throughout the year.

A 5% depreciation in HK$ against EURO, RMB and SF
would have the same magnitude on the Group’s results
for the year and equity but of opposite effect.

These are the same method and assumption used in
preparing the sensitivity analysis included in the financial
statements of the year ended 31 March 2010.

Exposures to foreign exchange rates vary during the
year depending on the volume of overseas transactions.
Nevertheless, the analysis above is considered to be
representative of the Company’s exposure to foreign
currency risk.

As the Company does not have significant exposure
to foreign currency risk, the Company’s income and
operating cash flows are substantially independent of
changes in foreign currency rates.

HBEDH (&)

ARER RS BAE 2 NEER
BRI 5 57 A B T 4F 2 40 2 91
B BREH BB AKE LB
REMBEDNE FRETE -

BILHBT - AR Rim AR
5% BUARKEERAFE X
Lk EARSERARZEE-

HEAIMERHRBE_FT—FF
A=t HULEFERBRRZ
BREIMERAZ I ERBR
R

ShEETE R R & B FE S R 2 A S
RXBZBBMAEMARE- - EEWL
Lt DA AR B AT KR AR R P
A2 INE R -

2P /NI 2 Sl N N
@ MARB ZWARKEERER
EEARTRIIEERSEHTE -
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 43. £ iEMEE N A ALEE

VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)
43.3 Interest rate risk

Exposures to interest rate risk and the Group’s risk
management policies

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value or
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates. The Group’s interest
rate risk arises primarily from bank deposits (Note 26) and
borrowings (Note 30) while the Company’s interest rate
risk arises primarily from bank deposits (Note 26). The
Group has not used any derivative contracts in order to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk. The Group has
not formulated a policy to manage the interest rate risk.

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the
Group’s results for the year ended 31 March 2011 to
a possible change in interest rates of +/- 0.5% (2010:
+/- 0.5%), with effect from the beginning of the year. The
calculations are based on the Group’s financial assets
and liabilities held at the reporting date. All other variables
are held constant. The assumed changes have no
significant impact on the Company’s other components of

fim

(#&)

43.3 R =Gk

RE 2 FEm b R Az
EERE

NMERBRESRIAZAAER
RenER™HNEE S MK
ZRERR e AREZFRERERR
B |17 (M 5E26) kEE (4
fE30) - MARAZMEREBEE
REBRITER (M E26) - AKH
WEFERERITETREAHE T
HO = [ g o A 52 B O S A AT B IR
R RE R BUR o

TREAAEEREE_—T——F=
A=+ HUEFREZXEBYHA
FNER BENREF +/- 0.5%
(ZZ2—FF: +/- 0.6%) 2B
B st ENENAREEREE B
BremMEERRBEREE -FTH
Hits BT - RREBHYH A
NAEm BN LT ERERE

equity. £
Results for the year
and retained profits
TEEERERREER
Group Company
rEE A F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
-0.5% +0.5% -0.5%
2011 —E——fF (950) 15 (15)
2010 —E-LTF (734) 173 (173)
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 43. £ iEMEE N AALEE
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

43.4 Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a
financial instrument would fail to discharge its obligation
under the terms of the financial instrument and cause
a financial loss to the Group. Generally, the maximum
credit risk exposure of financial assets is the carrying
amount of the financial assets as shown on the face of
the consolidated statement of financial position which
are summarised in note 43.1 above. None of the financial
assets of the Group are secured by collateral or other
credit enhancements.

All the Group’s bank balances are deposited with major
banks located in Hong Kong and the PRC.

The Group trades mainly with recognised, creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that
the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant. The
carrying amounts of the trade receivables included in the
consolidated statement of financial position represent the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its
financial assets. Further detailed exposure to credit risk of
the Group is disclosed in note 23.

The Group is exposed to concentration of credit
risk. Receivables from a counterparty (2010: two
counterparties) represented about 52% (2010: 60%)
and 53% (2010: Nil) of the Group’s trade receivables
and other receivables as at 31 March 2011 respectively.
The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in the PRC and Malaysia (2010: Hong
Kong).

The Company is not exposed to significant concentration
of risk.

(#&)
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 43. £ iEMEE N A ALEE
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) (%)

fim

43.5 Liquidity risk 43.5 BN 1% E B

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with its
financial liabilities. The Group is exposed to liquidity
risk in respect of settlement of trade payables and its
financing obligations, and also in respect of its cash flow
management. The Group’s objective is to maintain an
appropriate level of liquid assets and committed lines of
funding to meet its liability requirements in the short and
longer term.

The Group manages its liquidity needs on a consolidated
basis by carefully monitoring scheduled debt servicing
payments for long term financial liabilities as well as
forecast cash inflows and outflows due in day to day
business.

Analysed below is the Group’s remaining contractual
maturities for its non-derivative financial liabilities as at 31
March 2011. When the creditor has a choice of when the
liability is settled, the liability is included on the basis of
the earliest date on when the Group can be required to
pay. Where the settlement of the liability is in instalments,
each instalment is allocated to the earliest period in which
the Group is committed to pay.
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 43. ¢ RiEMEER A AETE

VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) (&)
43.5 Liquidity risk (Continued) 43.5 RE MR (&)
The analysis is based on the undiscounted cash flows of SMAEmABEZRGRBRERER
the financial liabilities. RI%
Group RE
On Less than One year
demand one year or above Total
REXR PR-—F —FHZULE =
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET THT THET
At 31 March 2011 R=B——-F
=A=t+—H
Non-derivative financial FITESRMITA:
instruments:
Trade payables ERE 5508 = 15,438 = 15,438
Accrued charges and T B R Rk
other payables H A e 3E 57,428 - 3,666 61,094
Amounts due to related FEfS RgE A TR
parties 46,448 - - 46,448
Borrowings &8 = 54,186 = 54,186
103,876 69,624 3,666 177,166
At 31 March 2010 R-ZE—ZF
—A=+—H”
Non-derivative financial FOTESBT A
instruments:
Trade payables P& 5 ZIE - 20,804 - 20,804
Accrued charges and T B R Rk
other payables H A e 3E 34,606 - 3,900 38,506
Amounts due to related FEfS RgE A TR
parties 136 - - 136
Borrowings &8 = 17,708 - 17,708
Convertible notes EE:Y ESE - - 132,867 132,867
34,742 38,612 136,767 210,021

178 SPARKLE ROLL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011



B R 2% M 5T
Notes to the Financial Statements

BHE_Z——F=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2011

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 43. ¢ iEREEBR AREFE
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) (&)
43.5 Liquidity risk (Continued) 43.5 RENER K (£)
Company ¥
On Less than One year
demand one year or above Total
RER PRA-F —FHUL &t
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT
At 31 March 2011 R=B——F
=H=+—H
Non-derivative financial FTEERMTA:
instruments:
Accrued charges fEsTE A 1,418 = = 1,418
Amount due to a subsidiary et — R B AR
I 3,200 - - 3,200
4,618 - - 4,618
Financial guarantees issued: B3 H B ER -
Maximum amount ERZEE LR
guaranteed - 30,409 - 30,409
At 31 March 2010 RZE—ZF
=A=+—H
Non-derivative financial FTESRMTA:
instruments:
Accrued charges fE& & M 150 - - 150
Convertible notes AR EE - - 132,867 132,867
150 - 132,867 133,017
Financial guarantees issued: =% BT ##E1R :
Maximum amount FERRE LR
guaranteed - 11,923 - 11,923
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 43. ¢ RiEMEER A AETE
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) (&)

43.6 RMBRARBER ZAREBETE

43.6 Fair value measurements recognised in the

statement of financial position

The following table presents financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value in the consolidated and company
statements of financial position in accordance with the fair
value hierarchy. The hierarchy groups financial assets and
liabilities into three levels based on the relative reliability of
significant inputs used in measuring the fair value of these
financial assets and liabilities. The fair value hierarchy has
the following levels:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets and liabilities;

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly
(i.e., derived from prices); and

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the
financial asset or liability is categorised in its entirety is
based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the
fair value measurement.
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 43. ¢ RiEMEER A AEE
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) (&)

43.6 Fair value measurements recognised in the
statement of financial position (Continued) (&)

The financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value =
in the consolidated and company statements of financial & RARFFERARE QDB
ECeREERBRRANED
BRANSELT

position as at 31 March 2011 are grouped into the fair
value hierarchy as follows:

Group RE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Bl — &A= &A= &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT
As at 31 March 2010 R-E—-ZF
=A=+-H
Assets EE
Derivative financial TEERMTH
instruments - - - -
Liabilities =R
Derivative financial PTEEMTHE
instruments - 18,469 - 18,469
Company ¥ NN
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Bl — &FRl= FR= Bt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000
FAT FHAT FAT FAT
As at 31 March 2010 R-ZE—-ZF
=ZA=t+-
Assets EE
Derivative financial TESBMTA
instruments - - - -
Liabilities =R
Derivative financial TESBMTA
instruments - 18,469 - 18,469
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 43. ¢ RiEMEER A AETE

VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

43.6 Fair value measurements recognised in the
statement of financial position (Continued)

The derivative financial instruments in the consolidated
and company statements of financial position are grouped
into the Level 2 fair value hierarchy. The derivatives
entered into by the Group are not traded on active
markets. The fair values of such contracts are estimated
using a valuation technique that maximizes the use of
observable market inputs e.g. market currency and
interest rates (Level 2).

(#&)

43.6 RMBRARBER ZAREBETE
(%)

RARARBBRARZITESR
TEDBRBARENERERZ
BB = AEBETLZOTHETAY
BERNERMSEE - BRENZA
RERA-—RBHERIBEREMS
WAE(AIMGEXRHNE) (&
B =) mAAL Z BMERM KA

44. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 44. EXRER

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is
to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise
shareholders value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in
the objectives, policies or processes during the current years.

AEEEAEBE T EAREREL S
Rz ERTRRERZER L X
X FEER R ERREEZAL-

A% ERBAERR T B ERRAA
EETHE LA ARBRARE
A ARERAREARIRN 2
BB FRRSEA AR BTG -
WTHEE AREY B2 RERRE
Pl mRE -
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44. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Continued) 44, EXEE (7)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
total debt divided by total capital. Total debt is calculated
as bank loans, overdraft and convertible notes, as shown in
the consolidated statement of financial position. Total capital
is calculated as total equity, as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The Group aims to maintain the
gearing ratio at a reasonable level.

AEEEAEAAGL R (AERKAE
BRABERNBE)ERER - BHEERTD
BRTER BXRARRERAE
Y EHNEREMBIRARA - ERNERETD
BREDERAE  YENEEMBIR
KR -AKEZERREEEANRELE
HRE—ESEKF Lo

2011 2010
—E——F —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FABT

Total debt BEREE
Borrowings BE 53,665 17,663
Convertible notes Al AR R IR - 64,951
53,665 82,614
Total capital BERMERE 1,268,451 873,906
Total debt to capital ratio RIETE B ALK 4.2% 9.5%
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Financial Summary

RESULTS ¥E
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
—ZTLF —ZENF —EENF —E-%F —E-—-F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FTET FTAEL FTAL TAT THER
Revenue g 102,094 156,726 611,530 1,219,128 3,322,985
Profit/(loss) for the year ADRHEE NEL
attributable to the owners REERF,/
of the Company (E#8) 11,370 6,585 (189,969) 113,016 183,677
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEENEE
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
—ZT+E  ZEEN\E ZZENF ZE-TF CB--f
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
TEL TEL THET TAT TER
Total assets BEE 271,653 411,777 879,172 1,184,999 1,703,923
Total liabilities BEE (24,950 (52,891) (300,221) (311,093) (435,472)
246,703 358,886 578,951 873,906 1,268,451
Equity attributable to the owners AR A HEA A EIGELR
of the Company 244,260 351,450 575,494 869,802 1,263,183
Minority interests PERRER 2,443 7,436 3,457 4,104 5,268
246,703 358,386 578,951 873,906 1,268,451
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